MASTER PLAN OF CONVERSION

Total Community Options, Inc.
And Its Subsidiaries

This Plan of Conversion (this “Plan”) is dated October 30, 2015, and is hereby adopted
by Total Community Options, Inc., d/b/a/ InnovAge (the “Parent Entity”), Total Longterm
Care, Inc. (“TLTC”), Seniors!, Inc. (“Seniors”), and Continental Community Housing, Inc.
(“CCH,” together with TLTC and Seniors, the “Subsidiaries.” Together the Subsidiaries and the
Parent Entity, the “Converting Entities”), each a Colorado nonprofit corporation, in order to set
forth the terms, conditions and procedures governing the conversion of Converting Entities into
Colorado for-profit corporations pursuant to Sections 7-131-101.5, 7-90-201 and 7-90-202 of the
Colorado Revised Statutes (as amended, the “C.R.S.”).

WHEREAS, The Parent Entity has been and continues to be a leader in the delivery of
services to the frail elderly population through its core businesses, including its Program of All-
Inclusive Care for the Elderly, home care agencies, and other programs designed to provide
health care, housing and other services to the frail elderly (the “Business™);

WHEREAS, The Parent Entity has recently engaged in a strategic planning process and
made an assessment of the capital and other needs necessary to continue to grow and provide
high quality services to the frail elderly population, and the results of this process was a
determination that without additional capital and the ability to address market needs through a
for-profit structure and an alignment with a capital partner, the long term goals of the system
would become increasingly difficult to achieve;

WHEREAS, Accordingly, the Parent Entity has determined to pursue its goals through a
conversion of itself and the Subsidiaries to for profit status as Colorado for profit corporations as
part of a capitalization transaction with Welsh, Carson, Anderson & Stowe XII, L.P. (“Welsh”)
in order to provide capital to the enterprise;

WHEREAS, The Parent Entity has certain rights with respect to the governance of
TLTC and Seniors, and TLTC has certain rights with respct to the governance of CCH; and

WHEREAS, Parent Entity’s Board of Directors, and the Board of Directors of each of
the Subsidiaries, has approved the Conversions, as defined below.

Now, therefore, cach Converting Entity does hereby adopt this Plan to effectuate the
conversion of the Converting Entities into Colorado for-profit corporations, as follows:

1. Conversion. Upon and subject to the terms and conditions of this Plan and
pursuant to the relevant provisions of the C.R.S, including, without limitation, Sections 7-90-201
and 7-90-202 of the C.R.S., each Converting Entity will convert (referred to herein as the
“Conversion”) from a Colorado nonprofit corporation into a Colorado corporation (each referred
to herein as a “Resulting Entity”) at the Effective Time (as defined in Section 3 below).




Resulting Entities will thereafter be subject to all of the provisions of the Colorado Corporations
and Associations Act, except that notwithstanding anything therein to the contrary, the existence
of each Resulting Entity will be deemed to have commenced on the date of incorporation of the
corresponding Converting Entity.

(a) At the Effective Time, upon the Conversion of the Parent Entity, the Parent
Entity’s nonprofit limited liability company subsidiaries listed on Exhibit A
attached hereto (the “LILC Subsidiaries”) will be automatically converted
to for-profit limited liability companies. The governance and membership
of the LLC Subsidiaries will remain the same following the Conversion.

(b) At the Effective Time, upon the Conversion of the Parent Entity, the
Resulting Parent Entity will relinquish any rights it has in the governance or
election of directors of the Total Community Options Foundation, a
Colorado nonprofit, tax-exempt corporation (the “Foundation”), and the
Foundation will continue as a member-less nonprofit corporation,
independent of the Parent Entity. The governance of the Foundation
following the Conversion is described in Exhibit B attached hereto.

(c) Attached hereto as Exhibit C is a copy of the results of an independent
valuation of the fair market value of the Business.

(d) Attached hereto as Exhibit D is a detailed explanation of the plans for
distribution of the proceeds of the Conversion and the transactions
contemplated by the Purchase Agreement (as defined below).

(e) No incentive payments have been paid to the executives of the Parent Entity
and its Subsidiaries in connection with the Conversion. The executives of
the Parent Entity have had employment and/or severance agreements with
the Parent Entity in place since 2013, prior to the negotiations of the
Conversion and the Purchase Agreement. Attached as Exhibits E 1-7 are
copies of the executive employment agreements of the executive team in
effect as of the date of execution of this Agreement.

(f) Attached hereto as Exhibits F 1-3 are the consolidated audited financial
statements of the Parent Entity for its three (3) most recent fiscal years for
operations within Colorado, and for those operations outside of Colorado,
for such operations that may be related to the Conversion.

2. Effect of Conversion. Following the Conversion, each Resulting Entity will, for
all purposes of the laws of the State of Colorado, be deemed to be the same entity as the
applicable Converting Entity. Upon the Effective Time, all of the rights, privileges and powers
of each Converting Entity, and all property, real, personal and mixed, and all debts due to such
Converting Entity, as well as all other things and causes of action belonging to a Converting
Entity, will remain vested in the corresponding Resulting Entity and will be the property of the
Resulting Entity and the title to any real property vested by deed or otherwise in each Converting




Entity will not revert or be in any way impaired, but all rights of creditors and all liens upon any
property of each Converting Entity will be preserved unimpaired, and all debts, liabilities and
duties of each Converting Entity will remain attached to the corresponding Resulting Entity and
may be enforced against it to the same extent as if said debts, liabilities and duties had originally
been incurred or contracted by it in its capacity as a Colorado corporation. The Conversion will
not be deemed to affect any obligations or liabilities of any Converting Entity incurred prior to
the Effective Time or the personal liability of any person incurred prior thereto. No Converting
Entity will be required to wind up its affairs or pay its liabilities and distribute its assets, and the
Conversion will not be deemed to constitute dissolution of any Converting Entity and will
constitute a continuation of the existence of each Converting Entity in the form of a Colorado
corporation. Each Converting Entity is the same entity as its corresponding Resulting Entity.

3. Effective Time. Provided that this Plan has not been terminated or deferred
pursuant to Section 7 hereof, the Conversion will be effected as of the closing of the transactions
contemplated by the Stock Purchase Agreement by and between the Parent Entity, the
Foundation, TCO Acquisition Corporation (the “Buyer”), and TCO Group Holdings, Inc. (the
“Parent,” both Buyer and Parent are entities affiliated with Welsh) (the “Purchase Agreement”).
Subject to the foregoing, unless another date and time is specified, the Conversion will be
effective for each Converting Entity upon (a) the filing with the Secretary of State of the State of
Colorado of a duly executed Statement of Conversion meeting the requirements of Section 7-90-
201.7 of the C.R.S. and (b) a duly executed Articles of Incorporation of Resulting Entity in the
form specified below (the “Effective Time”).

4. Governance and Other Matters Related to Resulting Entities.

(a) Articles of Incorporation. At the Effective Time, the Articles of
Incorporation of each Resulting Entity will be in substantially in the form as set forth in Exhibit
G (the “Articles”) and each will be filed with the Secretary of State of the State of Colorado.
Each Converting Entity will retain its name upon the filing of the Articles.

(b) Ownership of Shares. At the Effective Time, each Resulting Entity will
issue shares of Common Stock as follows:

i 100% of the shares of stock of the Resulting Parent Entity will be
issued to the Buyer, in connection with the Transactions outlined in the
Purchase Agreement.

i, 100% of the shares of stock of Resulting TLTC and Resulting Seniors
will be issued to the Resulting Parent Entity, who will be the sole
shareholder of each.

lii. 100% of the shares of stock of Resulting CCH will be issued to
Resulting TLTC who will be the sole shareholder of Resulting CCH.

Each Resulting Entity will issue stock certificates documenting such shares in accordance with
the Bylaws of each Resulting Entity and the terms of the Purchase Agreement.




(c) Bylaws. At the Effective Time, the Bylaws of each Resulting Entity (the
“Bylaws”™) will be substantially in the form as set forth in Exhibits H and each will be adopted by
the corresponding Resulting Entity. Thereafter, the Bylaws may be amended in accordance with
their terms.

(d) Repeal of Corporate Governance Documents. At the Effective Time,
the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws of each Converting Entity, as previously in effect, will
be repealed and supplanted by the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws of the corresponding
Resulting Entities.

5. Filings, Licenses, Permits, and Titled Property. As necessary, each Resulting
Entity will apply for new qualifications to conduct business (including as a foreign corporation),
licenses, permits and similar authorizations on its behalf and in its own name in connection with
the Conversion and to reflect the fact that it is a corporation. As required or appropriate, all real,
personal or intangible property of any Converting Entity which was titled or registered in the
name of Converting Entity will be re-titled or re-registered, as applicable, in the name of the
corresponding Resulting Entity by appropriate filings and/or notices to the appropriate parties
(including, without limitation, any applicable governmental agencies).

6. Further Assurances. Any time after the Effective Time, each Resulting Entity
will be and hereby is authorized to execute and deliver, in the name and on behalf of the
corresponding Converting Entity, all such deeds, bills of sale, assignments, agreements,
documents and assurances and do, in the name and on behalf of such Converting Entity, all such
other acts and things necessary, desirable to vest, perfect or confirm, of record or otherwise, in
the corresponding Resulting Entity its right, title or interest in, to or under any of the rights,
privileges, immunities, powers, purposes, franchises, properties or assets of each Converting
Entity, or to otherwise carry out the purposes of this Plan and the Conversion.

7. Implementation and Interpretation; Termination and Amendment. This Plan
will be implemented and interpreted, prior to the Effective Time, by the Boards of Directors of
each Converting Entity, or a designated representative, and, upon the Effective Time, by the
Board of Directors of each Resulting Entity, or a designated representative, (a) each of which
will have full power and authority to delegate and assign any matters covered hereunder to any
other party(ies), and (b) the interpretations and decisions of which will be final, binding, and
conclusive on all parties.

8. Amendment. This Plan may be amended or modified by the vote of the Boards of
the Converting Entities at any time prior to the Effective Time and thereafter in accordance with
the Bylaws of each Resulting Entity.

9. Third Party Beneficiaries. This Plan will not confer any rights or remedies upon
any person or entity other than as expressly provided herein.

10.  Severability. Whenever possible, each provision of this Plan will be interpreted
in such manner as to be effective and valid under applicable law, but if any provision of this plan




is held to be prohibited by or invalid under applicable law, such provision will be ineffective
only to the extent of such prohibition or invalidity, without invalidating the remainder of this
Plan.

[Signature Page Follows]




This Plan is hereby entered into and adopted as of October 30, 2015.

Converting Entities:

Total Community Options, Inc., d/b/a/ InnovAge

B-MLW

Name:_Maureen Hewitt
Title: President and Chief Executive Officer

Total Longterm Care, Inc.

. vai-&l——r— L‘W
y:

Name: Maureen Hewitt
Title: President and Chief Executive

Seniors!, Inc.

B'MM“LSW

Name: Maureen Hewitt
Title:  Chief Executive Officer

Continental Community Housing, Inc.

B'WLW

Name: Maureen Hewitt
Title: Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT A
LLC SUBSIDIARIES

TLC Inland, LLC

InnnovAge Greater Colorado PACE — Loveland, LLC
Total Community Care, LLC

Innovage Senior Housing-Thornton, LLC

Innovage Senior Housing-Thornton II, LLC




EXHIBIT B
Foundation Governance and Operations Plan

As reflected in Exhibit D to the Master Plan of Conversion, and for the reasons set forth
below, at the Effective Time of the Conversion the proceeds will be distributed to Total
Community Options Foundation (the “Foundation”), an existing Colorado nonprofit corporation
exempt from taxation under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Following the
Conversion, the Foundation will be governed by Amended Articles of Incorporation and
Amended Bylaws, in addition to relevant provisions of state and federal law applicable to
nonprofit, tax exempt organizations. The Amended Articles and Amended Bylaws will reflect
the Foundation’s separation from and severance of its previous relationship to Parent Entity on a
going-forward basis. The renamed Foundation will be governed and administered by an
independent board of directors and new management having demonstrated expertise and
experience in relevant philanthropic and community service will be engaged to support the
Foundation’s activities.

As will be reflected in its amended corporate documents, the restructured Foundation’s
charitable purposes include funding mission-driven senior care and other related initiatives that
improve community services directed toward the aging population and associated caregivers.

With one exception noted below, the Foundation will be a grantmaking, not an
operational, charity promoting independence and dignity for the vulnerable and under-served
aging population by encouraging and supporting innovative, affordable and coordinated services
and initiatives. It will be a leader in improving the well-being of the vulnerable, under-served
aging population, and is committed to accountability and transparency in a collaborative
environment with a diversity of partners to address issues of aging in a holistic manner.

The Parent Entity and the Foundation recognize the overriding responsibility to utilize the
proceeds of the Conversion in an appropriate manner which furthers the Foundation’s charitable
purposes and serves the community, both now and in the future. Consistent with the
requirements of CRS 25.5-5-42(14)(a)(I)(B), significant due diligence has been conducted
regarding the work of other local and national charities in meeting the needs of the aging
population. Following careful review, an informed decision was made by the Parent Entity that
distributing the Conversion proceeds to the Foundation would have a substantial impact in a
highly focused manner with great potential to promote the best interests of the under-served
aging population historically served by InnovAge.

In addition to the foregoing grantmaking activities which will constitute its principal
focus, the Foundation plans to step into the shoes of the Parent Entity after the Conversion to
continue supporting and operating the nonprofit Johnson Center in Englewood, a legacy provider
of specialized adult day care and related services for the frail and aging population in the
Denver-metro community.

Pursuant to its amended company documents, the Foundation will be a Colorado
non-member corporation governed by its Board of Directors; Board size may range between
seven and seventeen Directors serving staggered three year terms. New Board members will be




elected annually by the existing Board as vacancies arise, and Directors will serve a maximum of
two consecutive three year terms. The Foundation’s permanent governing Board will be a broad,
community-based body which reasonably represents its diverse constituency taking into account
geographic, cultural and other relevant considerations, and Directors will be well-qualified to
oversee and advance the Foundation’s charitable purposes.

As of the Effective Time, to facilitate an efficient and effective transition, an initial Board
comprised of nine individuals will be seated for an interim term until the Foundation Board’s
annual meeting in 2017, when the permanent community-based Board structure is fully
implemented. The following persons are anticipated to serve as Directors for an initial term
expiring in 2017.

Parrish S. Boren
Marco Chayet

Joie Glenn
Maureen Hanrahan
Jill Higham

Greg Ibsen

Randy McCall
Tim Owen

Janice Torrez

The Parent Entity recognizes and supports this opportunity to achieve public good.
Distribution of the Conversion proceeds to the restructured Foundation will significantly benefit
the public interest of Colorado’s citizens in a lawful and appropriate manner.




EXHIBIT C
Valuation
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% Change in Valuation

PACE Solutions Home Care Combined

_ Valuation 2014 | [EEaEr veeeeepeey S o] |

$ in 000's Midpoint Combined PACE Solutions Home Care Combined
Company Valuation ! 169,931 178,310 16,040 . 194,350 13% 34%
Less Bond Defeasance (38,148) (37,186) (37,186) -3%
Add Mid Point Value of Land & Buildings 53,650 54,650 54,650 2%
Combined Valuation 185,433 195,774 16,040 - 211,814 13% 34%
™ Amount includes the waorking capital surplus for PACE.
Property Valuation Comparison to Book Value:

Low Mid High
Book Value of Land & Buildings 49,371 49,371 49,371
Valuation 51,600 54,650 57,700
Variance 2,229 5,279 8,329
Valuation Range After Bond Defeasance: Combined PACE  Solutions Home Care Combined
Low 173,942 183,814 15,240 - 199,054
Midpoint E 195,774 16,040 - E
High 196,862 207,714 16,840 - 224,554
Change in Valuation
Midpoint

PACE Valuation by State: Low  Midpoint High S %
Colorado 146,359 156,464 166,553 23,722 18%
MNew Mexico 4,231 4,490 4,749 320 8%
California 33,225 34,820 36,412 (1,300) -4%
Total 183,814 195,774 207,714 22,742 13%




EXHIBIT D
Description of the Transaction and Distribution of Proceeds

Total Community Options, Inc., d/b/a/ InnovAge (the “Parent Entity”), together with its affiliates
and subsidiaries, including those being converted in accordance with the terms of the Plan,
(collectively, the “Company™) is a national leader in the delivery of services to the frail elderly
population in the states of Colorado, California and New Mexico, through its core businesses,
including Programs of All Inclusive Care for the Elderly (“PACE”). To continue to grow and
enhance the ability to serve the ever increasing population of frail elderly in the most patient
centric and cost effective way, the Company is in need of a development partner capable of
providing significant capital resources, and in supporting, enhancing and working with
Company management and pursuing its mission and vision. Welsh, Carson, Anderson & Stowe
XII, L.P. (“Welsh”) is interested in accelerating the Company’s growth in the development and
operation of PACE Programs by making additional capital investment available which will
allow the Company to open new facilities, as well as expanding the ability to bring its
proprietary care management models to similar populations through a broader relationship with
government and commercial healthcare insurance organizations, as well as other health services
constituents. At the same time, as a part of the proposed transaction, Welsh will transfer to the
Total Community Options Foundation, a Colorado nonprofit, tax-exempt corporation (the
“Foundation™), the existing Foundation currently affiliated with the Company, the fair value of
the Converting Entities’ assets. The Foundation, whose long-standing mission is to sustain and
enhance the independence and quality of life of the frail and elderly by increasing community
awareness and support for the programs of the Company, will continue as an independent entity
and will provide funding for continued support of the frail elderly community served by the
Company.

To move forward with these Company goals, the Company and Welsh have entered into a
transaction, principally embodied in a Stock Purchase Agreement (“SPA”).
The principal terms of the transaction as contemplated by the SPA are as follows:

e Upon the receipt of the necessary regulatory and other approvals, and the fulfillment of
any additional requirements set forth in the Purchase Agreement, Total Longterm Care,
Inc. (“TLTC”), Seniors!, Inc. (“Seniors”), and Continental Community Housing, Inc.
(“CCH,” together with TLTC and Seniors, the “Subsidiaries,” together the Subsidiaries
and the Parent Entity, the “Converting Entities™), all Colorado non-profit corporations,
will convert to Colorado general business corporations as provided for in the Plan (the
“Conversion”).

e In connection with the Conversion, the bylaws of the Foundation will be amended and
the Parent Entity will cease to have the right to appoint the members of the Board of
Directors of the Foundation and the Foundation will continue as an independent Colorado
non-profit, tax exempt corporation. Additionally, the Parent Entity will cease to have
governance rights in Johnson Adult Day Program, Inc., a Colorado nonprofit, tax-exempt
corporation (“JADP”), and JADP will continue as a nonprofit corporation affiliated with
the Foundation. The Company and each of the Foundation and JADP will enter into
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transition services agreements upon the Conversion pursuant to which the Company will
provide transition services to the Foundation and JADP in an effort to assist JADP and
the Foundation with the transition to freestanding independent non-profit, tax-exempt
organizations.

e Upon the Conversion, the Resulting Parent Entity will issue shares of Common Stock,
representing 100% of its outstanding stock, to TCO Acquisition Corporation (the
“Buyer”), an entity affiliated with Welsh (the “Issuance”).

e Upon the Conversion, Resulting TLTC and Resulting Seniors will issue shares of
Common Stock, representing 100% of their outstanding stock to the Resulting Parent
Entity, and they will become wholly owned subsidiaries of the Resulting Parent Entity.
Upon the Conversion, Resulting CCH will issue shares of Common Stock, representing
100% of its outstanding stock, to Resulting TLTC, so that it will continue as a wholly
owned subsidiary of TLTC. The effect of the issuances will result in the Buyer becoming
the parent of the Company, including all subsidiaries other than the Foundation and
JADP which will continue independently.

e Following the Conversion and the closing of the transactions contemplated by the SPA,
the Company’s management team and employees will remain in place in order to
continue the operation of the business of the Company. Welsh has also committed to
maintain the headquarters of the Company in Colorado following the Conversion for a
period of at least five (5) years.

e As consideration for the acquisition of the stock of the Resulting Parent Entity, the Buyer
will pay $180,309,100 which will be subject to adjustment to account for net working
capital and closing cash amounts (the “Purchase Price”) and TCO Group Holdings, Inc.,
(the “Parent”), the Welsh affiliate who will be the sole stockholder of the Buyer and,
indirectly, of the Company after the Conversion, will issue shares representing a 5%
interest and valued at $6,068,900 to the Foundation. In connection with the Conversion,
the outstanding Bonds held by the Company will be defeased.

Distribution of Proceeds
The Purchase Price will be distributed as follows:

o All Company expenses incurred in connection with the transactions will be paid
from the Purchase Price.

o $15,842,130 will be held in escrow subject to any indemnification or adjustment
obligations of the Company, to be released to the Foundation at the end of 4 years

from the closing of the transactions.

o The remaining amounts will be paid in immediately available funds to the
Foundation, for use in support of its charitable mission.
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o In addition to the Purchase Price, the Foundation will receive shares in the Parent
representing a 5% interest in the Company.

Terms not otherwise defined in this Attachment have the meanings ascribed to them in the Plan.
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EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered effective as of this 1* day of January, 2012
(“Effective Date”), by and between Total Community Options, Inc. (“Company”), a Colorado
non-profit corporation and Maureen Hewitt (“Hewitt™).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Company employs Hewitt as President and Chief Executive Officer of
Company and its affiliates; and

WHEREAS, Hewitt desires to continue her position with Company in the capacity of
President and CEO (“CEO”) of Company.

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties, in consideration of the mutual covenants,
agreements and representations set forth herein, do hereby agree as follows:

SECTION 1 - EMPLOYMENT

1.1  Company agrees to continue to employ Hewitt as per the terms and conditions
of this Agreement to perform the duties of its CEO. In that capacity Hewitt shall do and
perform all services, acts or things necessary oOr advisable to fulfill the duties and
responsibilities of CEO and as are assigned to Hewitt by the Board of Directors of Company,
pursuant to Hewitt’s job description on file with Company, and as it may be revised by the
Board of Directors. Hewiit shall have such additional duties that the Board of Directors may
from time to time assign as are appropriate for the position of CEO. Hewitt shall at all times
be subject to the direction of the Board of Directors of Company and to the policies and
procedures established by Company, including the most recent personnel policies.

1.2. Outside Activities. During the term of Hewitt’s employment, Hewitt may
engage in outside activities, provided those activities (including, but not limited to:
membership on boards of directors of not-for-profit and for-profit organizations) do not
conflict with Hewitt’s duties and responsibilities hereunder, and provided further that Hewitt
gives written notice to the Chair of the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors of the
Company of any significant outside activity in which Hewitt plans to become involved,
whether or not such activity is pursued for profit.

SECTION II -TERM OF EMPLOYMENT

2.1 The term of employment under this Agreement shall commence as of the
Effective Date written above and shall continue for an indefinite period until terminated
pursuant to Sections V of this Agreement.




SECTION 111 - COMPENSATION

3.1 Base Salary. Company agrees to pay Hewitt an annual base salary,
commensurate with her performance and experience within the compensation philosophy
established by the Board of Directors. Hewitt will be paid her salary per Company’s pay
schedule for executive exempt employees. Company, in its sole discretion, may increase the
base salary as a result of any such review. The Board of Directors may not reduce Hewitt’s
base salary unless Hewitt authorizes it in writing or Company is reducing the base salary of
other similarly-situated executives by a similar percentage.

3.2 Incentive Compensation. In addition to base salary, Hewitt shall be eligible to
participate in such Incentive Compensation program as shall be determined by the Board of
Directors. The receipt of any such Incentive Compensation shall be governed by the terms and
provisions of such program.

3.3  Performance Review. The Governance Committee of Company’s Board of
Directors shall annually review Hewitt’s performance and shall report their conclusions to the
Board. Hewitt will receive an annual review each year and salary adjustments may be made in
accordance with the salary range for CEO’s of comparable healthcare organizations using
executive compensation data as identified by a national executive compensation firm. The
review shall be based upon reasonable goals and objectives of the Company and a
determination of adjustments to salary and incentive compensation based upon Hewitt’s
performance against these goals and objectives.

SECTION IV - BENEFITS
Company agrees to provide at no cost, or provide access to the following benefits:

4.1  Group Benefits. Company shall provide to Hewitt any group or other benefits
(e.g., medical and dental insurance, short-and long-term disability insurance coverage)
provided to senior executives of Company in accordance with the terms and conditions then in
effect. These benefits may be amended from time to time by Company.

4.2  Paid Time Off. Hewitt’s paid time off (“PTO”) and the Extended Illness Bank
(“EIB”) shall be governed by the then current written policy of Company with respect to all
regular, full-time, senior executive employees of Company that are eligible to participate, and
as may be modified in the future, with one year credit. Unused vacation days shall not be
forfeited once they have been earned and, if still unused at the time of Hewitt’s termination of
employment with Company, shall be promptly paid to Hewitt at their then-current value,
based on Hewitt’s rate of pay at the time of Hewitt’s termination of employment. Hewitt shall
be permitted to accrue up to 400 hours of vacation time. If unused, at the time of termination
of employment, for any reason, Hewitt shall be paid the cash value of the accrued vacation
time.




4.3 Retirement Benefits. Hewitt shall be entitled to participate on the same basis as
any other executive of Company, in any pension plans, savings plans, or other types of plans
adopted by Company for the benefit of its employees.

4.4  Executive Benefits. The Board of Directors may provide additional executive
benefits for Hewitt as may be deemed appropriate.

4.5 Business Expenses.

(a) Company shall reimburse Hewitt the amounts included in an approved Business
Expense Report for all reasonable and authorized business expenses incurred by Hewitt in
promoting the business of Company, including but not limited to expenditures for authorized
entertainment and travel.

(b) Each such expenditure shall be reimbursable only if Hewitt furnishes to
Company adequate and other documentary evidence required by Federal and State statutes and
regulation issued by the appropriate taxing authorities for substantiation of that expenditure as
an income tax deduction.

SECTION V - TERMINATION

51 Termination For Cause. Company may terminate this Agreement and Hewitt’s
employment immediately For Cause, automatically upon the death of Hewitt, or Discharge of
Hewitt, as hereinafter defined.

(@) In the event of Hewitt’s death, this Agreement shall terminate at the date of her
death with benefits paid according to the written policy of Company.

(b) "Discharge" shall mean a termination of Hewitt’s employment For Cause by the
Board of Directors of Company. As used herein, the term "For Cause" shall include but is not
limited to:

(1)  Hewitt’s death, physical or mental incapacity;

(2)  Misappropriating any funds or property of Company or any affiliated Company;
or the commission of any act of fraud,

(3)  Attempting to obtain any personal profit from any transaction in which Hewitt
has an interest which is adverse to the interest of Company, unless Hewitt shall have first
obtained the written consent of the Board of Directors;

(4)  Being convicted of a felony;

(5)  Continuously fails to substantially perform the CEO’s duties (for reasons other
than Disability) n a timely or satisfactory manner;
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(6)  Engaging in intentional misconduct, illegal or gross negligent conduct which is
materially injurious to the Company monetarily or otherwise;

(7)  Failure to comply with Company’s Corporate Compliance Program or
Company’s Code of Conduct; or,

(8) Breach of the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

Should the Discharge be For Cause, as set forth in Section 5. 1(b)(1) through (4) above,
Company shall have the right to terminate immediately the employment of Hewitt by delivering
to Hewitt a written notice specifying such cause.

Should the Discharge be For Cause, as set forth in Section 5.1(b)(5), (6), (7) or (8)
above, the Board of Directors of Company may, upon a majority vote of the members of the
Board of Directors, give to Hewitt written notice of such cause for Discharge and Hewitt shall
have fifteen (15) calendar days to respond to and cure, or such time as the Board may allow to
address those items set forth in the notice. After receipt of Hewitt's response to the notice, or
sixty (60) days after the notice, whichever occurs first, Hewitt and the Board shall meet
concerning the Discharge and, if the items set forth in the notice have not been cured or
addressed to the satisfaction of a majority of the members of the Board of Directors of
Company, Hewitt may be deemed Discharged as of the date of the meeting of the Board of
Directors, or such time in the sole discretion of the Board. If Company exercises such right of
termination For Cause, its obligation under this Agreement to make further payments to Hewitt
shall thereupon cease and terminate.

5.2  Voluntary Termination by Hewitt. If Hewitt desires to terminate this
Agreement, Hewitt shall give Company sixty (60) days prior written notice. Upon receipt of
notice by Hewitt, Company at its option, can restrict Hewitt's duties under this Agreement,
however, Hewitt shall be entitled to all compensation and benefits of this Agreement up to the
date of termination, or at Company’s election, Company can immediately terminate all further
duties by Hewitt and compensation and benefits shall terminate upon notice to Hewitt.

5.3  Termination by Hewitt for Good Reason.

(a) Hewitt may terminate her employment with Company for Good Reason which
shall be deemed to occur if Hewitt terminates her employment within six (6) months after: (1)
a significant diminishment in the pature or scope of the authority, power, function or duty
attached to the position which Hewitt currently maintains without the implicit or explicit
request of Hewitt or express consent of Hewitt, where Hewitt was willing and able to continue
performing services for the Company (as further described in Treasury Regulation Section
1.409A-1(n)(1) or (2) a Change of Control (i) (merger, acquisition, affiliation or sale of
substantially all of the Company’s assets or (ii) replacement (for reasons other than death or
disability) within any 12-month period of 50% or more of the voting members of the
Company’s Board of Directors, of Company shall have occurred.
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(b) If Hewitt elects to terminate her employment For Good Reason, Hewitt shall be
entitled to her then current salary to the date on which a notice of termination is delivered to
Company. In addition, Company shall pay Hewitt the bonus Hewitt would have earned under
the Company’s bonus plan in the year that Hewitt was terminated had Hewitt remained in its
employment. Such bonus shall not be paid until Hewitt would normally be paid in accordance
with the Company practices. In addition, Hewitt shall be entitled to receive the Severance
Payment (as defined in Section 5.5 below) at the time of termination.

5.4  Termination Without Cause

At any time during the term of this Agreement, Company may terminate Hewitt without cause,
upon the giving of sixty (60) days advance written notice of such termination or by the mutual
written agreement of Company and Hewitt.

5.5 Severance Payment

(a) In the event of termination in accordance with Sections 5.3 and 5.4 only, Hewitt
shall be entitled to the salary as set forth herein below (“Severance Payment”). Subject to
Section 5.5 (c) below, such Severance Payment will commence immediately following
Hewitt’s termination, and will continue for the period as set forth below. For purposes of this
provision the parties agree that the “Severance Period” shall be 18 months. Such Severance
Payment shall be equal to Hewitt’s monthly base salary e.g., annual salary as of date of
termination for eighteen (18) months or paid to Hewitt in one lump sum. Such payments
owing to Hewitt will be made in accordance with the regular payroll periods of Company then
in effect.

()  During the Severance Period, Hewitt, in addition to receiving the Severance
Payment, shall receive paid COBRA health insurance and those group benefits that Company
has in effect on the date of termination, unless the provision of such Group Benefits by
Company is prohibited by any law, in which case Hewitt shall receive the Severance Payment,
plus a payment in cash equal to the amount of Company’s cost of such benefits. Any cash
payments to Hewitt that are in lieu of benefits will be made in accordance with the regular
payroll periods of Company then in effect. Eligibility for any health insurance or group
benefit is restricted to the benefits that Hewitt has in effect on the date of termination. All
payments made to Hewitt shall be subject to applicable Federal and State tax withholdings.

(c) , Hewitt agrees to: (i) timely execute a release agreement of all claims against
Company (and then not rescind) consistent with the releases executed by terminated executives
of Company, in consideration of the receipt of the Severance Payment paid by Company and
(i) acknowledges that the continued receipt of the Severance Payment will be contingent upon
Hewitt’s cooperating with Company in the transition of Hewitt’s duties and prompt return of
Company’s property in good and operating condition less reasonable use wear and tear.

A (d)  Any interpretation of this Agreement shall be consistent with the intent that the
severance provisions contained herein qualify for the separation pay plan exemption as defined
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in Internal Revenue Code § 409A to the extent the benefits are within the two times limit, and
that any excess payments satisfy the requirements of Internal Revenue Code § 409A. Nothing
herein shall override or conflict with any requirements of the Internal Revenue Code or any
other pertinent regulation or law.

) The Company may postpone payment of the Severance Payment until the last
day on which Hewitt could rescind the release of claims against the Company. If the Company
postpones payments, the first payment of severance after the rescission period expires will
include the Severance Payment that accrued from the date of termination and separation from
service. The Severance Period itself will not be extended or postponed.

® No Severance Payments are payable under this Agreement, and Hewitt forfeits
any unpaid Severance Payments, if Hewitt engages in any activity described in Section 5.6
below.

5.6  Non-Solicitation and Confidentiality

(a) Recruitment of Company Employees. Without the prior written approval of
Company, Hewitt covenants and agrees that, during Hewitt’s employment with Company, and
for a period ending on the first annual anniversary date on which Hewitt’s employment with
Company terminates, Hewitt will not, solicit or recruit, either directly or indirectly, by herself
or on behalf of an entity or person with which she is associated as an owner, employee, agent
or consultant, any then-current customer, client, employee, officer or director of Company.

(b) Confidentiality. For a period of two (2) years following termination of
employment with Company, Hewitt agrees not to use, or disclose for personal gain or for the
benefit of any other organization, or otherwise make known to any person or entity; (i) any
confidential or proprietary knowledge or information of Company, including without
limitation, financial data, suppliers, client records, processes, personnel records, payment
records, and computer systems, as well as any data and records pertaining thereto, which
Hewitt may have acquired in the course of her employment, and (ii) any confidential or
proprietary knowledge or information of confidential nature (including but not limited to all
unpublished matters) of Company relating to, without limitation, the business, properties,
accounting, books, financial records, programs, memoranda, or other records of Company.
Exceptions to the above restrictions include when Hewitt is compelled by legal process to
divulge any of the above information or when that information has become publicly available
without the fault of Hewitt.

©) Enforcement of Provisions. The parties acknowledge and agree that Company
would be irreparably harmed if Hewitt violated the above covenants and the restrictions
contained in this Section 5.6 and that in such event, Company would not have an adequate
remedy at law. The parties therefore agree that Company may, in its sole discretion, seek an
order enjoining any breach of the above covenants, without prejudice to any other right or
remedy to which Company may be entitled at law or equity. The parties further agree that, in
any action for specific performance of Hewitt’s covenants set forth in this Section 5.6,
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Company shall be entitled to all reasonable costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’
fees incurred in connection therewith.

SECTION VI ---INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION

The Company shall, to the extent permitted by law, include Hewitt during the term of
this Agreement under any directors and officers liability insurance policy maintained for its
directors and officers, which coverage shall be at least as favorable to Hewitt in the amount
and each other material respect as the coverage of other directors and officers covered thereby.
The Company’s obligation to provide insurance and indemnification for Hewitt shall survive
expiration or termination of this Agreement with respect to proceedings or threatened
proceedings based on acts or omissions of Hewitt occurring during Hewitt’s employment with
the Company or with any affiliated company. Such obligations shall be binding upon the
Company’s successors and assigns and shall inure to the benefit of Hewitt’s heirs and personal

representatives.
SECTION VII - DISPUTE RESOLUTION

(a) The parties agree to negotiate in good faith to resolve any controversy or claim
arising out of or relating to this Agreement, or the breach thereof. If any party to this
Agreement believes that such a controversy or claim has arisen, that party may give written
notice to the other party within one hundred and twenty (120) days of the event, controversy or
claim requesting a negotiation of the matter. The parties and their representatives, if they
choose to be represenied, shall meet at a mutually acceptable time and place within thirty 30)
days after the date of the initial notice, and thereafter as often as they reasonably deem
necessary, to attempt to resolve the dispute.

(b)  If a resolution of the matter is not reached within forty-five (45) days of the
initial notice described above, the matter shall be submitted to arbitration.

(c) Any dispute not settled through the process set forth above shall be submitted to
final and binding arbitration, at Company’s expense, before the Judicial Arbiter Group, Inc.,
of Denver, Colorado (or similar arbitration organization agreed upon by the parties), with a
single arbitrator whom the parties jointly select, with the parties using their best efforts to
complete such arbitration as quickly as is reasonably practical in accordance with the Colorado
Rules of Civil Procedure. This includes all disputes arising out of Hewitt’s employment by and
other relation and interaction with Company, whether arising during the term of Hewitt’s
employment or as a result of or after the termination of Hewitt’s employment, and whether the
dispute involves an alleged tort, contract breach, or any other kind of claim. Judgment upon
the award may be entered by any court having jurisdiction thereof. Subject to (@) above, to the
fullest extent permitted by law, this arbitration provision is intended to be, and is, the parties
exclusive method of resolving disputes, and is in lieu of any other rights or remedies to which
they may otherwise be entitled, either in law or in equity. Company and Hewitt expressly
waive their rights, if any, to have controversies between them decided by court or jury.




@ All information relating to the procedures described in this Section VII shall be
treated as confidential and as inadmissible settlement discussion protected by Rule 408 of the
Federal Rules of Evidence and the principles expressed therein.

(¢)  The procedures specified in this Section VII shall be the exclusive procedures
for the resolution of disputes; provided, however, that either party may seek preliminary
judicial relief if in the judgment of that party such relief is necessary to avoid irreparable
damage. Despite the institution of any such judicial proceedings, the parties shall continue to
participate in good faith in the arbitration. As between the parties, all applicable statutes of
limitation shall be tolled while the procedures specified in this Section VII are pending; the
parties shall take all actions, if any, required to effect such tolling.

SECTION VIII - NON-ASSIGNABILITY; BINDING EFFECT

This Agreement shall be non-assignable and shall be binding upon, and shall inure to
the benefit of Company’s and its successors, and Hewitt, her beneficiaries, heirs, and personal
representatives.

SECTION IX - AMENDMENTS TO AGREEMENT

This Agreement shall supersede all prior agreements. Any amendments to this
Agreement must be in writing and signed by Company and Hewitt; oral discussions will not
modify this Agreement.

SECTION X - GOVERNING LAW - SEVERABILITY

This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Colorado. The invalidity
or unenforceability of any provision of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or
enforceability of any other provision of this Agreement.

SECTION XI - ENTIRE AGREEMENT

Thus Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the
employment relationship hereof and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous agreements,
promises or representations of the parties. No provision of this Agreement may be modified or
waived except in a document signed by both parties.

SECTION XII - NOTICES

Any notice required or permitted to be given pursuant to this Agreement shall be given
in writing and shall be delivered personally or deemed delivered three (3) days after being
deposited in the United Stated mail, postage prepaid, addressed to the party, at such party’s
last known address.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement this / / day
of AL 2013,

Total Community Options, Inc. Total Community Options, Inc.

e —

Janice Torrez \D Mauréen Hewitt
Chair of the Board of Directors President and Chief Executive Officer




EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

(“Effective Date™), by and between Total Community Options, Inc. (“Company”), a Colorado
» non-profit corporation and Vanessa D. Walton (“Walton”). '

RECITALS

Ol 19,
THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered effective as of this day of A
om!

WHEREAS, Company employs Walton as Senior Vice President and General Counsel
of Company and its affiliates; and

WHEREAS, Walton desires to continue her employment with Cdmpany in the capacity
of Senior Vice President and General Counsel (“GC").

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties, in consideration of the mutual covenants, agreements
and representations set forth herein, do hereby agree as follows:

SECTION I - EMPLOYMENT

1.1 Company agrees to continue to employ Walton to perform the duties of GC as
_per the terms and conditions of this Agreement. In that capacity Walton shall do and perform
all services, acts or things necessary or advisable to fulfill the duties and responsibilities of GC
and as are assigned to Walton by the Chief Executive Officer of Company, pursuant to
Walton’s job description on file with Company. Walton shall at all times be subject to the
policies and procedures established by Company, including the most recent personnel policies.

SECTION II -TERM OF EMPLOYMENT

21  The term of employment under this Agreement shall commence as of the
Effective Date written above and shall continue for an indefinite period until terminated
pursuant to Sections V of this Agreement.

SECTION III - COMPENSATION

3.1 Base Salary. Company agrees to pay Walton an annual base salary
commensurate with her performance and experience to be within the compensation philosophy
established by the Company. Walton will be paid her salary per Company’s pay schedule for
executive exempt employees

3.2  Incentive Compensation. In addition to Base Salary, Walton shall be eligible to
participate in such Incentive Compensation program as shall be determined by Company. The
receipt of any such Incentive Compensation shall be governed by the terms and provisions of
such program.

3.3  Performance Review. The Chief Executive Officer of Company shall annually
review Walton’s performance in accordance with the Human Resources policy of Company for
senior executives.

SECTION IV - BENEFITS

Company agrees to provide at no cost, or provide access to the following benefits:
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4.1 Group Benefits. Company shall provide to Walton any group or other benefits
(e.g., medical and dental insurance, short-and long-term disability insurance coverage)
provided to senior executives of Company in accordance with the terms and conditions then in
effect. These benefits may be amended from time to time by Company.

4.2  Paid Time Off. Walton’s paid time off (“PTO”) and the Extended Illness Bank
(“EIB”) shall be shall be governed by the then current written policy of Company with respect
to all regular, full-time, senior executive employees of Company that are eligible to participate,
and as may be modified in the future.

4.3  Retirement Benefits. Walton shall be entitled to participate on the same basis as
any other executive of Company, in any pension plans, savings plans, or other types of plans
adopted by Company for the benefit of its employees. '

4.4 Executive Benefits. The Board of Directors may provide additional executive
benefits as may be deemed appropriate.

SECTION V - TERMINATION

51 Termination For Cause. Company may terminate Walton’s employment
immediately “For Cause”. In the event of Walton’s death, this Agreement shall terminate at
the date of her death with benefits paid according to the written policy of Company.

(a) As used herein, the term "For Cause" shall include but is not limited to:
(1)  Walton’s death, physical or mental incapacity;

(2)  Misappropriating any funds or property of Company or any affiliated Company;
or the commission of any act of fraud;

(3)  Attempting to obtain any personal profit_from any transaction in which Walton
has an interest which is adverse to the interest of Company, unless Walton shall have first
obtained the written consent of Company;

()] Being convicted of a felony;
(5)  Loss of any professional license required to perform the duties of the position;

(6)  Continuously fails to substantially perform the GC’s duties (for reasons other
than Disability) in a timely or satisfactory manner;

(7)  Engaging in intentional misconduct, illegal or negligent conduct which is
materially injurious to the Company monetarily or otherwise;

(8)  Failure to comply with Medicare and Medicaid rules and regulations;

(9)  Failure to comply ‘with Company’s Corporate Compliance Program or
Company’s Code of Conduct; or, :

(10)  Breach of the terms and conditions of this Agreement.
Should the Termination be For Cause, as set forth in Section 5.1(a)(1) through (4)

above, Company shall have the right to terminate immediately the employment of Walton by
delivering to Walton a written notice specifying such cause.
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Company iay terminate this Agreement For Cause for any other reason set forth in this
Section upon delivering to Walton a written notice specifying such cause and the grounds for
termination. Company may terminate this Agreement pursuant to this Section, without
prejudice to any other remedy to which Company may be entitled in law or in equity. In the.
event Walton is terminated For Cause, Walton shall be entitled to her salary and accrued
vacation pay prorated through the date of termination. '

52  Voluntary Termination by Walton. If Walton desires to terminate this
Agreement, Walton shall give Company sixty (60) days prior written notice. Upon receipt of
notice by Walton, Company at its option, can restrict Walton duties under this Agreement,
however, Walton shall be entitled to all compensation and benefits of this Agreement up to the
date of termination, or at Company’s election, Company can immediately terminate all further
duties by Walton and compensation and benefits shall terminate upon notice to Walton.

5.3 Termination by Walton for Good Reason.

()  Walton may terminate her employment with Company for Good Reason which
shall be deemed to occur if Walton terminates her employment within six (6) months after: (1)
a significant diminishment in the nature or scope of the authority, power, function or duty
attached to the position which Walton currently maintains without the implicit or explicit
request of Walton or express consent of Walton, where Walton was willing and able to
continue performing services for the Company (as further described in Treasury Regulation
Section 1.409A-1(n)(1) Walton or (2) a Change of Control merger, acquisition, affiliation or
sale of substantially all of the Company’s assets shall have occurred.

®) If Walton elects to terminate her employment For Good Reason, Walton shall be
entitled to her then current salary to the date on which a notice of termination is delivered to
Company. In addition, Company shall pay Walton the bonus Walton would have earned under
the Company’s bonus plan in the year that Walton was terminated had Walton remained in its
employment. Such bonus shall not be paid until Walton would normally be paid in accordance
with the Company practices. In addition, Walton shall be entitled to receive the Severance

Payment (as defined in Section 5.5 below) at the time of termination.

5.4 Termination Without Cause

At any time during the term of this Agreement, Company may terminate Walton
without cause, upon the giving of sixty (60) days advance written notice of such termination or
by the mutual written agreement of Company and Walton.

5.5 Severance Payment

(a) In the event of termination in accordance with Sections 5.3 and 5.4 only, Walton
shall be entitled to the salary as set forth herein below (“Severance Payment”). Subject to
Section 5.5(c) below, such Severance Payment will commence immediately following Walton’s
termination, and will continue for the period as set forth below. For purposes of this provision
the parties agree that the “Severance Payment” shall be 6 months plus two months for each
consecutive year of service, up to a maximum period of twelve (12) months. In the event of
termination in accordance with Sections 5.3 and 5.4 only, Walton shall be entitled to the salary
as set forth herein below (“Severance Payment”). Such Severance Payment shall be equal to
Walton’s annual salary in effect at the time of termination.

(b)  During the Severance Period, Walton, in addition to receiving the Severance
Payment, shall receive paid COBRA health insurance and those Group Benefits that Company
has in effect on the date of termination, unless the provision of such group benefits by
Company is prohibited by any law, in which case Walton shall receive the Severance Payment,
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plus a payment in cash equal to the amount of Company’s cost of such benefits. Any cash
payments to Walton that are in lieu of benefits will be made in accordance with the regular
payroll periods of Company then in effect. Eligibility for any health insurance or group

“benefit is restricted to the benefits that Walton has in effect on the date of termination. All

payments made to Walton shall be subject to applicable Federal and State tax withholdings.

(c)  Walton agrees to: (i) timely execute a release agreement of all claims against
Company (and then not rescind) consistent with the releases executed by terminated executives
of Company, in consideration of the receipt of the Severance Payment paid by Company, and
(i) acknowledges that the continued receipt of the Severance Payment will be contingent upon
Walton cooperating with Company in the transition of Walton’s duties and prompt return of

Company’s property in good and operating condition less reasonable use wear and tear.

@) Any interpretation of this Agreement shall be consistent with the intent that
the severance provisions contained herein qualify for the separation pay plan exemption as
defined in Internal Revenue Code § 409A to the extent the benefits are within the two times
limit, and that any excess payments satisfy the requirements of Internal Revenue Code § 409A.
Nothing herein shall override or conflict with any requirements of the Internal Revenue Code
or any other pertinent regulation or law.

© The Company may postpone payment of the Severance Payment until the last
day on which Walton could rescind the release of claims against the Company. If the
Company postpones payments, the first payment of severance after the rescission period
expires will include the Severance Payment that accrued from the date of termination and
separation from service. The Severance Period itself will not be extended or postponed.

® No Sevefance Payments are payable under this Agreement and Walton forfeits
any unpaid Severance Payments, if Walton engages in any activity described in Section 5.6
below.

5.6  Non-Solicitation and Confidentiality

(@  Recruitment of Company Employees. Without the prior written approval of
Company, Walton covenants and agrees that, during Walton employment with Company, and
for a period ending on the first annual anniversary date on which Walton employment with
Company terminates, Walton will not, solicit or recruit, either directly or indirectly, by
herself or on behalf of an entity or person with which she is associated as an owner, employee,
agent or consultant, any then-current customer, client, employee, officer or director of
Company.

()  Confidentiality. For a period of two (2) years following termination of
employment with Company, Walton agrees not to use, or disclose for personal gain or for the
benefit of any other organization, or otherwise make known to any person or entity: (i) any
confidential or proprietary knowledge or information of Company, including without
limitation, financial data, suppliers, client records, processes, personnel records, payment
records, and computer systems, as well as any data and records pertaining thereto, which
Walton may have acquired in the course of her employment, and (ii) any confidential or
proprietary knowledge or information of confidential pature (including but not limited to all
unpublished matters) of Company relating to, without limitation, the business, properties,
accounting, books, financial records, programs, memoranda, or other records of Company.
Exceptions to the above restrictions include when Walton is compelled by legal process to
divulge any of the above information or when that information has become publicly available
without the fault of Walton.
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(c)  Enforcement of Provisions. The parties acknowledge and agree that Company
would be irreparably harmed if Walton violated the above covenants and the restrictions
contained in this Section 5.6 and that in such event, Company would not have an adequate
remedy at law. The parties therefore agree that Company, may in its sole discretion, seek an
order enjoining any breach of the above covenants, without prejudice to any other right or
remedy to which Company may be entitled at law or equity. The parties further agree that, in
any action for specific performance of Walton covenants set forth in this Section 56, Company
shall be entitled to all reasonable costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees
incurred in connection therewith.

SECTION VI - INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION

The Company shall, to the extent permitted by law, include Walton during the term of this
Agreement under any directors and officers liability insurance policy maintained for its
directors and officers, which coverage shall be at least as favorable to ‘Walton in the amount
and each other material respect as the coverage of other directors and officers covered thereby.
The Company’s obligation to provide insurance and indemnification for Walton shall survive
expiration or termination of this Agreement with respect to proceedings or threatened
proceedings based on acts or omissions of Walton occurring during Walton employment with
the Company or with any affiliated company. Such obligations shall be binding upon the
Company’s successors an assigns and shall inure to the benefit of Walton heirs and personal
representatives. :

SECTION VII - DISPUTE RESOLUTION

(a) The parties agree to negotiate in good faith to resolve any controversy or claim
arising out of or relating to this Agreement, or the breach thereof. If any. party to this
Agreement believes that such a controversy or claim has arisen, that party may give written
notice to the other party within one hundred and twenty (120) days of the event, controversy or
claim requesting a megotiation of the matter. The parties and their representatives, if they
choose to be represented, shall meet at a mutually acceptable time and place within thirty (30)
days after the date of the initial notice, and thereafter as often as they reasonably deem
necessary, to attempt to resolve the dispute.

(b)  If a resolution of the matter is not reached within forty-five (45) days of the
initial notice described above, the matter shall be submitted to arbitration.

(c)  Any dispute not settled through the process set forth above shall be submitted to
final and binding arbitration, at Company’s expense, before the Judicial Arbiter Group, Inc.,
of Denver, Colorado (or similar arbitration organization agreed upon by the parties), with a
single arbitrator whom the parties jointly select, with the parties using their best efforts to
complete such arbitration as quickly as is reasonably practical in accordance with the Colorado
Rules of Civil Procedure This includes all disputes arising out of Walton employment by and
other relation and interaction with Company, whether arising during the term of Walton
employment or as a result of or after the termination of Walton employment, and whether the
dispute involves an alleged tort, contract breach, or any other kind of claim. Judgment upon
the award may be entered by any court having jurisdiction thereof. Subject to (a) above, to the
fullest extent permitted by law, this arbitration provision is intended to be, and is, the parties
exclusive method of resoiving disputes, and is in lieu of any other rights or remedies to which
they may otherwise be entitled, either in law or in equity. Company and Walton expressly
waive their rights, if any, to have controversies between them decided by court or jury.
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(d  All information relating to the procedures described in this Section VII shall be
treated as confidential and as inadmissible settlement discussion protected by Rule 408 of the
Federal Rules of Evidence and the principles expressed therein.

- (¢)  The procedures specified in this Section VII shall be the exclusive procedures
~ for the resolution of disputes; provided, however, that either party may seek preliminary
judicial relief if in the judgment of that party such relief is necessary to avoid irreparable
damage. Despite the institution of any such judicial proceedings, the parties shall continue to
participate in good faith in the arbitration. As between the parties, all applicable statutes of
 limitation shall be tolled while the procedures specified in this Section VII are pending; the
parties shall take all actions, if any, required to effect such tolling.

SECTION VIII - NON-ASSIGNABILITY; BINDING EFFECT

_ This Agreement shall be non-assignable and shall be binding upon, and shall inure to
the benefit of Company’s and its successors, and Walton, her beneficiaries, heirs, and personal
representatives.

SECTION IX- AMENDMENTS TO AGREEMENT

This Agreement shall supersede all prior agreements. Any amendments to this
Agreement must be in writing and signed by Company and Walton; oral discussions will not
modify this Agreement. :

SECTION X - GOVERNING LAW - SEVERABILITY

This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Colorado. The invalidity
or unenforceability of any provision of this Agreement shall not' affect the validity or
enforceability of any other provision of this Agreement.

SECTION XI - ENTIRE AGREEMENT

Thus Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the
employment relationship hereof and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous agreements,
promises or representations of the parties. No provision of this Agreement may be modified or
waived except in a document signed by both parties.

SECTION XII - NOTICES

Any notice required or permitted to be given pursuant to this Agreement shall be given
in writing and shall be delivered personally or deemed delivered three (3) days after being
deposited in the United Stated mail, postage prepaid, addressed to the party, at such party’s
last known address.
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EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered effective as of this | St day of (il 2013

(“Effective Date™), by and between Total Community Options, Inc. (“Company”), a Colorado
non-profit corporation and Angela Oakley (*Oakley™).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Company employs Oakley as Chief Financial Officer of Company and its
affiliates; and

~ WHEREAS, Oakley desires to continue her employment with Company in the capacity
of Chief Financial Officer (“CFO™).

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties, in consideration of the mutual covenants, agreements
and representations set forth herein, do hereby agree as follows:

SECTION I - EMPLOYMENT

1.1 Company agrees to continue to employ Oakley (o perform the duties of CFO as
per the terms and conditions of this Agreement. In that capacity Oakley shall do and perform
all services, acts or things necessary or advisable to fulfill the duties and responsibilities of
CFO and as are assigned to Oakley by the Chief Executive Officer of Company, pursuant to
Oakley’s job description on file with Company. Oakley shall at all times be subject to the
policies and procedures established by Company, including the most recent personnel policies.

SECTION 1T -TERM OF EMPLOYMENT

2.1 The term of employment under this Agreement shall commence as of the
Effective Date written above and shall continue for an indefinite period until terminated
pursuant to Sections V of this Agreement.

SECTION TiI - COMPENSATION

3.1 Base Salary. Company agrees (0 pay QOakley an annual base salary

commensurate with her performance and experience within the compensation philosophy
established by the Company. Oakley will be paid her salary per Company’s pay schedule for
executive exempt employees

32 Incentive Compensation. In addition to Base Salary, Qakley shall be eligible to
participate in such Incentive Compensation program as shall be determined by Company. The
receipt of any such Incentive Compensation shall be governed by the terms and provisions of
such program.

33 Performance Review. The Chief Executive Officer of Company shall annually
review Oakley’s performance in accordance with the Human Resources policy of Company for
Senior executives.

SECTION IV - BENEFITS

Company agrees to provide at no ¢ost, or provide access to the following benefits:
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4.1  Group Benefits. Company shall provide to Oakley any group or other benefits
(e.g., medical and dental insurance, short-and long-term disability insurance coverage)
provided to senior executives of Company in accordance with the terms and conditions then in
effect. These benefits may be amended from time to time by Company.

4.2  Paid Time Off. Oakley’s paid time off (“PTO”) and the Extended Illness Bank
“EIB”) shall be shall be governed by the then current written policy of Company with respect
to all regular, full-time, senior executive employees of Company that are eligible to participate,

and as may be modified in the future.

43 Retirement Benefits. Oakley shall be entitled to participate on the same basis as
any other executive of Company, in any pension plans, savings plans, or other types of plans
adopted by Company for the benefit of its employees.

4.4 Executive Benefits. The Board of Directors may provide additional executive
benefits as may be deemed appropriate.

SECTION V - TERMINATION

51 Termination For Cause. Company may terminate Oakley’s employment
immediately “For Cause”. In the event of Oakley’s death, this Agreement shall terminate as
of the date of her death with benefits paid according to the written policy of Company.

(a) As used herein, the term "For Cause" shall include but is not limited to:
(1)  Oakley’s death, physical or mental incapacity;

(2)  Misappropriating any funds or property of Company or any affiliated Company;
or the commission of any act of fraud,;

(3)  Attempting to obtain any personal profit from any transaction in which Oakley
has an interest which is adverse to the interest of Company, unless Oakley shall have first
obtained the written consent of Company;

@ Being convicted of a felony;

(5)  Loss of any professional license required to perform the duties of the position;

(6)  Continuously fails to substantially perform the CFO’s duties (for reasons other
than Disability) in a timely or satisfactory manner; :

(7)  Engaging in intentional misconduct, illegal or negligent conduct which is
materially injurious to the Company monetarily or otherwise;

(8)  Failure to comply with Medicare and Medicaid rules and regulations;

(9)  Failure to prepare financial statements of Company and its affiliated entities in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(10) Failure to comply with Company’s Corporate Compliance Program or
Company’s Code of Conduct; or,

(11)  Breach of the terms and conditions of this Agreement.
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Should the Termination be For Cause, as set forth in Section 5.1(a)(1) through (5)
above, Company shall have the right to terminate immediately the employment of Oakley by
delivering to Oakley a written notice specifying such cause.

Company may terminate this Agreement For Cause for any other reason set forth in this
Section upon delivering to Oakley a written notice specifying such cause and the grounds for
termination. Company may terminate this Agreement pursuant to this Section, without
prejudice to any other remedy to which Company may be entitled in law or in equity. In the
event Oakley is terminated For Cause, Oakley shall be entitled to her salary and accrued
vacation pay prorated through the date of termination.

5.2  Voluntary Termination by Oakley. If Oakley desires to terminate this
Agreement, Oakley shall give Company sixty (60) days prior written notice. Upon receipt of
notice by Oakley, Company at its option, can restrict Oakley duties under this Agreement,
however, Oakley shall be entitled to all compensation and benefits of this Agreement up to the
date of termination, or at Company’s election, Company can immediately terminate all further
duties by Oakley and compensation and benefits shall terminate upon notice to Oakley.

5.3 Termination by Oakley for Good Reason.

(a) Oakley may terminate her employment with Company for Good Reason which
shall be deemed to occur if Oakley terminates her employment within six (6) months after: (1)
a significant diminishment in the nature or scope of the authority, power, function or duty
attached to the position which Oakley currently maintains without the implicit or explicit
request of Oakley or express consent of Oakley, where Oakley was willing and able to
continue performing services for the Company (as further described in Treasury Regulation
Section 1.409A-1(n)(1), or (2) a Change of Control: merger, acquisition, affiliation or sale of
substantially all of the Company’s assets of Company shall have occurred.

(b)  If Oakley elects to terminate her employment For Good Reason, Oakley shall be
entitled to her then current salary to the date on which a notice of termination is delivered to
Company. In addition, Company shall pay Oakley the bonus Oakley would have earned under
the Company’s bonus plan in the year that Oakley was terminated had Oakley remained in its
employment. Such bonus shall not be paid until Oakley would normally be paid in accordance
with the Company practices. In addition, Oakley shall be entitled to receive the Severance
Payment (as defined in Section 5.5 below) at the time of termination.

5.4 Termination Without Cause

At any time during the term of this Agreement, Company may terminate Oakley
without cause, upon the giving of sixty (60) days advance written notice of such termination or
by the mutual written agreement of Company and Oakley.

5.5 Severance Payment

(a) In the event of termination in accordance with Sections 5.3 and 5.4 only, Oakley
shall be entitled to the salary as set forth herein below (“Severance Payment”). Subject to
Section 5.5(c) below, such Severance Payment will commence immediately following Oakley’s
termination, and will continue for the period as set forth below. For purposes of this provision
the parties agree that the “Severance Period” shall be 6 months plus two months for each
consecutive year of service, up to a maximum period of twelve (12) months. In the event of
termination in accordance with Sections 5.3 and 5.4 only, Oakley shall be entitled to the salary
as set forth herein below (“Severance Payment”). Such Severance Payment shall be equal to
Oakley’s annual salary in effect at the time of termination.

Oakley_2013




()  During the Severance Period, Oakley, in addition to receiving the Severance
Payment, shall receive paid COBRA health insurance and those Group Benefits that Company
has in effect on the date of termination, unless the provision of such group benefits by
Company is prohibited by any law, in which case Oakley shall receive the Severance Payment,
plus a payment in cash equal to the amount of Company’s cost of such benefits. Any cash
payments to Oakley that are in lieu of benefits will be made in accordance with the regular
payroll periods of Company then in effect. Eligibility for any health insurance or group
benefit is restricted to the benefits that Oakley has in effect on the date of termination. All
payments made to Oakley shall be subject to applicable Federal and State tax withholdings.

(© Oakley agrees to: (i) timely execute a release agreement of all claims against
Company (and then not rescind) consistent with the releases executed by terminated executives
of Company, in consideration of the receipt of the Severance Payment paid by Company, and
(ii) acknowledges that the continued receipt of the Severance Payment will be contingent upon
Oakley cooperating with Company in the transition of Oakley’s duties and prompt return of
Company’s property in good and operating condition less reasonable use wear and tear.

@ Any interpretation of this Agreement shall be consistent with the intent that
the severance provisions contained herein qualify for the separation pay plan exemption as
defined in Internal Revenue Code § 409A to the extent the benefits are within the two times
limit, and that any excess payments satisfy the requirements of Internal Revenue Code § 409A.
Nothing herein shall override or conflict with any requirements of the Internal Revenue Code
or any other pertinent regulation or law.

(e) The Company may postpone payment of the Severance Payment until the last
day on which Oakley could rescind the release of claims against the Company. If the
Company postpones payments, the first payment of severance after the rescission period
expires will include the Severance Payment that accrued from the date of termination and
separation from service. The Severance Period itself will not be extended or postponed.

® No Severance Payments are payable under this Agreement and Oakley forfeits
any unpaid Severance Payments, if Oakley engages in any activity described in Section 5.6
below.

5.6 Non-Solicitation and Confidentiality

(a) Recruitment of Company Employees. Without the prior written approval of
Company, Oakley covenants and agrees that, during Oakley employment with Company, and
for a period ending on the first annual anniversary date on which Oakley employment with
Company terminates, Oakley will not, solicit or recruit, either directly or indirectly, by
herself or on behalf of an entity or person with which she is associated as an owner, employee,
agent or consultant, any then-current customer, client, employee, officer or director of
Company.

()  Confidentiality. For a period of two (2) years following termination of
employment with Company, Oakley agrees not to use, or disclose for personal gain or for the
benefit of any other organization, or otherwise make known to any person or entity: (i) any
confidential or proprietary knowledge or information of Company, including without
limitation, financial data, suppliers, client records, processes, personnel records, payment
records, and computer systems, as well as any data and records pertaining thereto, which
Oakley may have acquired in the course of her employment, and (i) any confidential or
proprietary knowledge or information of confidential nature (including but not limited to all
unpublished matters) of Company relating to, without limitation, the business, properties,
accounting, books, financial records, programs, memoranda, or other records of Company.
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Exceptions to the above restrictions include when Oakley is compelled by legal process to
divulge any of the above information or when that information has become publicly available
without the fault of Oakley.

(© Enforcement of Provisions. The parties acknowledge and agree that Company
would be irreparably harmed if Oakley violated the above covenants and the restrictions
contained in this Section 5.6 and that in such event, Company would not have an adequate
remedy at law. The parties therefore agree that Company, may in its sole discretion, seek an
order enjoining any breach of the above covenants, without prejudice to any other right or
remedy to which Company may be entitled at law or equity. The parties further agree that, in
any action for specific performance of Oakley covenants set forth in this Section 56, Company
shall be entitled to all reasonable costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees
incurred in connection therewith.

SECTION VI - INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION

The Company shall, to the extent permitted by law, include Oakley during the term of this
Agreement under any directors and officers liability insurance policy maintained for its
directors and officers, which coverage shall be at least as favorable to Oakley in the amount
and each other material respect as the coverage of other directors and officers covered thereby.
The Company’s obligation to provide insurance and indemnification for Oakley shall survive
expiration or termination of this Agreement with respect to proceedings or threatened
proceedings based on acts or omissions of Oakley occurring during Oakley employment with
the Company or with any affiliated company. Such obligations shall be binding upon the
Company’s successors and assigns and shall inure to the benefit of Oakley heirs and personal

representatives.

SECTION VII - DISPUTE RESOLUTION

(a) The parties agree to negotiate in good faith to resolve any controversy or claim
arising out of or relating to this Agreement, or the breach thereof. If any party to this
Agreement believes that such a controversy or claim bas arisen, that party may give written
notice to the other party within one hundred and twenty (120) days of the event, controversy or
claim requesting a negotiation of the matter. The parties and their representatives, if they
choose to be represented, shall meet at a mutually acceptable time and place within thirty (30)
days after the date of the initial notice, and thereafter as often as they reasonably deem
necessary, to attempt to resolve the dispute.

(b)  If a resolution of the matter is not reached within forty-five (45) days of the
initial notice described above, the matter shall be submitted to arbitration.

() Any dispute not settled through the process set forth above shall be submitted to
final and binding arbitration, at Company’s expense, before the Judicial Arbiter Group, Inc.,
of Denver, Colorado (or similar arbitration organization agreed upon by the parties), with a
single arbitrator whom the parties jointly select, with the parties using their best efforts to
complete such arbitration as quickly as is reasonably practical in accordance with the Colorado
Rules of Civil Procedure This includes all disputes arising out of Oakley employment by and
other relation and interaction with Company, whether arising during the term of Oakley
employment or as a result of or after the termination of Oakley employment, and whether the
dispute involves an alleged tort, contract breach, or any other kind of claim. Judgment upon
the award may be entered by any court having jurisdiction thereof. Subject to (a) above, to the
fullest extent permitted by law, this arbitration provision is intended to be, and is, the parties
exclusive method of resolving disputes, and is in lieu of any other rights or remedies to which
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they may otherwise be entitled, either in law or in equity. Company and Oakley expressly
waive their rights, if any, to have controversies between them decided by court or jury.

(@  All information relating to the procedures described in this Section VII shall be
treated as confidential and as inadmissible settlement discussion protected by Rule 408 of the
Federal Rules of Evidence and the principles expressed therein.

(¢)  The procedures specified in this Section VII shall be the exclusive procedures
for the resolution of disputes; provided, however, that either party may seek preliminary
judicial relief if in the judgment of that party such relief is necessary to avoid irreparable
damage. Despite the institution of any such judicial proceedings, the parties shall continue to
participate in good faith in the arbitration. As between the parties, all applicable statutes of
limitation shall be tolled while the procedures specified in this Section VII are pending; the
parties shall take all actions, if any, required to effect such tolling.

SECTION VIII - NON-ASSIGNABILITY; BINDING EFFECT

This Agreement shall be non-assignable and shall be binding upon, and shall inure to
the benefit of Company’s and its successors, and Oakley, her beneficiaries, heirs, and personal
representatives.

SECTION IX- AMENDMENTS TO AGREEMENT

This Agreement shall supersede all prior agreements. Any amendments to this
Agreement must be in writing and signed by Company and Oakley; oral discussions will not
modify this Agreement.

SECTION X - GOVERNING LAW - SEVERABILITY

This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Colorado. The invalidity
or unenforceability of any provision of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or
enforceability of any other provision of this Agreement.

SECTION XI - ENTIRE AGREEMENT

Thus Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the
employment relationship hereof and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous agreements,
promises or representations of the parties. No provision of this Agreement may be modified or
waived except in a document signed by both parties.

SECTION XII - NOTICES
Any notice required or permitted to be given pursuant to this Agreement shall be given
in writing and shall be delivered personally or deemed delivered three (3) days after being

deposited in the United Stated mail, postage prepaid, addressed to the party, at such party’s
last known address.
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EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered effective as of this i nd day of
\\w\v\,\ , 201} (“Effective Date™), by and between Total Community Options, Inc.
(“Comgaﬂy”), a Colorado non-profit corporation, and Lisa Price, M.D. (“Executive”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Executive has been employed with Company as Lead Medical Director for
Company and/or its affiliates; and

WHEREAS, Company desires to transfer and promote Executive to Chief Quality Officer;
and Executive desires to continue her employment with Company in the position of Chief Quality
Officer; and,

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties, in consideration of the mutual covenants, agreements
and representations set forth herein, do hereby agree as follows:

SECTION I - EMPLOYMENT

1.1 Company agrees to continue to employ Executive to perform the duties of Chief
Quality Officer, as per the terms and conditions of this Agreement. In that capacity Executive
shall do and perform all services, acts or things necessary or advisable to fulfill the duties and
responsibilities of the Chief Quality Officer and as are assigned to Executive by the Chief
Executive Officer of Company, pursuant to Executive’s job description on file with Company,
which may be modified from time to time. Exccutive shall at all times be subject to the policies,
procedures and practices established by Company, in effect at the time, including the most recent
personnel policies.

SECTION II - TERM OF EMPLOYMENT

2.1 The term of employment under this Agreement shall commence as of the Effective
Date written above and shall continue for an indefinite period until terminated pursuant to Section
V of this Agreement.

SECTION III - COMPENSATION

3.1 Base Salary. Company agrees (o pay Exccutive an annual base salary
commensurate with her performance and experience within the compensation philosophy
established by Company. Executive will be paid her salary per Company’s pay schedule for
executive exempt employees.

3.2 Incentive Bonus Compensation. During Executive’s employment, in addition to
Base Salary, Executive shall be eligible, but not required, to receive a discretionary annual
performance bonus, (“Bonus”) based upon mutually agreed upon performance goals and the
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performance of the Company, as shall be determined by Company and the Board of Directors.
The award and the amount of the Bonus, if any, will be decided in the sole discretion of the Chief
Executive Officer and/or the Board of the Directors.

33  Performance Review. The Chief Executive Officer of Company shall annually
evaluate Executive’s performance in accordance with the Company guidelines and practices for
senior executives.

SECTION 1V - BENEFITS
Company agrees to provide or to provide aceess to the following benefits:

4.1 Benefits. Company shall provide to Executive any group or other benefits (e.g.,
medical and dental insurance, short-and long-term disability insurance coverage) provided to
senior executives of Company in accordance with the terms and conditions then in effect. These
benefits may be amended from time to time by Company.

42  Paid Time Off. Executive’s paid time off (“PTO”) and the Extended IlIness Bank
(“EIB”) shall be governed by the then current written policy of Company with respect to all
regular, full-time, senior executive employees of Company that are eligible to participate, and as
may be modified in the future.

43  Retirement Benefits. Executive shall be entitled to participate in any pension
plans, savings plans, or other types of retirement plans adopted by Company for the benefit of its
employees. These benefits may be amended from time to time by Company.

4.4  Executive Benefits. The Board of Directors may provide additional executive
benefits as may be deemed appropriate.

SECTION V - TERMINATION

5.1 Termination for Cause. Company may terminate Executive’s employment
immediately for “Cause”.

(a) As used herein, the term for “Cause” shall include but is not limited to:

(1)  Executive’s theft or misappropriating any funds or property of
Company or any affiliated Company; or the commission of any act of fraud;

2 Executive’s attempting to obtain any personal profit from any
transaction in which Executive has an interest which is adverse to the interest of Company, unless
Executive shall have first obtained the written consent of Company;

3) Executive’s being convicted of, or pleading guilty or nolo
contendere, to a felony;

) Executive’s failing to substantially perform the Chief Quality

Officer’ duties (for reasons other than Disability) in a timely or satisfactory manner;
2
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(5)  Executive’s engaging in intentional misconduct, illegal or grossly
negligent conduct which is materially injurious to Company monetarily or which is, or is
reasonably likely to be, directly or materially harmful to the business or reputation of Company or
any affiliated Company if such action were to become known to others;

6) Executive’s failure to comply with Medicare and Medicaid rules
and regulations;

(7)  Executive’s failure to comply with Company’s Corporate
Compliance Program or Company’s Code of Conduct; or,

(8)  Executive’s breach of the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

(b) Should Executive’s Termination be for Cause, as set forth in Section S.1(a)(1),
(2) or (3) above, Company shall have the right to terminate immediately the employment of
Executive by delivering to Executive a written notice specifying such cause.

(c) A termination of Executive for Cause based on any reason other than the actions
described in Section 5.1(a)(1) (2) or (3) shall take effect 20 days after Executive receives from
Company written notice of intent to terminate for Cause and Company’s description of the
alleged Cause, unless Executive shall, during such 20-day period, remedy the events or
circumstances constituting Cause; provided, however, that such termination shall take effect
immediately upon the giving of written notice of termination for Cause under any clause if
Company shall have determined in good faith that such events or circumstances arc not
remediable (which determination shall be stated in such notice).

(d) In the event Executive’s employment is terminated for Cause, Executive shall
be entitled to her salary and accrued vacation pay prorated through the date of termination.

5.2 Termination Due to Death or Incapacity

(a) Executive’s employment shall terminate immediately upon Executive’s death.

(b) Incapacity. Company may terminate Executive’s employment if Executive, due to
physical or mental injury or iliness, is unable to perform the essential functions of Executive’s
position with or without reasonable accommodation for a period of one hundred eighty (180)
days, whether or not consecutive, occurring within any period of twelve (12) consecutive months
(“Incapacity”), subject to any limitation imposed by federal, state or local laws. Any termination
for Incapacity under this Agreement shall not affect the rights, if any, that Executive may
otherwise have under any disability plan that Company may have in effect at the date of such
termination and in which Executive is then participating.

(c) In the event Executive is terminated due to death or Incapacity, Executive shall be
entitled to Executive’s salary and accrued vacation pay prorated through the date of termination.

53 Voluntary Termination by Executive. If Exccutive desires to terminate this
Agreement and Executive’s employment with the Company, Executive shall give Company sixty

3
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(60) days prior written notice. Upon receipt of notice from Executive, Company at its option, can
(i) continue to employ Executive through some or all of the 60-day notice period, with any
restrictions on Executive’s duties and authority as determined by Company, or (ii) waive the
notice period and provide that Executive’s employment shall terminate immediately upon notice
to Executive. Executive shall be entitled to all compensation and benefits provided under this
Agreement through the date of termination.

5.4 Termination by Executive for Good Reason

(a) Executive may terminate her employment with Company for Good Reason.
“Good Reason” means any of the following occurring without the Executive’s express written
consent, subject to the notice described at the end of this section: (i) a material diminution in
Executive’s base salary; or (ii) a material diminution in the scope of Executive’s duties and,
responsibilities. Prior to any such event qualifying as Good Reason, Executive must give written
notice to the Company of the event constituting Good Reason no later than 90 days after the
initial occurrence of such event, and the Company will have 30 days after receiving such written
notice to remedy the condition.  If the Company fails to remedy the condition during such 30-
day period, then Executive’s employment shall terminate at the end of such period.

(b) If Executive elects to terminate her employment for Good Reason, Executive shall
be entitled to her then current base salary through the date of her termination for Good Reason, In
addition, Company shall pay Executive the bonus Executive would have earned under Company’s
bonus plan in the year that Executive was terminated had Executive remained in its employment.
Such bonus shall not be paid until Executive would normally be paid in accordance with
Company practices and based upon the Company’s assessment of the achievement of the bonus
criteria. In addition, Executive shall be entitled to receive the Severance Payments (as defined in
Section 5.6 below) payable as provided in Section 5.6.

5.5 Termination Without Cause

At any time during the term of this Agreement, Company may terminate Executive
without Cause, upon the giving of sixty (60) days advance written notice of such termination or
by the mutual written agreement of Company and Executive.

5.6 Severance Payments

(a) In the event of termination in accordance with Sections 5.4 and 5.5 only, Executive
shall be entitled to the payments as set forth below (“Severance Payments”). Severance pay shall
be an amount equal to Executive’s base salary, then in effect immediately before any notice of
termination, less applicable withholdings, for six (6) months, (after 90 days of Executive’s
employment in the position as Chief Quality Officer) plus two months for each consecutive year
of service with the Company following the Effective Date of this Agreement, up to a maximum
period of twelve (12) months’ of base salary subject so Section 5.6 (c) below. If Executive’s
employment with Company is terminated pursuant to Section 5.4 or 5.5 prior to 90 days from the
Effective Date of this Agreement, Executive shall only be entitled to a Severance Payment of
three (3) months, less applicable withholdings. The time period for which Executive is entitled to
severance pay is the “Severance Period”. The Severance Payments shall be. paid in equal

4
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installments during the Severance Period on the Company’s regular pay dates, and no less
frequently than monthly. No payment shall be made unless and until the Release Agreement
become effective, and the first Severance Payment shall be paid on the pay date next following
the date the Release Agreement becomes effective and shall include any payments that would
have been made on pay dates following the Eligible Employee’s termination date and prior to the
Release Agreement becoming effective.

®) Each month during the Severance Period, Company shall pay Executive an amount
equal to the monthly premium for Exccutive health insurance coverage that is in effect on the
Executive’s termination date, less the premium Executive would pay if Executive remained an
active employee of Company. Executive can use such payment to elect and pay for COBRA
coverage or towards other health insurance coverage. All Company payments are subject to
applicable Federal and State tax withholdings.

(©) Executive shall receive Severance Payments only if Executive timely signs a
release of all claims against Company and its affiliates in a form acceptable to Company (the
“Release Agreement™) and that Release Agreement becomes effective according to its terms. In
order to receive Severance Payments, Executive must also cooperate with Company in the
transition of Executive’s duties and must comply with the other terms of this Agreement.

(d) No Severance Payments are payable under this Agreement and Executive forfeits
any unpaid Severance Payments, if Executive engages in any activity described in Section 5.7
below.

5.7 Non-Solicitation and Confidentiality

(a) Recruitment of Company Employees. Without the prior written approval of
Company, Executive covenants and agrees that, during Executive’s employment with Company,
and for a period ending twelve (12) months after Executive’s employment with Company
terminates for any reason, Executive shall not, either directly or indirectly: (i) solicit, recruit, hire
or contract, for herself or on behalf of any other entity or person any current or prospective
customer, client, employee, independent contractor or consultant of Company; or (ii) interfere
with or disrupt Company’s relationships with any of its employees or independent contractors.

) Confidential Information. Executive agrees that during and after Executive’s
employment, Executive will hold in the strictest confidence, and take all reasonable precautions to
prevent any unauthorized use or disclosure of Confidential Information and Proprietary
Information (described below) , and will not (i) use or copy the Confidential Information for any
purpose whatsoever other than for the benefit of Company in the course of my employment, or
(ii) disclose the Confidential Information to any third party without the prior written authorization
of the Chief Executive Officer or the Board of Directors of Company. “Confidential Information”
means information disclosed, before or after the Effective Date, without regard to form, relating
to the Company’s business that has value, actual or potential, from not being generally known to
others and which the Company maintains as confidential. Confidential Information includes both
information disclosed by the Company to Executive, and information developed or learned by
Executive during the course of Executive’s employment with Company. By example, and
without limitation, Confidential Information includes software, research, developments, methods

5
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of doing business, products, services, price and cost information, financial information, marketing
information, billing procedures, marketing and selling techniques, and confidential information
about customers, clients, suppliers and personnel, including customer lists and customer contact
information, (whether or not in writing). Confidential Information includes information that is a
trade secret under applicable law as well as information that does not rise to the level of a trade
secret. Confidential Information also includes confidential information that the Company obtains
from a third party, which the Company is obligated to keep confidential. Confidential
Information does not include any such information which (a) has been voluntarily disclosed to the
public by the Company, except where such public disclosure has been made by Executive without
the Company’s authorization, (b) has been independently developed and disclosed by others, or
(c) has otherwise entered the public domain through lawful means. This paragraph shall not bar
Executive from complying with any subpoena or court order, provided that Exccutive shall at the
earliest practicable date provide a copy of the subpoena or court order to the Company’s General
Counsel.

(c) Proprietary Rights. Company shall have all right, title and interests to copyrights,
trademarks created during the course of or resulting from Executive’s employment with
Company. Those concepts and ideas disclosed by Company to Executive or which are first
developed by Executive during the course of Executive’s employment hereunder and which
relate to Company' present, past or prospective business activities, services, and products, all of
which shall remain the sole and exclusive property of the Company. Executive shall have no
publication rights and all of the same shall belong exclusively to Company. Executive agrees to
assign, and hereby does assign to Company, all rights, if any in or to such works, trademarks, or
intellectual property rights, necessary or appropriate for Company to obtain, maintain and assert
its rights in such work.

(d) Enforcement of Provisions. The parties acknowledge and agree that Company
would be irreparably harmed if Executive violated the above covenants and the restrictions
contained in this Section 5.7 and that in such event, Company would not have an adequate
remedy at law. The parties therefore agree that Company, may seek an order enjoining any
breach of the above covenants, without prejudice to any other rights or remedies to which
Company may be entitled at law or equity. The parties further agree that, in any action for
specific performance of Executive covenants set forth in this Section 5.7, Company shall be
entitled to all reasonable costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred in
connection therewith if Company prevails.

(e) Return of Property. Executive agrees to return to Company, without the prior
written permission of the Chief Executive Officer or her designee, upon termination or expiration
of Executive’s employment with Company, any and all Company property in Executive’s
possession or control, including, but not limited to, all keys, credit cards, computers, cellular
telephones, and other personal items or equipment provided to Executive by Company for use
during Executive’s employment, together with all written or recorded materials, documents,
memoranda, computer discs, plans, records, notes, files, drawings, or papers, and any copies
thereof, relating to the affairs of Company, including all notes or records relating to clients of the
Company.
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SECTION VI - INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION

Company shall, to the extent permitted by law, include Executive during the term of this
Agreement under any directors and officers’ liability insurance policy maintained for its directors
and officers. Company’s obligation to provide insurance and indemnification for Executive shall
survive expiration or termination of this Agreement with respect to proceedings or threatened
proceedings based on acts or omissions of Executive occurring during Executive’s employment
with Company or with any affiliated company. Such obligations shall be binding upon
Company’s successors and assigns and shall inure to the benefit of Executive’s heirs and personal
representatives.

SECTION VII - SECTION 409A

(a) It is the intent of the Company that this Agreement comply with the requirements
of Code Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (“Section 409A”) and
all guidance issued thereunder by the U.S. Internal Revenue Service with respect to any
nonqualified deferred compensation subject to Code Section 409A. This Agreement shall be
interpreted and administered to maximize the exemptions from Section 409A and, to the extent
this Agreement provides for deferred compensation subject to Code Section 409A, to comply
with Code Section 409A and to avoid the imposition of tax, interest and/or penalties upon the
Executive under Code Section 409A.

(b) Each payment under this Agreement is deemed a separate payment within the
meaning of the final regulations under Section 409A. Each Severance Payment, reimbursement
of COBRA and other payment under this Agreement that is made within 2-1/2 months following
the end of the year that contains the date of the Executive’s termination of employment is
intended to be exempt from Section 409A as a short-term deferral within the meaning of Section
409A. Each Severance Payment or other payment that is made later than 2-1/2 months following
the end of the year that contains the date of the Executive’s termination of employment is
intended to be exempt under the two-times exception of Treasury Reg. § 1.409A-1(b)(9)(iii), up
to the limitation on the availability of that exception specified in the regulation.

©) To the extent necessary to comply with Section 409A, references in this
Agreement to “termination of employment” or “terminates employment” (and similar references)
shall have the same meaning as “separation from service” under Section 409A, and no payment
subject to Section 409A that is payable upon a termination of employment shall be paid unless
and until the Executive incurs a “separation from service” under Section 409A.

SECTION VIII - DISPUTE RESOLUTION

(a) The parties agree to negotiate in good faith to resolve any controversy or claim
arising out of or relating to this Agreement, or the breach thereof. 1f any party to this Agreement
believes that such a controversy or claim has arisen, that party may give written notice to the
other party within sixty (60) days of the event, controversy or claim requesting a negotiation of
the matter. The parties and their representatives, if they choose to be represented, shall meet at a
mutually acceptable time and place within thirty (30) days after the date of the initial notice, and
thereafter as often as they reasonably deem necessary, to attempt to resolve the dispute.
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(b) If a resolution of the matter is not reached within forty-five (45) days of the initial
notice described above, the matter shall be submitted to arbitration.

() To the extent permitted by law, any dispute not settled through the process set
forth above shall be submitted to final and binding arbitration before the Judicial Arbiter Group,
Inc., of Denver, Colorado (or similar arbitration organization agreed upon by the partics with a
single arbitrator whom the parties jointly select, with the parties using their best efforts to
complete such arbitration as quickly as is reasonably practical in accordance with the Colorado
Rules of Civil Procedure. The Company shall pay the costs of the arbitrator’s fees for the
arbitration proceeding, excluding Executive’s own attorney’s fees, witness fees, and expenses,
costs of discovery and the like, which expenses are solely Executive’s responsibility. This
arbitration provision includes all disputes arising out of Executive’s employment by and other
relation and interaction with Company, whether arising during the term of Executive employment
or as a result of or after the termination of Executive employment, and whether the dispute
involves an alleged tort, contract breach, or any other kind of claim. Judgment upon the award
may be entered by any court having jurisdiction thereof. Subject to (a) above, to the fullest extent
permitted by law, this arbitration provision is intended to be, and is, the parties exclusive method
of resolving disputes, and is in lieu of any other rights or remedies to which they may otherwise
be entitled, either in law or in equity. Company and Executive expressly waive their rights, if
any, to have controversies between them decided by court or jury. Judgment upon the award may
be entered by any court having jurisdiction thereof.

(d) All information relating to the procedures described in this Section VIII shall be
treated as confidential and as inadmissible settlement discussion protected by Rule 408 of the
Federal Rules of Evidence and the principles expressed therein.

(e) The procedures specified in this Section VIII shall be the exclusive procedures for
the resolution of disputes; provided, however, that either party may seek injunctive relief if in the
judgment of that party such relief is necessary to avoid irreparable damage. Any claim by
Company arising in connection with Section 5.7 may be brought in any court of competent
jurisdiction. Despite the institution of any such judicial proceedings, the parties shall continue to
participate in good faith in the arbitration. As between the parties, all applicable statutes of
limitation shall be tolled while the procedures specified in this Section VIII are pending; the
parties shall take all actions, if any, required to effect such tolling.

SECTION IX - NON-ASSIGNABILITY; BINDING EFFECT

This Agreement shall be non-assignable and shall be binding upon, and shall inure to the
benefit of Company’s and its successors, and Executive, Executive's beneficiaries, heirs, and

personal representatives.
SECTION X- AMENDMENTS TO AGREEMENT

This Agreement shall supersede all prior agreements. Any amendments to this Agreement
must be in writing and signed by Company and Executive; oral discussions will not modify this

Agreement.
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SECTION X1 - GOVERNING LAW - SEVERABILITY

This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Colorado. The invalidity or
unenforceability of any provision of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability
of any other provision ol this Agreement.

SECTION X1 ~ ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the
employment relationship hercol” and supersedes all prior and contemporancous agreements,
promises o representations ol the parties. No provision ol this Agreement may be modilied or
waived except in a document signed by both parties.

SECTION XTI - NOTICES

Any notice required or permitted to be given pursuant o this Agreement shall be given in
writing and shall be delivered personally or deemed delivered three (3) days after being deposited

in the United Stated mail. postage prepaid, addeessed to the party, at such party’s last known
address.

day of

IN WITNESS WHEREOQFE, the parties have executed this Agreement this

AR A
v
Total Community Options. e, Total Community Options. lnc.

A D
[ dsaelce, MDD,

President and Chief Fxecuative Officer Chiel Quality Officer
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EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered effective as of this ggﬂ day of 44/_7]4,&81_'5

(“Effective Date”), by and between Total Community Options, Inc. (“Company”), a CoJorado
non-profit corporation and Gina DeBlassie (“DeBlassie”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Company employs DeBlassie as Chief Operating Officer of Company and
its affiliates; and

WHEREAS, DeBlassie desires to continue her employinent with Company in the
capacity of Chief Operating Officer (“COO”).

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties, in consideration of the mutual covenants, agreements
and representations set forth herein, do hereby agree as follows:

SECTION I - EMPLOYMENT

1.1  Company agrees to continue to employ DeBlassie to perform the duties of COO
as per the terms and conditions of this Agreement. In that capacity DeBlassie shall do and
perform all services, acts or things necessary Or advisable to fulfill the duties and
responsibilities of COO and as are assigned to DeBlassie by the Chief Executive Officer of
Company, pursuant to DeBlassie’s job description on file with Company. DeBlassie shall at all
times be subject to the policies and procedures established by Company, including the most
recent personnel policies. : :

SECTION II -TERM OF EMPLOYMENT

2.1  The term of employment under this Agreement shall commence as of the
Effective Date written above and shall continue for an indefinite period until terminated
pursuant to Sections V of this Agreement.

SECTION III - COMPENSATION

3,1 Base Salary. Company agrees to pay DeBlassie an annual base salary
commensurate with her performance and experience to be within the compensation philosophy
established by the Company. DeBlassie will be paid her salary per Company’s pay schedule for
executive exempt employees

3.2  Incentive Compensation. In addition to Base Salary, DeBlassie shall be eligible
to participate in such Incentive Compensation program as shall be determined by Company.
The receipt of any such Incentive Compensation shall be governed by the terms and provisions
of such program.

3.3  Performance Review; The Chief Executive Officer of Company shall annually
review DeBlassie’s performance in accordance with the Human Resources policy of Company
for senior executives. ’




Rl

SECTION IV - BENEFITS
Company agrees to provide at no cost, or provide access to the following benefits:

: 4.1  Group Benefits. Company shall provide to DeBlassie any group or other benefits
(e.g., medical and dental insurance, short-and long-term disability insurance coverage)
provided to senior executives of Company in accordance with the terms and conditions then in
effect. These benefits may be amended from time to time by Company. :

4.2  Paid Time Off. DeBlassie’s paid time off (“PTO”) and the Extended Iliness
Bank (“EIB”) shall be shall be governed by the then current written policy of Company with
respect to all regular, full-time, senior executive employees of Company that are eligible to
participate, and as may be modified in the future. ‘

4.3 Retirement Benefits. DeBlassie shall be entitled to participate on the same basis
as any other executive of Company, in any pension plans, savings plans, or other types of
~ plans adopted by Company for the benefit of its employees. , ,

, 4.4  Executive Benefits. The Board of Directors may provide additional executive
benefits as may be deemed appropriate.

SECTION V - TERMINATION

5.1 Termination For Cause. Company may terminate DeBlassie’s employment
immediately “For Cause”. In the event of DeBlassie’s death, this Agreement shall terminate at
the date of her death with benefits paid according to the written policy of Company.

(a) As used herein, the term "For Cause" shall include but is not limited to:
(1)  DeBlassie’s death, physical or mental incapacity;

(2)  Misappropriating any funds or property of Company or any affiliated Company;
or the commission of any act of fraud;

3) A‘ttexhpting to obtain any personal profit from any ‘transaction in Which
DeBlassie has an interest which is adverse to the interest of Company, unless DeBlassie shall
have first obtained the written consent of Company;

(4)  Being convicted of a felony;

(5)  Continuously fails to substantially perform the COO’s duties (for reasons other
than Disability) in a timely or satisfactory manner;

6) Engaging in intentional misconduct, illegal or gross negligent conduct which is
materially injurious to the Company monetarily or otherwise;

(7)  Failure to comply with Medicare and Medicaid rules and regulations;

@®) Failufe to comply with Company’s Corporate Cdmpliarice Program _br
Company’s Code of Conduct; or,

) Breach of the terms and conditions of this Agreement.
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Should the Termination be For Cause, as set forth in Section 5.1(a)(1) through (4)
above, Company shall have the right to terminate immediately the employment of DeBlassie by
delivering to DeBlassie a written notice specifying such cause.

~ Company may terminate this Agreement For Cause for any other reason set forth in this
Section upon delivering to DeBlassie a written notice specifying such cause and the grounds for
termination. Company may terminate this Agreement pursuant to this Section, without
prejudice to any other remedy to which Company may be entitled in law or in equity. In the
event DeBlassie is terminated For Cause, DeBlassie shall be entitled to her salary and accrued
vacation pay prorated through the date of termination.

5.2  Voluntary Termination by DeBlassie. If DeBlassie desires to terminate this
Agreement, DeBlassie shall give Company sixty (60) days prior written notice.. Upon receipt
of notice by DeBlassie, Company at its option, can restrict DeBlassie duties under this
Agreement, however, DeBlassie shall be entitled to all compensation and benefits of this
Agreement up to the date of termination, or at Company’s election, Company can immediately
terminate all further duties by DeBlassie and compensation and benefits shall terminate upon
notice to DeBlassie. ‘

5.3 Termination by DeBlassie for Good Reason.

(a) DeBlassie may terminate her employment with Company for Good Reason
which shall be deemed to occur if DeBlassie terminates her employment within six (6) months
after: (1) a significant diminishment in the nature or scope of the authority, power, function or
duty attached to the position which DeBlassie currently maintains without the implicit or
explicit request of DeBlassie or express consent of DeBlassie, where DeBlassie was willing and
able to continue performing services for the Company (as further described in Treasury
Regulation Section 1.409A-1(n)(1) DeBlassie or (2) a Change of Control merger, acquisition,
affiliation or sale of substantially all of the Company’s assets shall have occurred.

(b) If DeBlassie elects to terminate her employment For Good Reason, DeBlassie
shall be entitled to her then current salary to the date on which a notice of termination is
delivered to Company. In addition, Company shall pay DeBlassie the bonus DeBlassie would
have earned under the Company’s bonus plan in the year that DeBlassie was terminated had
DeBlassie remained in its employment. Such bonus shall not be paid until DeBlassie would
normally be paid in accordance with the Company practices. In addition, DeBlassie shall be
entitled to receive the Severance Payment (as defined in Section 5.5 below) at the time of
termination. '

5.4  Termination Without Cause

At any time during the term of this Agreement, Company may terminate DeBlassie
without cause, upon the giving of sixty (60) days advance written notice of such termination or
by the mutual written agreement of Company and DeBlassie.

5.5 Severance Payment

(a) In the event of termination in accordance with Sections 5.3 and 5.4 only, DeBlassie
shall be entitled to the salary as set forth herein below (“Severance Payment”). Subject to
Section 5.5(c) below, such Severance Payment will commence immediately following
DeBlassie’s termination, and will continue for the period as set forth below. For purposes of
this provision the parties agree that the “Severance Payment” shall be 6 months plus two

months for each consecutive year of service, up to a maximum period of twelve (12) months.
In the event of termination in accordance with Sections 5.3 and 5.4 only, DeBlassie shall be
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entitled to the salary as set forth herein below (“Severance Payment”). Such Severance
Payment shall be equal to DeBlassie’s annual salary in effect at the time of termination.

()  During the Severance Period, DeBlassie, in addition to receiving the Severance
Payment, shall receive paid COBRA health insurance and those Group Benefits that Company
has in effect on the date of termination, unless the provision of such group benefits by
Company is prohibited by any law, in which case DeBlassie shall receive the Severance
Payment, plus a payment in cash equal to the amount of Company’s cost of such benefits. Any
cash payments to DeBlassie that are in lieu of benefits will be made in accordance with the
regular payroll periods of Company then in effect. Eligibility for any health insurance or
group benefit is restricted to the benefits that DeBlassie has in effect on the date of termination.
All payments made to DeBlassie shall be subject to applicable Federal and State tax
withholdings. S

©) DeBlassie agrees to: (i) timely execute a release agreement of all claims against
Company (and then not rescind) consistent with the releases executed by terminated executives
of Company, in consideration of the receipt of the Severance Payment paid by Company, and
(ii) acknowledges that the continued receipt of the Severance Payment will be contingent upon
DeBlassie cooperating with Company in the transition of DeBlassie’s duties and prompt return
of Company’s property in good and operating condition less reasonable use wear and tear.

(d) Any interpretation of this Agreement shall be consistent with the intent that
the severance provisions contained herein qualify for the separation pay plan exemption as
defined in Internal Revenue Code § 409A to the extent the benefits are within the two times
limit, and that any excess payments satisfy the requirements of Internal Revenue Code § 409A.
Nothing herein shall override or conflict with any requirements of the Internal Revenue Code
or any other pertinent regulation or law.

(e) The Company may postpone payment of the Severance Payment until the last
day on which DeBlassie could rescind the release of claims against the Company. If the
Company postpones payments, the first payment of severance after the rescission period
expires will include the Severance Payment that accrued from the date of termination and
separation from service. The Severance Period itself will not be extended or postponed.

® No Severance Payrhents are- payable under this Agreement and DeBlassie
forfeits any unpaid Severance Payments, if DeBlassie engages in any activity described in
Section 5.6 below.

5.6  Non-Solicitation and Confidentiality

(@)  Recruitment of Company Employees. Without the prior written approval of
Company, DeBlassie covenants and agrees that, during DeBlassie employment with Company,
and for a period ending on the first annual anniversary date on which DeBlassie employment
with Company terminates, DeBlassie will not, solicit or recruit, either directly or indirectly,
by herself or on behalf of an entity or person with which she is associated as an owner,
employee, agent or consultant, any then-current customer, client, employee, officer or
director of Company.

(b) Confidentiality. For a period of two (2) years following termination of
employment with Company, DeBlassie agrees not to use, or disclose for personal gain or for
the benefit of any other organization, or otherwise make known to any person or entity: (i) any
confidential or proprietary knowledge or information of Company, including without
limitation, financial data, suppliers, client records, processes, personnel records, payment
records, and computer systems, as well as any data and records pertaining thereto, which
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DeBlassie may have acquired in the course of her employment, and (ii) any confidential or
proprietary knowledge or information of confidential nature (including but not limited to all
unpublished matters) of Company relating to, without limitation, the business, properties,
accounting, books, financial records, programs, memoranda, or other records of Company.
Exceptions to the above restrictions include when DeBlassie is compelled by legal process to
divulge any of the above information or when that information has become publicly available
without the fault of DeBlassie. '

()  Enforcement of Provisions. The parties acknowledge and agree that Company
would be irreparably harmed if DeBlassie violated the above covenants and the restrictions
contained in this Section 5.6 and that in such event, Company would not have an adequate
remedy at law. The parties therefore agree that Company, may in its sole discretion, seek an
order enjoining any breach of the above covenants, without prejudice to any other right or
remedy to which Company may be entitled at law or equity. The parties further agree that, in
any action for specific performance of DeBlassie covenants set forth in this Section 56,
Company shall be entitled to all reasonable costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’
fees incurred in connection therewith. '

SECTION VI - INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION

The Company shall, to the extent permitted by law, include DeBlassie during the term of this
Agreement under any directors and officers Jiability insurance policy maintained for its
directors and officers, which coverage shall be at least as favorable to DeBlassie in the amount
and each other material respect as the coverage of other directors and officers covered thereby.
The Company’s obligation to provide insurance and indemnification for DeBlassie shall survive
expiration or termination of this Agreement with respect to proceedings or threatened
proceedings based on acts or omissions of DeBlassie occurring during DeBlassie employment
with the Company or with any affiliated company. Such obligations shall be binding upon the

Company’s successors and assigns and shall inure to the benefit of DeBlassie heirs and
personal representatives.

SECTION VII - DISPUTE RESOLUTION

(a) The parties agree to negotiate in good faith to resolve any controversy or claim
arising out of or relating to this Agreement, or the breach thereof. If any party to this
Agreement believes that such a controversy or claim has arisen, that party may give written
notice to the other party within one hundred and twenty (120) days of the event, controversy or
claim requesting a negotiation of the matter. The parties and their representatives, if they
choose to be represented, shall meet at 2 mutually acceptable time and place within thirty (30)

days after the date of the initial notice, and thereafter as often as they reasonably deem
necessary, to attempt to resolve the dispute.

(b)  If a resolution of the matter is not reached within forty-five (45) days of the
initial notice described above, the matter shall be submitted to arbitration.

() Any dispute not settled through the process set forth above shall be submitted to
final and binding arbitration, at Company’s expense, before the Judicial Arbiter Group, Inc.,
of Denver, Colorado (or similar arbitration organization agreed upon by the parties), with a
single arbitrator whom the parties jointly select, with the parties using their best efforts 10
complete such arbitration as quickly as is reasonably practical in accordance with the Colorado
Rules of Civil Procedure This includes all disputes arising out of DeBlassie employment by and
other relation and interaction with Company, whether arising during the term of DeBlassie
employment or as a result of or after the termination of DeBlassie employment, and whether

the dispute involves an alleged tort, contract breach, or any other kind of claim. Judgment
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upon the award may be entered by any court having jurisdiction thereof. Subject to (a) above,
to the fullest extent permitted by law, this arbitration provision is intended to be, and is, the
parties exclusive method of resolving disputes, and is in lieu of any other rights or remedies to
which they may otherwise be entitled, either in law or in equity. Company and DeBlassie
expressly waive.their rights, if any, to have controversies between them decided by court or

jury. .

(d Al information relating to the procedures described in this Section VII shall be
treated as confidential and as inadmissible settlement discussion protected by Rule 408 of the
Federal Rules of Evidence and the principles expressed therein.

(e)  The procedures specified in this Section VII shall be the exclusive procedures
for ‘the resolution of disputes; provided, however, that either party may seek preliminary
judicial relief if in the judgment of that party such relief is necessary to avoid irreparable
damage. Despite the institution of any such judicial proceedings, the parties shall continue to
participate in good faith in the arbitration. As between the parties, all applicable statutes of
limitation shall be tolled while the procedures specified in this Section VII are pending; the
parties shall take all actions, if any, required to effect such tolling.

SECTION VIII - NON-ASSIGNABILITY; BINDING EFFECT

This Agreement shall be non-assignable and shall be binding upon, and shall inure to
the benefit of Company’s and its successors, and DeBlassie, her beneficiaries, heirs, and
personal representatives.

SECTION IX- AMENDMENTS TO AGREEMENT

This Agreement shall supersede all prior agreements. Any amendments to this
Agreement must be in writing and signed by Company and DeBlassie; oral discussions will not
modify this Agreement.

~ SECTION X - GOVERNING LAW - SEVERABILITY

This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Colorado. The invalidity
or unenforceability of any provision of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or
enforceability of any other provision of this Agreement.

SECTION XI ~ ENTIRE AGREEMENT

Thus Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the
employment relationship hereof and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous agreements,
promises or representations of the parties. No provision of this Agreement may be modified or
waived except in a document signed by both parties.

SECTION XII - NOTICES

Any notice required or permitted to be given pursuant to this Agreement shall be given
in writing and shall be delivered personally or deemed delivered three (3) days after being
deposited in the United Stated mail, postage prepaid, addressed to the party, at such party’s
last known address. '
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;IE WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement this QQ/} day

of _& 293,
~ Total'Community Options, Inc. Total Community Options, Inc.

W win Mleerys
. Maureen Hewitt
President and Chief Executive Officer Chief Operatmg 0 icer
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EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered effective as of this > day of M.)Q_OS}‘M'

(“Effective Date™), by and between Total Community Options, Inc. (“Company”), a Colorado
non-profit corporation and Beverley Dahan (“Dahan”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Company employs Dahan as Vice President of Government and
Legislative Affairs Company and its affiliates; and

WHEREAS, Dahan desires to continue her employment with Company in the capacity
of Vice President of Government and Legislative Affairs.

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties, in consideration of the mutual covenants, agreements
and representations set forth herein, do hereby agree as follows:

SECTION I - EMPLOYMENT

1.1 - Company agrees to continue to employ Dahan to perform the duties of Vice
President of Government and Legislative Affairs as per the terms and. conditions of this
Agreement. In that capacity Dahan shall do and perform all services, acts or things necessary
or advisable to fulfill the duties and responsibilities of the Vice President of Government and
Legislative Affairs and as are assigned to Dahan by the Chief Executive Officer of Company,
pursuant to Dahan’s job description on file with Company. Dahan shall at all times be subject
to the policies and procedures established by Company, including the most recent personnel
policies.

SECTION II -TERM OF EMPLOYMENT

2.1  The term of employment under this Agreement shall commence as of the
Effective Date written above and shall continue for an indefinite period until terminated
pursuant to Sections V of this Agreement.

SECTION III - COMPENSATION

3.1  Base Salary. Company agrees to pay Dahan an annual base salary commensurate
with her performance and experience within the compensation philosophy established by the
Company. Dahan will be paid her salary per Company’s pay schedule for executive exempt
employees '

3.2  Incentive Compensation. In addition to Base Salary, Dahan shall be eligible to
participate in such Incentive Compensation program as shall be determined by Company. The
receipt of any such Incentive Compensation shall be governed by the terms and provisions of
such program.

3.3  Performance Review. The Chief Executive Officer of Company shall annually
review Dahan’s performance in accordance with the Human Resources policy of Company for
senior executives.
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SECTION IV - BENEFITS
Company agrees to provide at no cost, or provide access to the following benefits:

4.1  Group Benefits. Company shall provide to Dahan any group or other benefits
(e.g., medical and dental insurance, short-and long-term disability insurance coverage)
provided to senior executives of Company in accordance with the terms and conditions then in
effect. These benefits may be amended from time to time by Company.

4.2  Paid Time Off. Dahan’s paid time off (“PTO”) and the Extended Iliness Bank
(“EIB”) shall be shall be governed by the then current written policy of Company with respect
to all regular, full-time, senior executive employees of Company that are eligible to participate,
and as may be modified in the future. -

4.3  Retirement Benefits. Dahan shall be entitled to participate on the same basis as
any other executive of Company, in any pension plans, savings plans, or other types of plans
adopted by Company for the benefit of its employees.

4.4 Executive Benefits. The Board of Directors may provide additional executive
benefits as may be deemed appropriate. ‘

SECTION V - TERMINATION

'5.1  Termination For Cause. Company may terminate Dahan’s employment
immediately “For Cause”. In the event of Dahan’s death, this Agreement shall terminate as of
the date of her death with benefits paid according to the written policy of Company.

(a) As used herein, the term "For Cause" shall include but is not limited to:
(1)  Dahan’s death, physical or mental incapacity;

(2)~ Misappropriating any funds or property of Company or any affiliated Company;
or the commission of any act of fraud; ' ,

(3)  Attempting to obtain any personal profit from any transaction in which Dahan
has an interest which is adverse to the interest of Company, unless Dahan shall have first
obtained the written consent of Company;

(4)  Being convicted of a felony;

(5)  Continuously fails to substantially perform the Vice President of Government
and Legislative Affairs’ duties (for reasons other than Disability) in a timely or satisfactory
manner;

(6)  Engaging in intentional misconduct, illegal or gross negligent conduct which is
materially injurious to the Company monetarily or otherwise;

(7)  Failure to comply with Medicare and Medicaid rules and regulations;

(8)  Failure to comply with Company’s Corporate Compliance Program or
Company’s Code of Conduct; or,
(9)  Breach of the terms and conditions of this Agreement.
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Should the Termination be For Cause, as set forth in Section S5.1(a)(1) through (4)
above, Company shall have the right to terminate immediately the employment of Dahan by
delivering to Dahan a written notice specifying such cause.

Company may terminate this Agreement For Cause for any other reason set forth in this
Section upon delivering to Dahan a written notice specifying such cause and the grounds for
termination. Company may terminate this Agreement pursuant to this- Section, without
prejudice to any other remedy to which Company may be exntitled in law or in equity. In the

event Dahan is terminated For Cause, Dahan shall be entitled to her salary and accrued
vacation pay prorated through the date of termination.

52 Voluntary Termination by Dahan. If Dahan desires to terminate this
Agreement, Dahan shall give Company sixty (60) days prior written notice. Upon receipt of
notice by Dahan, Company at jts option, can restrict Dahan duties under this Agreement,
however, Dahan shall be entitled to all compensation and benefits of this Agreement up to the
date of termination, or at Company’s election, Company can immediately terminate all further
duties by Dahan and compensation and benefits shall terminate upon notice to Dahan.

5.3  Termination by Dahan for Good Reason.

(@) Dahan may terminate her employment with Company for Good Reason which
shall be deemed to occur if Dahan terminates her employment within six (6) months after: (1) a
significant diminishment in the nature or scope of the authority, power, function or duty
attached to the position which Dahan currently maintains without the implicit or explicit
request of Dahan or express consent of Dahan, where Dahan was willing and able to continue
performing services for the Company (as further described in Treasury Regulation Section
1.409A-1(n)(1), or (2) a Change of Control: merger, acquisition, affiliation or sale of

substantially all of the Company’s assets of Company shall have occurred.

If Dahan elects to terminate her employment For Good Reason, Dahan shall be
entitled to her then current salary to the date on which a notice of termination is delivered to
Company. In addition, Company shall pay Dahan the bonus Dahan would have earned under
the Company’s bonus plan in the year that Dahan was terminated had Dahan remained in its
employment. Such bonus shall not be paid until Dahan would normally be paid in accordance
with the Company practices. In addition, Dahan shall be entitled to receive the Severance
Payment (as defined in Section 5.5 below) at the time of termination.

5.4 Termination Without Cause

At any time during the term of this Agreement, Company may terminate Dahan without
cause, upon the giving of sixty (60) days advance written notice of such termination or by the
mutual written agreement of Company and Dahan.

5.5 Severance Payment

(a) In the event of termination in accordance with Sections 5.3 and 5.4 only, Dahan
shall be entitled to the salary as set forth herein below (“Severance Payment”). Subject to
Section 5.5(c) below, such Severance Payment will commence immediately following Dahan’s
termination, and will continue for the period as set forth below. For purposes of this provision
the parties agree that the “Severance Period” shall be 6 months plus two months for each
consecutive year of service, up to a maximum period of twelve (12) months. In the event of
termination in accordance with Sections 5.3 and 5.4 only, Dahan shall be entitled to the salary
as set forth herein below (“Severance Payment”). Such Severance Payment shall be equal to
Dahan’s annual salary in effect at the time of termination.
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(b) During the Severance Period, Dahan, in addition to receiving the Severance
Payment, shall receive paid COBRA health insurance and those Group Benefits that Company
has in effect on the date of termination, unless the provision of such group benefits by
Company is prohibited by any law, in which case Dahan shall receive the Severance Payment,
plus a payment in cash equal to the amount of Company’s cost of such benefits. Any cash
payments to Dahan that are in lieu of benefits will be made in accordance with the regular
payroll periods of Company then in effect. Eligibility for any health insurance or group
benefit is restricted to the benefits that Dahan has in effect on the date of termination. All
payments made to Dahan shall be subject to applicable Federal and State tax withholdings.

(¢) ~ Dahan agrees to: (i) timely execute a release agreement of all claims against
Company (and then not rescind) consistent with the releases executed by terminated executives
of Company, in consideration of the receipt of the Severance Payment paid by Company, and
(ii) acknowledges that the continued receipt of the Severance Payment will be contingent upon
Dahan cooperating with Company in the transition of Dahan’s duties and prompt return of
Company’s property in good and operating condition less reasonable use wear and tear.

@ Any interpretation of this Agreement shall be consistent with the intent that
the severance provisions contained herein qualify for the separation pay plan exemption as
defined in Internal Revenue Code § 409A to the extent the benefits are within the two times
limit, and that any excess payments satisfy the requirements of Internal Revenue Code § 409A.
Nothing herein shall override or conflict with any requirements of the Internal Revenue Code
.or any other pertinent regulation or law. A :

(¢)  The Company may postpone payment of the Severance Payment until the last
day on which Dahan could rescind the release of claims against the Company. If the Company
postpones payments, the first payment of severance after the rescission period expires will
include the Severance Payment that accrued from the date of termination and separation from
service. The Severance Period itself will not be extended or postponed.

® No Severance Payments are payable under this Agreement and Dahan forfeits
any unpaid Severance Payments, if Dahan engages in any activity described in Section 5.6
below. ' '

: 5.6 Non-Solicitation and Confidentiality

(@  Recruitment of Company Employees. Without the prior written approval of
Company, Dahan covenants and agrees that, during Dahan employment with Company, and
for a period ending on the first annual anniversary date on which Dahan employment with
Company terminates, Dahan will not, solicit or recruit, either directly or indirectly, by herself
or on behalf of an entity or person with which she is associated as an owner, employee, agent
or consultant, any then-current customer, client, employee, officer or director of Company.

(b) Confidentiality. For a period of two (2) years following termination of
employment with Company, Dahan agrees not to use, or disclose for personal gain or for the
benefit of any other organization, or otherwise make known to any person or entity: (i) any
confidential or proprietary kmowledge or information of Company, including without
limitation, financial data, suppliers, client records, processes, personnel records, payment
records, and computer systems, as well as any data and records pertaining thereto, which
Dahan may have acquired in the course of her employment, and (ii) any confidential or
proprietary knowledge or information of confidential nature (including but not limited to all
unpublished matters) of Company relating to, without limitation, the business, properties,
accounting, books, financial records, programs, memoranda, or other records of Company.

Exceptions to the above restrictions include when Dahan is compelled by legal process to
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'divulge any of the above information or when that information has become publicly available
without the fault of Dahan.

(¢)  Enforcement of Provisions. The parties acknowledge and agree that Company
would be irreparably harmed if Dahan violated the above covenants and the restrictions
contained in this Section 5.6 and that in such event, Company would not have an adequate
remedy at law. The parties therefore agree that Company, may in its sole discretion, seek an
order enjoining any breach of the above covenants, without prejudice to any other right or
remedy to which Company may be entitled at law or equity. The parties further agree that, in
any action for specific performance of Dahan covenants set forth in this Section 56, Company
shall be entitled to all reasonable costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees
incurred in connection therewith.

SECTION VI - INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION

The Company shall, to the extent permitted by law, include Dahan during the term of this
Agreement under any directors and officers liability insurance policy maintained for its
directors and officers, which coverage shall be at least as favorable to Dahan in the amount and
each other material respect as the coverage of other directors and officers covered thereby. The
Company’s obligation to provide insurance and indemnification for Dahan shall survive
expiration or termination of this Agreement with respect to proceedings or threatened
proceedings based on acts or omissions of Dahan occurring during Dahan employment with the
Company or with any affiliated company. Such obligations shall be binding upon the
Company’s successors and assigns and shall inure to the benefit of Dahan heirs and personal
representatives. '

SECTION VII - DISPUTE RESOLUTION

(a) The parties agree to negotiate in good faith to resolve any controversy or claim
arising out of or relating to this Agreement, or the breach thereof. If any party to this
Agreement believes that such a controversy or claim has arisen, that party may give written
notice to the other party within one hundred and twenty (120) days of the event, controversy or
claim requesting a negotiation of the matter. The parties and their representatives, if they
choose to be represented, shall meet at a mutnally acceptable time and place within thirty (30)
days after the date of the initial notice, and thereafter as often as they reasonably deem
necessary, to attempt to resolve the dispute.

(b)  If a resolution of the matter is not reached within forty-five (45) days of the
initial notice described above, the matter shall be submitted to arbitration.

(©) Any dispute not settled through the process set forth above shall be submitted to -
final and binding arbitration, at Company’s expense, before the Judicial Arbiter Group, Inc.,
of Denver, Colorado (or similar arbitration organization agreed upon by the parties), with a
single arbitrator whom the parties jointly select, with the parties using their best efforts to
complete such arbitration as quickly as is reasonably practical in accordance with the Colorado
Rules of Civil Procedure This includes all disputes arising out of Dahan employment by and
other relation and interaction with Company, whether arising during the term of Dahan
employment or as a result of or after the termination of Dahan employment, and whether the
dispute involves an alleged tort, contract breach, or any other kind of claim. Judgment upon
the award may be entered by any court having jurisdiction thereof. Subject to (a) above, to the
fullest extent permitted by law, this arbitration provision is intended to be, and is, the parties
exclusive method of resoiving disputes, and is in lien of any other rights or remedies to which
they may otherwise be entitled, either in law or in equity. Company and Dahan expressly
waive their rights, if any, to have controversies between them decided by court or jury.
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(d)  All information relating to the procedures described in this Section VII shall be
treated as confidential and as inadmissible settlement discussion protected by Rule 408 of the
Federal Rules of Evidence and the principles expressed therein.

~ (e)  The procedures specified in this Section VII shall be the exclusive procedures
for the resolution of disputes; provided, however, that either party may seek preliminary
judicial relief if in the judgment of that party such relief is necessary to avoid irreparable
damage. Despite the institution of any such judicial proceedings, the parties shall continue to
participate in good faith in the arbitration. As between the parties, all applicable statutes of
limitation shall be tolled while the procedures specified in this Section VII are pending; the
parties shall take all actions, if any, required to effect such tolling. ‘

SECTION VIII - NON-ASSIGNABILITY; BINDING EFFECT

This Agreement shall be non-assignable and shall be binding upon, and shall inure to
the ‘benefit of Company’s and its successors, and Dahan, her beneficiaries, heirs, and personal
representatives.

SECTION IX- AMENDMENTS TO AGREEMENT

This Agreement shall supersede all prior agreements. Any amendments to this
Agreement must be in writing and signed by Company and Dahan; oral discussions will not
modify this Agreement. :

SECTION X - GOVERNING LAW - SEVERABILITY

This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Colorado. The invalidity
or unenforceability of any provision of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or
enforceability of any other provision of this Agreement.

SECTION XI ~ ENTIRE AGREEMENT

Thus Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the
employment relationship hereof and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous agreerments,
promises or representations of the parties. No provision of this Agreement may be modified or
waived except in a document signed by both parties. ‘

SECTION XII - NOTICES

Any notice required or permitted to be given pursuant to this Agreement shall be given
in writing and shall be delivered personally or deemed delivered three (3) days after being
deposited in the United Stated mail, postage prepaid, addressed to the party, at such party’s
last known address.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement this 5

of _Moq oot , 2015

Total Community Options, Inc. “ " Total Community Options, Inc.
Maureen Hewitt Beverley Dahan
President and Chlef Executlve Ofﬁcer Vice President of Government and
Legislative Affairs
Dahan_2013
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EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

s made and entered effective as of this g day of

")‘}'-l IS, AGREEMENT i

N - te™), by and between Total Community Options,
tne. (L l.lpﬁﬁl)i 3. a Colorade non-profit corporation, and Katie Miles-Ley (*Executive™).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Executive has been employed with Company as Senior Vice President of
Human Resources for Company and/or its affiliates: and

WHEREAS, Company desires to continue her employment with Company in the
position of Senior Vice President of Human Resources with Company: and,

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties, in consideration of the mutual covenants, agreements
and representations set forth herein, do hereby agree as follows:

SECTION T - EMPLOYMENT

] Company agrees to continue to employ Executive to perform the duties of Senior
Vice President of Human Resources. as per the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  In that
capacity Executive shall do and perform all services, acts or things necessary or advisable to
fulfill the duties and responsibilities of the Senior Vice President of Human Resources and as
are assigned to Executive by the Chief Executive Officer of Company, pursuant to Executive’s
job description on file with Company, which may be modified from time to time. Executive
shall at all times be subject 1o the policies, procedures and practices established by Company, in
effeet at the time. including the most recent personnel policies.

SECTION 11 - TERM OF EMPLOYMENT
2.1 The term of employment under this Agreement shall commence as of the
Effective Date written above and shall continue for an indefinite period until terminated

pursuant to Section V of this Agreement.

SECTION 1 - COMPENSATION

C

3.1 Base  Salary. Company agrees 1o pay Executive an annual base salary
commensurate with her performance and cxperience within the compensation philosophy
established by Company.  Executive will be paid her salary per Company’s pay schedule for

executive exempt employees.

39 Ineentive Bonus Compensation, During Fxecutive’s employment. in addition 1o
Base Salary, Executive shall be eligible, but not required, o receive a discretionary annual
performance bonus, (“Bonus™) based upon mutually agreed upon performance goals and the
performance of the Company, as shall be determined by Company and the Board of Dirvectors.
The award and the amount of the Bonus, if any, will be decided in the sole discretion of the
Chief Executive Officer and/or the Board of the Directors.

»

-
&}

formance Review. The Chief Executive Officer of Company shall annually
evaluate Executive’s performance in accordance with the Company guidelines and practices for

senior execuives.

>3
—
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SECTION 1V - BENEFITS
Company agrees to provide or to provide access to the following benefits:

4.1  Benefits. Company shall provide to Executive any group or other benefits (e.g.,
medical and dental insurance, short-and long-term disability insurance coverage) provided to
senior executives of Company in accordance with the terms and conditions then in effect.
These benefits may be amended from time to time by Company.

4.2  Paid Time Off. Executive’s paid time off (“PTQO") and the Extended IlIness
Bank (“EIB”) shall be governed by the then current written policy of Company with respect to
all regular, full-time, senior executive employées of Company that are eligible to participate,
and as may be modified in the future.

4.3  Retirement Benefits. Executive shall be entitled to participate in any pension
plans, savings plans, or other types of retirement plans adopted by Company for the benefit of
its employees. These benefits may be amended from time to time by Company.

4.4  Executive Benefits. The Board of Directors may provide additional executive
benefits as may be deemed appropriate.

SECTION V - TERMINATION

5.1 Termination for Cause. Company may terminate Executive’s employment
immediately for “Cause”.

(a)’ As used herein, the term for “Cause” shall include but is not limited to:

(1) Executive’s theft or misappropriating any funds or property of
Company or any affiliated Company; or the commission of any act of fraud;

(2)  Executive’s attempting to obtain any personal profit from any
transaction in which Executive has an interest which is adverse to the interest of Company,
unless Executive shall have first obtained the written consent of Company;

3) Executive’s being convicted of, or pleading guilty or nolo
contendere, to a felony;

(4)  Executive’s failing to substantially perform the Senior Vice
President of Human Resources’ duties (for reasons other than Disability) in a timely or
satisfactory manner;

(5 Executive’s engaging in intentional misconduct, illegal or grossly
negligent conduct which is materially injurious to Company monetarily or which is, or is
reasonably likely to be, directly or materially harmful to the business or reputation of Company
or any affiliated Company if such action were to become known to others;

6) Executive’s failure to comply with Medicare and Medicaid rules
and regulations;

N Executive’s failure to comply with Company’s Corporate
Compliance Program or Company’s Code of Conduct; or,

2
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(8)  Executive’s breach of the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

(b) Should Executive’s Termination be for Cause, as set forth in Section 5. 1(a)(1),
(2) or (3) above, Company shall have the right to terminate immediately the employment of
Executive by delivering to Executive a written notice specifying such cause.

© A termination of Executive for Cause based on any reason other than the
actions described in Section 5.1(a)(1) (2) or (3) shall take effect 20 days after Executive
receives from Company written notice of intent to terminate for Cause and Company’s
description of the alleged Cause, unless Executive shall, during such 20-day period, remedy the
events or circumstances constituting Cause; provided, however, that such termination shall take
effect immediately upon the giving of written notice of termination for Cause under any clause
if Company shall have determined in good faith that such events or circumstances are not
remediable (which determination shall be stated in such notice).

(d) In the event Executive’s employment is terminated for Cause, Executive shall
be entitled to her salary and accrued vacation pay prorated through the date of termination.

5.2 Termination Due to Death or Incapacity

(a) Executive’s employment shall terminate immediately upon Executive’s death.

(b)  Incapacity. Company may terminate Executive’s employment if Executive, due
to physical or mental injury or illness, is unable to perform the essential functions of
Executive’s position with or without reasonable accommodation for a period of one hundred
eighty (180) days, whether or not consecutive, occurring within any period of twelve (12)
consecutive months (“Incapacity”), subject to any limitation imposed by federal, state or local
laws. Any termination for Incapacity under this Agreement shall not affect the rights, if any,
that Executive may otherwise have under any disability plan that Company may have in effect at
the date of such termination and in which Executive is then participating.

(c) In the event Executive is terminated due to death or Incapacity, Executive shall
be entitled to Executive’s salary and accrued vacation pay prorated through the date of
termination,

53  Voluntary Termination by Executive. If Executive desires to terminate this
Agreement and Executive’s employment with the Company, Executive shall give Company
sixty (60) days prior written notice. Upon receipt of notice from Executive, Company at its
option, can (i) continue to employ Executive through some or all of the 60-day notice period,
with any restrictions on Executive’s duties and authority as determined by Company, or
(ii) waive the notice period and provide that Executive’s employment shall terminate
immediately upon notice to Executive. Executive shall be entitled to all compensation and
benefits provided under this Agreement through the date of termination.
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5.4 Termination by Executive for Good Reason

(a) Executive may terminate her employment with Company for Good Reason.
“Good Reason” means any of the following occurring without the Executive’s express written
consent, subject to the notice described at the end of this section: (i) a material diminution in
Executive’s base salary; or (ii) a material diminution in the scope of Executive’s duties and,
responsibilities. Prior to any such event qualifying as Good Reason, Executive must give
written notice to the Company of the event constituting Good Reason no later than 90 days after
the initial occurrence of such event, and the Company will have 30 days after receiving such
written notice to remedy the condition.  If the Company fails to remedy the condition during
such 30-day period, then Executive’s employment shall terminate at the end of such period. .

(b) If Executive elects to terminate her employment for Good Reason, Executive
shall be entitled to her then current base salary through the date of her termination for Good
Reason. In addition, Company shall pay Executive the bonus Executive would have earned
under Company’s bonus plan in the year that Executive was terminated had Executive remained
in its employment. Such bonus shall not be paid until Executive would normally be paid in
accordance with Company practices and based upon the Company’s assessment of the
achievement of the bonus criteria. In addition, Executive shall be entitled to receive the
Severance Payments (as defined in Section 5.6 below) payable as provided in Section 5.6.

5.5 Termination Without Cause

At any time during the term of this Agreement, Company may terminate Executive
without Cause, upon the giving of sixty (60) days advance written notice of such termination or
by the mutual written agreement of Company and Executive.

5.6 Severance Payments

(a) In the event of termination in accordance with Sections 5.4 and 5.5 only,
Executive shall be entitled to the payments as set forth below (“Severance Payments™).
Severance pay shall be an amount equal to Executive’s base salary, then in effect immediately
before any notice of termination, less applicable withholdings, for six (6) months, plus two
months for each consecutive year of service with the Company following the Effective Date of
this Agreement, up to a maximum period of twelve (12) months’ of base salary subject so
Section 5.6 (c) below. The time period for which Executive is entitled to severance pay is the
«Geverance Period”. The Severance Payments shall be paid in equal installments during the
Severance Period on the Company’s regular pay dates, and no less frequently than monthly. No
payment shall be made unless and until the Release Agreement become effective, and the first
Severance Payment shall be paid on the pay date next following the date the Release Agreement
becomes effective and shall include any payments that would have been made on pay dates
following the Eligible Employee’s termination date and prior to the Release Agreement
becoming effective. :

(b) Each month during the Severance Period, Company shall pay Executive an
amount equal to the monthly premium for Executive health insurance coverage that is in effect
on the Executive’s termination date, less the premium Executive would pay if Executive
remained an active employee of Company. Executive can use such payment to elect and pay
for COBRA coverage or towards other health insurance coverage. All Company payments are
subject to applicable Federal and State tax withholdings.

(c) Executive shall receive Severance Payments only if Executive timely signs a
release of all claims against Company and its affiliates in a form acceptable to Company (the

4
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“Release Agrgement”) and that Release Agreement becomes effective according to its terms. In
order to receive Severance Payments, Executive must also cooperate with Company in the
transition of Executive’s duties and must comply with the other terms of this Agreement.

(d)  No Severance Payments are payable under this Agreement and Executive forfeits
ﬁn]y unpaid Severance Payments, if Executive engages in any activity described in Section 5.7
elow.

5.7 Non-Solicitation and Confidentiality

(a) Recruitment of Company Employees. Without the prior written approval of
Company, Executive covenants and agrees that, during Executive’s employment with Company,
and for a period ending twelve (12) months after Executive’s employment with Company
terminates for any reason, Executive shall not, either directly or indirectly: (i) solicit, recruit,
hire or contract, for herself or on behalf of any other entity or person any current or prospective
customer, client, employee, independent contractor or consultant of Company; or (ii) interfere
with or disrupt Company’s relationships with any of its employees or independent contractors.

® Confidential Information. Executive agrees that during and after Executive’s
employment, Executive will hold in the strictest confidence, and take all reasonable precautions
to prevent any unauthorized use or disclosure of Confidential Information and Proprietary
Information (described below) , and will not (i) use or copy the Confidential Information for
any purpose whatsoever other than for the benefit of Company in the course of my employment,
or (ii) disclose the Confidential Information to any third party without the prior written
authorization of the Chief Executive Officer or the Board of Directors of Company. “Confidential
Information” means information disclosed, before or after the Effective Date, without regard to
form, relating to the Company’s business that has value, actual or potential, from not being
generally known to others and which the Company maintains as confidential. Confidential
Information includes both information disclosed by the Company to Executive, and information
developed or learned by Executive during the course of Executive’s employment with
Company. By example, and without limitation, Confidential Information includes software,
research, developments, methods of doing business, products, services, price and cost
information, financial information, marketing information, billing procedures, marketing and
selling techniques, and confidential information about customers, clients, suppliers and
personnel, including customer lists and customer contact information, (whether or not in
writing). Confidential Information includes information that is a trade secret under applicable
law as well as information that does not rise to the level of a trade secret. Confidential
Information also includes confidential information that the Company obtains from a third party,
which the Company is obligated to keep confidential. Confidential Information does not include
any such information which (a) has been voluntarily disclosed to the public by the Company,
except where such public disclosure has been made by Executive without the Company’s
authorization, (b) has been independently developed and disclosed by others, or (c) has

otherwise entered the public domain through lawful means. This paragraph shall not bar
Executive from complying with any subpoena or court order, provided that Executive shall at the
earliest practicable date provide a copy of the subpoena or court order to the Company’s General

Counsel.

(©) Proprietary Rights. Company shall have all right, title and interests to copyrights,
trademarks created during the course of or resulting from Executive’s employment with

Company. Those concepts and ideas disclosed by Company to Executive or which are first
developed by Executive during the course of Executive’s employment hereunder and which
relate to Company' present, past or prospective business activities, services, and products, ail

5

2014 6 15-K Miles-Ley




of which shall remain the sole and exclusive property of the Company. Executive shall have
no publication rights and all of the same shall belong exclusively to Company.  Executive
agrees to assign, and hereby does assign to Company, all rights, if any in or to such works,
trademarks, or intellectual property rights, necessary or appropriate for Company to obtain,
maintain and assert its rights in such work.

@ Enforcement of Provisions. The parties acknowledge and agree that Company
would be irreparably harmed if Executive violated the above covenants and the restrictions
contained in this Section 5.7 and that in such event, Company would not have an adequate
remedy at law. The parties therefore agree that Company, may seek an order enjoining any
breach of the above covenants, without prejudice to any other rights or remedies to which
Company may be entitled at law or equity. The parties further agree that, in any action for
specific performance of Executive covenants set forth in this Section 5.7, Company shall be
entitled to all reasonable costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred in
connection therewith if Company prevails.

(e) Return of Property. Executive agrees to return to Company, without the prior
written permission of the Chief Executive Officer or her designee, upon termination or
expiration of Executive’s employment with Company, any and all Company property in
Executive’s possession or control, including, but not limited to, all keys, credit cards,
computers, cellular telephones, and other personal items or equipment provided to Executive by
Company for use during Executive’s employment, together with all written or recorded
materials, documents, memoranda, computer discs, plans, records, notes, files, drawings, or
papers, and any copies thereof, relating to the affairs of Company, including all notes or
records relating to clients of the Company.

SECTION VI - INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION

Company shall, to the extent permitted by law, include Executive during the term of this
Agreement under any directors and officers’ liability insurance policy maintained for its
directors and officers. Company’s obligation to provide insurance and indemnification for
Executive shall survive expiration or termination of this Agreement with respect to proceedings
or threatened proceedings based on acts or omissions of Executive occurring during Executive’s
employment with Company or with any affiliated company. Such obligations shall be binding
upon Company’s successors and assigns and shall inure to the benefit of Executive’s heirs and
personal representatives.

SECTION VII - SECTION 409A

(a) It is the intent of the Company that this Agreement comply with the requirements
of Code Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (*Section 409A”) and
all guidance issued thereunder by the U.S. Internal Revenue Service with respect to any
nonqualified deferred compensation subject to Code Section 409A. This Agreement shall be
interpreted and administered to maximize the exemptions from Section 409A and, to the extent
this Agreement provides for deferred compensation subject to Code Section 409A, to comply
with Code Section 409A and to avoid the imposition of tax, interest and/or penalties upon the
Executive under Code Section 409A.

(b) Each payment under this Agreement is deemed a separate payment within the
meaning of the final regulations under Section 409A. Each Severance Payment, reimbursement
of COBRA and other payment under this Agreement that is made within 2-1/2 months following
the end of the year that contains the date of the Executive’s termination of employment is
intended to be exempt from Section 409A as a short-term deferral within the meaning of Section
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409A. Each Severance Payment or other payment that is made later than 2-1/2 months
following the end of the year that contains the date of the Executive’s termination of
employment is intended to be exempt under the two-times exception of Treasury Reg. §
].4019A-l(b)(9)(iii), up to the limitation on the availability of that exception specified in the
regulation.

(©) To the extent necessary to comply with Section 409A, references in this
Agreement to “termination of employment” or “terminates employment” (and similar
references) shall have the same meaning as “separation from service” under Section 409A, and
no payment subject to Section 409A that is payable upon a termination of employment shall be
paid unless and until the Executive incurs a “separation from service” under Section 409A.

SECTION VIII - DISPUTE RESOLUTION

(a) The parties agree to ncgotiate in good faith to resolve any controversy or claim
arising out of or relating to this Agreement, or the breach thereof. If any party to this
Agreement believes that such a controversy or claim has arisen, that party may give written
notice to the other party within sixty (60) days of the event, controversy or claim requesting a
negotiation of the matter. The parties and their representatives, if they choose to be
represented, shall meet at a mutually acceptable time and place within thirty (30) days after the
date of the initial notice, and thereafter as often as they reasonably deem necessary, to attempt
to resolve the dispute.

(b) If a resolution of the matter is not reached within forty-five (45) days of the
initial notice described above, the matter shall be submitted to arbitration,

(©) To the extent permitted by law, any dispute not settled through the process set
forth above shall be submitted to final and binding arbitration before the Judicial Arbiter Group,
Inc., of Denver, Colorado (or similar arbitration organization agreed upon by the parties with a
single arbitrator whom the parties jointly select, with the parties using their best efforts to
complete such arbitration as quickly as is reasonably practical in accordance with the Colorado
Rules of Civil Procedure. The Company shall pay the costs of the arbitrator’s fees for the
arbitration proceeding, excluding Executive’s own attorney’s fees, witness fees, and expenses,
costs of discovery and the like, which expenses are solely Executive’s responsibility. This
arbitration provision includes all disputes arising out of Executive’s employment by and other
relation and interaction with Company, whether arising during the term of Executive employment
or as a result of or after the termination of Executive employment, and whether the dispute
involves an alleged tort, contract breach, or any other kind of claim. Judgment upon the award
may be entered by any court having jurisdiction thereof. Subject to (a) above, to the fullest extent
permitted by law, this arbitration provision is intended to be, and is, the parties exclusive
method of resolving disputes, and is in lieu of any other rights or remedies to which they may
otherwise be entitled, either in law or in equity. Company and Executive expressly waive their
rights, if any, to have controversies between them decided by court or jury. Judgment upon the
award may be entered by any court having jurisdiction thereof.

@ All information relating to the procedures described in this Section VIII shall be
treated as confidential and as inadmissible settlement discussion protected by Rule 408 of the
Federal Rules of Evidence and the principles expressed therein.

(e) The procedures specified in this Section VIII shall be the exclusive procedures
for the resolution of disputes; provided, however, that either party may seek injunctive relief if
in the judgment of that party such relief is necessary to avoid irreparable damage. Any claim
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by Company arising in connection with Section 5.7 may be brought in any court of competent
jurisdiction. Despite the institution of any such judicial proceedings, the parties shall continue
to participate in good faith in the arbitration. As between the parties, all applicable statutes of
limitation shall be tolled while the procedures specified in this Section VI are pending; the
parties shall take all actions, if any, required to effect such tolling.

SECTION IX - NON-ASSIGNABILITY; BINDING EFFECT

This Agreement shall be non-assignable and shall be binding upon, and shall inure to the
benefit of Company's and its successors, and Fixecutive, Executive’s beneficiaries, heirs, and
personal representatives,

SECTION X- AMENDMENTS TO AGREEMENT

This Agreement shall supersede all prior agreewents. Any amendments to this
Agreement must be in writing and signed by Company and Exceutive; oral discussions will not
modify this Agreement.

SECTION X1 - GOVERNING LAW - SEVERABILITY

This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Colorado. The invalidity

or unenforceability of any provision of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or
enforceability of any other provision of this Agreement.

SECTION XII — ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the
employment relationship hereof and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous agreements,
promises or representations of the parties. No provision of this Agreement may be modified or
waived except in a document signed by both parties.

SECTION XHI - NOTICES

Any notice required or permitted to be given pursuant to this Agreement shall be given
in writing and shall be delivered personally or deemed delivered three (3) days after being
deposited in the United Stated mail, postage prepaid. addressed to the party. at such party’s last
known address.

IN \\2:\ ESS WHEREOFE., the parties have exccuted this Agreement this _(  day
of })r,{ , 2014,
Total Ccn'mm(nity Options, Inc. Total Community Options. Inc,
5 . 4 T ,/
Mauleen Hewitt Katie Miles-Ley iV
President and Chiel Executive Officer Senior Vice President of Human Resources
8
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Consolidated
Financial Statements and Supplementary Information

Board of Directors

Total Community Options, Inc.
d/b/a InnovAge and Subsidiaries

Denver, Colorado

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Total Community Options, Inc.
d/b/a InnovAge and Subsidiaries (the Organization), which comprise the balance sheets as of June 30,
2014 and 2013, and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash
flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America;
this includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

Praxity.:
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Board of Directors
Total Community Options, Inc.
d/b/a InnovAge and Subsidiaries

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Organization as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, and the results of its
operations, the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Supplementary Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
as a whole. The accompanying supplementary information, including the consolidating information as
listed in the table of contents, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of
the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used
to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole.

BED L

Colorado Springs, Colorado
October 27, 2014




Total Community Options, Inc.
d/b/a InnovAge and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheets
June 30, 2014 and 2013

Assets
2014 2013
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 39,622,915 $ 40,661,011
Short-term investments 8,101,206 1,001,923
Assets limited as to use, current 1,419,562 727,009
Accounts receivable, net of allowance;
2014 - $135,530 and 2013 - $142,133 19,146,351 7,836,896
Prepaid expenses and other 1,374,749 1,666,186
Total current assets 69,664,783 51,893,025
Assets Limited as to Use
Board-designated funds - beneficial interest in investment pool 22,207,190 18,849,252
Held by trustee 2,589,660 4,827,657
24,796,850 23,676,909
Long-term Investments 12,981,289 11,498,127
Property and Equipment, at Cost
Land 9,787,246 9,382,108
Buildings and leasehold improvements 63,563,273 51,110,521
Equipment and vehicles 17,888,175 16,456,375
Construction-in-progress 13,298,443 19,549,272
104,537,137 96,498,276
Less accumulated depreciation 19,045,948 21,314,046
85,491,189 75,184,230
Other Assets
Deposits and other 1,179,469 499,676
Real estate held for sale 139,858 717,947
Deferred financing costs, net 1,460,714 1,389,996
Goodwill 4,903,174 4,191,524
7,683,215 6,799,143
Total assets $ 200,617,326 $ 169,051,434

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements




Liabilities and Net Assets

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Reported and estimated claims
Due to Medicaid and Medicare
Accrued compensation
Accrued vacation
Other accrued expenses
Current portion of long-term debt
Current portion of capital lease obligations
Deferred revenue

Total current liabilities

Capital Lease Obligations

Long-term Debt

Total liabilities

Net Assets
Unrestricted
Noncontrolling interest

Total unrestricted net assets

Temporarily restricted
Permanently restricted

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

2014 2013
$ 5,742,922 $ 6,953,448
8,053,436 5,890,264
7,902,330 2,205,048
2,880,408 1,812,516
2,300,946 2,201,109
1,183,756 1,826,530
5,439,366 590,048
556,239 220,695
1,604,775 536,296
35,664,178 22,235,954
1,109,354 554,613
39,326,646 37,415,997
76,100,178 60,206,564
119,771,169 104,772,775
4,123,197 3,548,371
123,894,366 108,321,146
605,203 506,145
17,579 17,579
124,517,148 108,844,870

$ 200,617,326

$ 169,051,434




Total Community Options, Inc.
d/b/a InnovAge and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Operations
Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

2014 2013
Unrestricted Revenues, Gains and Other Support
Capitation revenue
Medicaid $ 100,711,506 $ 91,179,952
Medicare 77,464,850 71,589,244
Private pay 627,272 618,769
Veterans Administration 567,796 498,746
Fee for service revenue
Medicaid 1,013,044 1,416,441
Private pay 1,570,873 1,823,905
Single Entry Point 157,894 9,463,993
Grant revenues 699,698 805,569
Net investment return gains 1,099,590 551,431
Unrealized gain on beneficial interest in investment pool 3,086,773 1,748,942
Other 1,229,454 1,104,826
Net assets released from restriction, used for operations 464,209 681,268
Total unrestricted revenues, gains and other support 188,692,959 181,483,086
Expenses
Salaries and wages 44,307,573 45,422,584
Employee benefits 10,494,470 9,488,589
External provider costs
Inpatient 38,812,009 37,159,960
Outpatient 47,321,293 43,039,572
Rent, facility and maintenance 4,636,104 4,203,683
Purchased services and contracts 10,435,303 10,287,605
Supplies and other 8,231,716 9,527,049
Depreciation and amortization 5,321,313 4,045,368
Nutrition 1,273,985 1,240,714
Interest expense 2,298,468 2,019,034
Loss on disposal of capital assets 316,172 173,210
Provision for uncollectible accounts 126,731 311,374
Total expenses 173,575,137 166,918,742
Operating Income and Excess of Revenues Over Expenses 15,117,822 14,564,344
Unrealized losses (468,600) (72,448)
Equity contribution 923,998 -
Net assets released from restriction, used for capital purchases - 660,842
Increase in Unrestricted Net Assets $ 15,573,220 $ 15,152,738

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements




Total Community Options, Inc.
d/b/a InnovAge and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets

Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

Unrestricted Net Assets
Excess of revenues over expenses
Unrealized losses
Equity contribution
Net assets released from restriction, used for capital purchases

Increase in unrestricted net assets
Temporarily Restricted Net Assets
Contributions
Net assets released from restrictions, used for operations
Net assets released from restrictions, used for capital purchases
Increase (decrease) in temporarily restricted net assets
Change in Net Assets

Net Assets, Beginning of Year

Net Assets, End of Year

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2014

2013

$ 15,117,822

$ 14,564,344

(468,600) (72,448)
923,998 -
- 660,842
15,573,220 15,152,738
563,267 947,188

(464,209) (681,268)

- (660,842)

99,058 (394,922)
15,672,278 14,757,816
108,844,870 94,087,054

$ 124,517,148

$ 108,844,870




Total Community Options, Inc.
d/b/a InnovAge and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

2014 2013
Operating Activities
Change in net assets $ 15,672,278 $ 14,757,816
Change in net assets attributable to the noncontrolling interest
related to operating activities 349,172 290,673
Change in net assets attributable to the noncontrolling interest
related to financing activities (923,998) -
Change in net assets attributable to InnovAge 15,097,452 15,048,489
Items not requiring (providing) cash
Loss on disposal of assets 316,172 173,210
Provision for uncollectible accounts 126,731 311,374
Depreciation and amortization 5,321,313 4,045,368
Amortization of bond offering costs included in interest expense 44,561 33,935
Net realized and unrealized gains on investments (2,755,829) (1,699,053)
Changes in
Accounts receivable, net (11,436,186) 2,945,515
Assets limited as to use held for others (2,001) (28,087)
Prepaid expenses and other (493,635) 68,114
Accounts payable (608,010) 1,344,882
Reported and estimated claims 2,163,172 1,513,141
Due to Medicaid and Medicare 5,697,282 432,663
Accrued compensation and vacation 1,167,729 (155,384)
Other accrued expenses (642,774) (683,393)
Deferred revenue 1,068,479 (5,920,035)
Noncontrolling interest (349,172) (290,673)
Net cash provided by operating activities 14,715,284 17,140,066
Investing Activities
Purchase of property and equipment (14,849,986) (14,122,076)
Purchase of investments (20,479,216) (14,930,378)
Proceeds from investments 13,134,776 7,783,625
Purchase of THA (729,000) -
Change in beneficial interest in investment pools (271,165) (2,161,392)
Change in bond sinking fund (21,504) 32,892
Net cash used in investing activities (23,216,095) (23,397,329)
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 6




Total Community Options, Inc.
d/b/a InnovAge and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (continued)
Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

2014 2013

Financing Activities

Equity contributed by noncontrolling interest 923,998 -

Proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt 7,362,578 -

Principal payments on capital lease (221,250) (132,166)

Principal payments on long-term debt (602,611) (558,216)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 7,462,715 (690,382)

Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents (1,038,096) (6,947,645)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 40,661,011 47,608,656
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $ 39,622,915 $ 40,661,011
Supplemental Cash Flows Information

Interest paid $ 2,364,265 $ 2,360,507

Property and equipment included in accounts payable $ 1,177,016 $ 1,779,532

Property and equipment purchased with capital lease $ 1,111,535 $ 889,288

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 7




Total Community Options, Inc.
d/b/a InnovAge and Subsidiaries

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2014 and 2013

Note 1: Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Operations

Total Community Options, Inc. d/b/a InnovAge (InnovAge) is a nonprofit corporation formed in
May 2007. InnovAge was formed as a parent/holding company for the following related entities:

e Total Longterm Care, Inc. d/b/a InnovAge Greater Colorado PACE (IGCP) is a nonprofit
corporation formed in December 1989 to operate the Program of All-inclusive Care for the
Elderly (PACE), a risk-based long-term care program. IGCP operates a managed care,
capitated program, which serves the frail elderly in a community-based service model.
Elderly enrolled in IGCP receive all needed acute and long-term care services through a
comprehensive, consolidated model of care primarily through four day center locations in
the Denver metro area and one day center location in Pueblo, Colorado. Capitation
payments are received from Medicare parts A, B, C and D, Medicaid, Veterans
Administration (VA) and private pay sources. IGCP is 100% at risk for all health and
allied care costs incurred with respect to the care of its participants, although it does
negotiate discounted rates with its provider network including hospitals, nursing homes,
assisted living facilities and medical specialists. Additionally, under the Medicare
Prescription Drug Plan, the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) share part
of the risk for providing prescription medication to IGCP’s participants.

o In January 2009, Continental Community Housing (CCH), a Colorado nonprofit
corporation, was formed to be the general partner of Pinewood Lodge, LLLP
(PWD). CCH is owned 100% by 1GCP.

o Effective February 2009, IGCP purchased, on behalf of CCH, a 0.01% partnership
interest in PWD, which has been consolidated for reporting purposes. CCH is the
general partner of PWD and has control over PWD’s operations, reporting and
other day-to-day functions. The limited partners only have the ability to terminate
the general partner with cause. The remaining 99.99% is shown as a
noncontrolling interest in these financial statements. PWD was organized to
develop, construct, own, maintain and operate a 103 unit apartment complex
intended for rental to low-income elderly individuals aged 62 and older (the
Project). The Project was completed and began initial operations in January 2005.
The Project received an allocation of low-income housing tax credits from the
Colorado Housing and Finance Authority under Section 42 of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended.

o In September 2011, TLC Inland, LLC (Inland) was formed and organized in
Delaware. IGCP is the sole member of Inland. Inland’s purpose is to develop a
PACE center to serve San Bernardino and Riverside, California counties.

o InDecember 2012, InnovAge Greater Colorado PACE — Loveland, LL.C (IGCPL)
was formed and incorporated in Colorado. IGCP is the sole member of IGCPL..
IGCPL’s purpose is to expand PACE services to Northern Colorado. There was
no activity in IGCPL as of June 30, 2014. Construction is scheduled to begin in
the fall of fiscal year 2015, and the center is expected to open fall of 2016.




Total Community Options, Inc.
d/b/a InnovAge and Subsidiaries

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2014 and 2013

o InMarch 2013, InnovAge Senior Housing - Thornton (Managing Member), LLC
(SHMM) was formed and incorporated in Colorado. InnovAge is the sole member
of SHMM. The purpose of SHMM is to manage senior properties.

o In April 2013, InnovAge Senior Housing Thornton, LLC (SH1) was formed and
incorporated in Colorado. SHMM is the managing member of SH1, with US
Bancorp Community Development Corporation as the investor member. SH1’s
purpose is to develop senior housing. InnovAge is the general partner of SH1 and
has control over SH1’s operations, reporting and other day-to-day functions. The
limited partners only have the ability to terminate the general partner with cause.
The remaining 99.99% is shown as a noncontrolling interest in these financial
statements. SH1 was organized to develop, construct, own, maintain and operate a
72 unit apartment complex intended for rental to low-income elderly individuals
aged 62 and older. As of June 30, 2014, the building was still in the construction
phase.

o In June 2013, InnovAge Senior Housing — Thornton II, LLC (SH2) was formed
and incorporated in Colorado. InnovAge is the sole member of SH2. SH2’s
purpose is also to develop senior housing.

o InMay 2013, InnovAge Greater California PACE (ISB) was formed to provide
comprehensive, consolidated and coordinated healthcare service packages of
medical and institutional services to frail elderly populations within PACE for the
State of California. InnovAge is the sole member of ISB.

In July 2003, Total Community Care, LLC d/b/a InnovAge Greater New Mexico PACE
(IGNMP) was formed to provide comprehensive, consolidated and coordinated healthcare
service packages of medical and institutional services to frail elderly populations within
PACE for the Medical Assistance Division of New Mexico Human Resources Department.

In August 2002, Longterm Care Options, LLC d/b/a InnovAge Longterm Care Options
(LTCO) was formed. InnovAge is the sole member of LTCO. LTCO’s purpose is to
operate a Single Entry Point Program, which evaluates functional eligibility and
coordinates services for applicants seeking long-term care through the state of Colorado’s
Medicaid Program. The contract for Single Entry Point and associated programs was not
renewed subsequent to June 30, 2013.

Total Longterm Care Solutions, LLC d/b/a InnovAge-Lowry (Lowry) was formed in May
2007. InnovAge is the sole member of Lowry. Lowry’s purpose is to provide technical
assistance and consulting services to other organizations which are planning to operate
PACE programs, as well as consulting to existing PACE providers. Effective July 1, 2009,
Lowry became the management company for InnovAge’s affiliated companies and collects
management fees for such services.

InnovAge Insurance Limited (IIL) was formed in December 2013. IIL was incorporated in
the Isle of Man to provide insurance underwriting services to InnovAge.

Total Community Options Foundation, Inc. d/b/a InnovAge Foundation (IFDN) was
formed in June 2008. IFDN’s purpose is to secure broad-based community support for the
programs of InnovAge and affiliated companies.




Total Community Options, Inc.
d/b/a InnovAge and Subsidiaries

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2014 and 2013

In January 2009, the Colorado Health Foundation (CHF) transferred the operations of
Johnson Adult Day Program, Inc. d/b/a InnovAge Johnson Adult Day Program (IJADP) to
InnovAge. IJADP is a nonprofit corporation located in Englewood, Colorado and it
operates a day center that specializes in providing adult day activities to those with
memory or physical impairments. Respite, education and case management services are
provided for caregivers. InnovAge has agreed to operate and oversee operations of the
adult day care program per the operating agreement until December 31, 2018.

In January 2009, InnovAge assumed control of Seniors Inc. d/b/a InnovAge Home Care
(IHC). IHC is a nonprofit corporation and was established for the purpose of promoting
independence and enriching the quality of life for its clients as they age. IHC provides
home care and other services to seniors and is supported primarily through program
income and government grants and contracts.

o In January 2012, IHC purchased InnovAge Homecare North, LLC (IHCN), a
Colorado organization licensed for skilled and non-skilled care in Boulder,
Larimer and Weld Counties. IHC is the sole member of IHCN.

o In April 2014, InnovAge purchased InnovAge Homecare — Aspen, LLC (IHA), a
Colorado organization licensed for skilled and non-skilled care in Pitkin, Garfield
and Eagle Counties. THC is the sole member of THA.

In December 2008, Innovative Care Solutions, LL.C (ICS) was formed. The sole member
of ICS was LTCO. ICS provided services that supplemented the work of LTCO.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the entities listed under Nature of

Operations, collectively “the Organization”. All significant intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.
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Total Community Options, Inc.
d/b/a InnovAge and Subsidiaries

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2014 and 2013

Noncontrolling Interest

Noncontrolling interest represents the 99.99% interest in PWD and SH1 that is not owned by
InnovAge. For the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, changes in consolidated unrestricted net
assets attributable to the controlling financial interest of InnovAge and the noncontrolling interest

are:

Balance, July 1, 2012

Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenses

Change in net unrealized
loss on investments

Net assets released from
restriction, used for
capital purchases

Increase (decrease) in
unrestricted net assets

Balance, July 1, 2013

Excess of revenues
over expenses
Change in net unrealized
loss on investments
Equity contributions

Increase in unrestricted
net assets

Balance, June 30, 2014

The change in temporarily and permanently restricted net assets is attributable solely to the

controlling interest.

Controlling Noncontrolling
Total Interest Interest
93,168,408 89,329,364  § 3,839,044
14,564,344 14,855,017 (290,673)
(72,448) (72,448) -
660,842 660,842 -
15,152,738 15,443,411 (290,673)
108,321,146 104,772,775 3,548,371
15,117,822 14,542,996 574,826
(468,600) (468,600) -
923,998 923,998 -
15,573,220 14,998,394 574,826
123,894,366 119,771,169  § 4,123,197
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d/b/a InnovAge and Subsidiaries

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2014 and 2013

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash Equivalents

The Organization considers all liquid investments, other than those limited as to use, with original
maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents. At June 30, 2014 and 2013, cash
equivalents consisted primarily of certificates of deposits and bank money market accounts.

At June 30, 2014, the Organization’s cash accounts exceeded federally insured limits by
approximately $38,555,000.

Investments and Investment Return

Investments in equity securities having a readily determinable fair value and in all debt securities
are carried at fair value. Other investments are valued at the lower of cost (or fair value at time of
donation, if acquired by contribution) or fair value. Investment return includes dividend, interest
and other investment income; realized and unrealized gains and losses on investments carried at
fair value; and realized gains and losses on other investments.

Investment return that is initially restricted by donor stipulation and for which the restriction will
be satisfied in the same year is included in unrestricted net assets. Other investment return is
reflected in the statements of operations and changes in net assets as unrestricted, temporarily
restricted or permanently restricted based upon the existence and nature of any donor or legally
imposed restrictions.

Assets Limited as to Use

Assets limited as to use include (1) assets held by trustee, which are restricted by bond agreements,
including approximately $2,580,000 and $2,560,000 as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively,
which is required to be held in reserves pursuant to bond indenture agreements and approximately
$10,000 and $2,270,000 of bond proceeds to be used for capital expenditures as of June 30, 2014
and 2013, respectively, (2) assets held as collateral for letters of credit in the amount of $677,165
and $300,000 as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, (3) board-designated funds, over which
the Board retains control and may use for any purpose, investments are held in a beneficial interest
in an investment pool, and (4) assets held for participants who have established a personal needs
account to pay for nonmedical personal expenses. The Organization is only entitled to disburse
funds from the accounts with client authorization. An offsetting liability is recorded on the books
of the Organization for the amount of funds that are available to cover future client expenses as of
the financial statement dates. Amounts required to meet current liabilities of the Organization are
included in current assets.
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Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2014 and 2013

Accounts Receivable

The Organization reports accounts receivable for services rendered at net realizable amounts from
third-party payers, participants and others. The Organization provides an allowance for doubtful
accounts based upon a review of outstanding receivables, eligibility, historical collection
information and existing economic conditions. Accounts are considered delinquent and
subsequently written-off as bad debts based on individual credit evaluation and specific
circumstances of the account.

Beginning in fiscal year 2011, IGCP experienced significant delays in processing Medicaid
payments through the state of Colorado. IGCP has implemented an internal process where they
review a participant’s Medicaid eligibility and effective date by pre-screening the participant
information. Due to the significant volume of delays, IGCP began tracking the different categories
of Medicaid accounts receivable in 2012. As of June 30, IGCP recorded a net realizable Medicaid
accounts receivable, which is included in accounts receivable on the consolidated balance sheet, as
follows:

2014 2013

Participants approved but payment not received $ - $ 1,520,697
Participants with Medicaid identifications 11,592,598 984,828
Participants in the Qualified Medicaid

Beneficiary file being manually processed 244,108 202,966
Medicaid pending participants 7,280 35,076
Post eligibility treatment of income 1,562,204 1,562,204
Total net Medicaid accounts receivable $ 13,406,190 $ 4,305,771

IGCP is working in conjunction with the state of Colorado to process the above categories of
accounts receivable. Subsequent to June 30, 2014, approximately 51% of the net Medicaid
accounts receivable listed above was collected. Management believes the remaining accounts are
collectible based on management’s pre-screening process, historical collection experience and
individual account information.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of
each asset. Assets under capital lease obligations and leasehold improvements are depreciated over
the shorter of the lease term or their respective estimated useful lives.

Donations of property and equipment are reported at fair value as an increase in unrestricted net
assets unless use of the assets is restricted by the donor. Monetary gifts that must be used to
acquire property and equipment are reported as restricted support. The expiration of such
restrictions is reported as an increase in unrestricted net assets when the donated asset is placed in
service.
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Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2014 and 2013

The Organization capitalizes interest costs as a component of construction-in-progress, based on
interest costs of borrowing specifically for the project, net of interest earned on investments
acquired with the proceeds of the borrowing. During 2014 and 2013, the Organization capitalized
interest of approximately $166,400 and $400,000, respectively.

Goodwill and Long-lived Asset Impairment

The Organization evaluates the recoverability of the carrying value of long-lived assets whenever
events or circumstances indicate the carrying amount may not be recoverable. If a long-lived asset
is tested for recoverability and the undiscounted estimated future cash flows expected to result
from the use and eventual disposition of the asset is less than the carrying amount of the asset, the
asset cost is adjusted to fair value and an impairment loss is recognized as the amount by which the
carrying amount of a long-lived asset exceeds its fair value.

No impairment was recognized during the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013. At June 30, 2014,
there was goodwill of $4,116,524 related to the purchase of IGNMP, $75,000 related to the
purchase of THCN and $711,650 related to the purchase of IHA.

Deferred Financing Costs

Deferred financing costs represent costs incurred in connection with the issuance of long-term debt.
Such costs are being amortized over the term of the respective debt using the straight-line method.

Temporarily and Permanently Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets are those whose use by the Organization has been limited by
donors to a specific time period or purpose. Permanently restricted net assets have been restricted
by donors to be maintained by the Organization in perpetuity.

Revenue Recognition

IGCP, IGNMP and ISB provide comprehensive health care services to participants on the basis of
fixed or capitated fees per participant that are paid monthly by Medicare, Medicaid, the VA and
private pay sources. Medicaid and Medicare capitation revenues are based on per-member, per-
month capitation rates under the PACE program. The PACE tri-party contract, between the
respective state and CMS, is renewable annually every year for IGCP, IGNMP and ISB. The
current agreements are effective through June 30, 2014 for IGCP, IGNMP and ISB. Capitation
payments are recognized as revenue in the period in which they relate.
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Capitation revenues may be subject to adjustment as a result of examination by government
agencies or contractors. The audit process and the resolution of significant related matters often
are not finalized until several years after the services are rendered. At times, IGCP accepts
participants into the program pending final authorization from Medicaid. If Medicaid coverage is
denied and there are no alternative resources available to pay IGCP, the participant is disenrolled
and the risk is eliminated. Any costs incurred on behalf of these participants were nominal in the
current and prior year. Net participant service revenues consisted of the following sources:

2014 2013
Medicaid 57% 54%
Medicare 42% 40%
Private pay 1% 1%
Single Entry Point 0% 5%
100% 100%

IGCP, IGNMP and ISB also provide prescription drug benefits in accordance with Medicare Part D
under a contract with CMS. The payments IGCP, IGNMP and ISB receive monthly from CMS
and its participants represent its bid amount for providing prescription drug coverage. The CMS
payment is subject to risk sharing through the Medicare Part D risk sharing corridor provisions.
The risk sharing corridor provisions compare costs targeted in IGCP’s, IGNMP’s and ISB’s bid to
actual prescription drug costs, limited to costs that would have been incurred under the standard
coverage as defined by CMS. IGCP, IGNMP and ISB estimate and recognize an adjustment to
Medicare Part D revenues related to these risk corridor provisions.

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and subject to
interpretation and change. Compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to future
government review and interpretation, as well as significant regulatory action including fines,
penalties, and exclusion from the Medicare and Medicaid programs. As a result, it is reasonably
possible that recorded estimates will change materially in the near term.

LTCO evaluates functional eligibility and obtains services for clients seeking long-term care on the
basis of a fixed expenditure reimbursement contract with the Colorado Department of Health Care
Policy and Financing (HCPF) that is paid monthly by the Single Entry Point Program. Fees are
earned when LTCO incurs an allowable expenditure under the contract.

Federal Funds

LTCO receives certain revenues from contracts that are passed through various state governmental
agencies. Disbursements of funds received under these contracts generally require compliance
with terms and conditions specified in the contracts and are subject to audit by the contracting
agencies. The amount of charges to these contracts that may be disallowed, if any, by such audits
cannot presently be determined and no provision for any liability that may result has been made in
the consolidated financial statements. The contract for the Single Entry Point and associated
programs were not renewed subsequent to June 30, 2013.
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THC receives revenues from contracts that are awarded through various state and federal
governmental agencies. Disbursements of funds received under these contracts generally require
compliance with terms and conditions specified in the contracts and are subject to audit by the
contracting agencies. The amount of charges to these contracts that may be disallowed, if any, by
such audits cannot presently be determined and no provision for any liability that could result has
been made in the consolidated financial statements.

Contributions

Unconditional gifts expected to be collected within one year are reported at their net realizable
value. Unconditional gifts expected to be collected in future years are initially reported at fair
value determined using the discounted present value of estimated future cash flows technique. The
resulting discount is amortized using the level-yield method and is reported as contribution
revenue.

Gifts received with donor stipulations are reported as either temporarily or permanently restricted
support. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a time restriction ends or purpose
restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified and reported as an
increase in unrestricted net assets. Conditional contributions are reported as liabilities until the
condition is eliminated or the contributed assets are returned to the donor.

Professional Liability Claims

The Organization recognizes an accrual for claim liabilities based on estimated ultimate losses and
costs associated with settling claims and a receivable to reflect the estimated insurance recoveries,
if any. Professional liability claims are described more fully in Note 10.

InnovAge Insurance Limited

During the year ended June 30, 2014, the Organization formed a captive insurance company to
provide workers’ compensation liability insurance. IIL has partnered with Marsh Management
Services Isle of Man Limited to provide underwriting services.

Income Taxes

IGCP, LTCO, InnovAge, IHC, IHCN, THA, IFDN, ICS, IJADP, IGNMP, Lowry, SHMM and SH2
have been recognized as exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code. However, the Organization is subject to federal income tax on any unrelated
business taxable income.

CCH is a Colorado nonprofit corporation but has elected to be taxed as a “C” Corporation under
provisions of the Internal Revenue Code and a similar section of the state income tax law.

The members of PWD and SH1 have elected to be taxed as a partnership. Therefore, no provision
for income taxes is included in these financial statements.

Inland is a Delaware corporation and has elected to be taxed as a “C” Corporation under provisions
of the Internal Revenue Code and a similar section of the state income tax law.
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IIL was incorporated as a limited organization in the Isle of Man and will be taxed similar to a “C”
Corporation.

The Organization files tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction. The Organization is no longer
subject to U.S. federal examinations by tax authorities for years before 2011.

Excess of Revenues Over Expenses

The consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets include excess of revenues
over expenses. Changes in unrestricted net assets which are excluded from excess of revenues over
expenses, consistent with industry practice, include unrealized gains and losses on investments
other than trading securities, permanent transfers to and from affiliates for other than goods and
services, equity contributions and contributions of long-lived assets (including assets acquired
using contributions which by donor restriction were to be used for the purpose of acquiring such
assets).

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Organization provides comprehensive health care services to participants on the basis of fixed
or capitated fees per participant that are paid monthly by Medicare, Medicaid, the VA and private
pay sources. The mix of net receivables from participants and third-party payers at June 30 was:

2014 2013
Medicaid T1% 62%
Medicare 28% 35%
Private pay 1% 304
100% 100%

Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through the date of the Independent Auditor’s Report,
which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2013 financial statements to conform to the 2014
financial statement presentation. These reclassifications had no effect on the change in net assets.
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Note 2: Investments and Investment Return

Assets Limited as to Use

Assets limited as to use at June 30 include:

2014 2013
Internally-designated
Investment pools
Institutional Commodities, Ltd. $ 1,197,671 $ 1,388,424
Institutional Multi-Strategy Equity Fund, LLC 15,499,841 12,262,174
Institutional Multi-Strategy Bond Fund, LL.C 5,509,678 5,198,654
22,207,190 18,849,252
Assets held for collateral 677,165 -
Held by trustee under indenture agreement
Fixed income securities . 2,556,854 3,607,039
Money market funds 747,990 1,918,413
3,304,844 5,525,452
Held on behalf of participants
Cash and cash equivalents 27,213 29,214
Total assets limited as to use 26,216,412 24,403,918
Less long-term assets limited as to use 24,796,850 23,676,909
Short-term assets limited as to use $ 1,419,562 $ 727,009
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Other Investments

Other investments at June 30 include:

2014 2013
Fixed income securities $ 14,964,665 $ 7,470,796
Certificates of deposit 5,266,488 4,987,081
Money market funds 851,342 42,173
21,082,495 12,500,050
Less long-term investments 12,981,289 11,498,127
Short-term investments $ 8,101,206 $ 1,001,923

Total investment return is comprised of the following:

2014 2013
Interest and dividend income $ 961,934 $ 528,872
Unrealized gains 2,618,173 1,676,494
Realized gains on investments 137,656 22,559

$ 3,717,763 $ 2,227,925

Total investment return is reflected in the consolidated statements of operations and changes in net
assets as follows:

2014 2013
Unrestricted net assets
Net investment return $ 1,099,590 $ 551,431
Unrealized gain on beneficial
interest in investment pool 3,086,773 1,748,942
Unrealized losses (468,600) (72,448)

$ 3,717,763 § 2227925
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Investment Pools

The Organization is a participant in an investment pool of which the Organization has purchased a
fund interest under a subscription agreement. The fair value of investment pools has been
estimated using the net asset value per share of the investments. Pooled investments held at

June 30 consist of the following:

2014
Redemption
Redemption Notice
Fair Value Frequency Period
Institutional Commodities, Ltd. (A) $ 1,197,671 Monthly 5 days
Institutional Multi-Strategy
Equity Fund, LLC (B) $ 15,499,841 Monthly 5 days
Institutional Multi-Strategy !
Bond Fund, LL.C (C) $ 5,509,678 Monthly 5 days
2013
Redemption
Redemption Notice
Fair Value Frequency Period
Institutional Commodities, Ltd. (A) $ 1,388,424 Monthly 5 days
Institutional Multi-Strategy
Equity Fund, LLC (B) $ 12,262,174 Monthly 5 days
Institutional Multi-Strategy
Bond Fund, LLC (C) $ 5,198,654 Monthly 5 days

(A) This category includes investments primarily in money market accounts.

(B) This category includes a broad spectrum of equity strategies, which includes common stocks
or securities convertible into common stocks of both United States companies and foreign

companies in both developed and emerging markets.

(C) This category includes a broad spectrum of fixed income sectors, which includes global bond,
high yield bonds, emerging market debts and other fixed income strategies. The majority of
the fund is invested directly or indirectly in fixed income securities or cash.
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Note 3: Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following purposes or periods and are held by

IFDN:
2014 2013

Helping hands funds $ 83,739 $ 77,607
PACE program funds 182,356 63,786
IJADP program funds 119,480 321,964
IJADP capital expansion 7,225 4,225
IHC program funds 166,861 27,785
Other 45,542 10,778

$ 605,203 $ 506,145

Net Assets Released from Restrictions

Net assets were released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the restricted

purposes or by occurrence of other events specified by donors:

2014 2013

Helping hands funds $ 43,677 $ 24,860
PACE program funds 2,000 2,631
IJADP program funds 260,761 56,793
IJADP capital expansion - 710,626
IHC program funds - 172,680
Other 157,771 374,520

$ 464,209 $§ 1,342,110

During 2014, net assets of $464,209 were released to be used for operations. During 2013, net
assets of $660,842 were released for capital purchases and $681,268 were released to be used for

operations.

21




Total Community Options, Inc.
d/b/a InnovAge and Subsidiaries

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2014 and 2013

Note 4: Endowment

The Organization’s endowment consists of two individual funds established for a variety of
purposes. The endowment includes both donor-restricted endowment funds and funds designated
by the governing body to function as endowments (board-designated endowment funds). As
required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), net
assets associated with endowment funds, including board-designated endowment funds, are
classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.

The Organization’s governing body has interpreted the State of Colorado Prudent Management of
Institutional Funds Act (SPMIFA) as requiring preservation of the fair value of the original gift as
of the gift date of the donor-restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor stipulations to the
contrary. As aresult of this interpretation, the Organization classifies as permanently restricted net
assets (a) the original value of gifts donated to the permanent endowment, (b) the original value of
subsequent gifts to the permanent endowment, and (c) accumulations to the permanent endowment
made in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the
accumulation is added to the fund. The remaining portion of donor-restricted endowment fund is
classified as temporarily restricted net assets until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure
by the Organization in a manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by SPMIFA.
In accordance with SPMIFA, the Organization considers the following factors in making a
determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds:

1. Duration and preservation of the fund

2. Purposes of the Organization and the fund

3. General economic conditions

4. Possible effect of inflation and deflation

5. Expected total return from investment income
and appreciation or depreciation of investments

6. Other resources of the Organization

7. Investment policies of the Organization

The composition of net assets by type of endowment fund at June 30 was:

2014
Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Total
Donor-restricted
endowment funds $ - $ 17,579 $ 17,579
Board-designated
endowment funds 180,902 - 180,902
Total endowment funds $ 180,902 $ 17,579 $ 198,481
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2013
Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Total
Donor-restricted
endowment funds $ - $ 17,579 $ 17,579
Board-designated
endowment funds 180,902 - 180,902
Total endowment funds $ 180,902 $ 17,579 $ 198,481

Changes in endowment net assets for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 were:

2014
Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Total
Endowment net assets,
beginning of year $ 180,902 $ 17,579 $ 198,481
Investment income 411 40 451
Appropriations (411) (40) (451)
Total investment return, net - - -
Endowment net assets,
end of year $ 180,902 $ 17,579 $ 198,481
2013
Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Total
Endowment net assets,
beginning of year $ 180,902 $ 17,579 $ 198,481
Investment income 391 - 391
Appropriations (391) - (391)
Total investment return, net - - -
Endowment net assets,
end of year $ 180,902 $ 17,579 $ 198,481
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From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment
funds may fall below the level the Organization is required to retain as a fund of perpetual duration
pursuant to donor stipulations or SPMIFA. There were no such deficiencies as of June 30, 2014
and 2013.

The Organization has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment assets that attempt
to provide a predictable stream of funding to programs and other items supported by its
endowment, while seeking to maintain the purchasing power of the endowment. Endowment
assets include those assets of donor-restricted endowment funds the Organization must hold in
perpetuity, as well as those of board-designated endowment funds. Under the Organization’s
policies, endowment assets are invested in a manner that is intended to produce returns that
regularly meet or exceed the average return on three-month U.S. Treasury bills, or the average rate
on the federal funds, whichever is higher.

The Organization has a policy of appropriating for expenditure each year the investment return on
the endowment funds. In establishing this policy, the Organization considered the long-term
expected return on its endowment. This is consistent with the Organization’s objective to maintain
the original gift of endowment assets held in perpetuity.

Note 5: Line-of-Credit

As a part of the 2010 Series Revenue bonds discussed at Note 6, IGCP has a $3,000,000 revolving
line-of-credit agreement which matures on December 31, 2014. The line-of-credit has interest at
an annual rate equal to the bank’s prime rate (3.25% at June 30, 2014). The line-of-credit is
collateralized by parity interest in IGCP assets with bondholders. As of June 30, 2014 and 2013,
there was $0 outstanding on this line-of-credit.
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Note 6: Long-term Debt

Long-term debt consists of the following:

2014 2013

2010 Series Revenue bonds (A) $ 26,770,000 $ 27,195,000
2011 Series Revenue bonds (B) 6,785,000 6,900,000
Capital lease obligations (C) 1,665,593 775,308
Mortgage payable (D) 3,927,257 3,985,222
Construction loan (E) 7,362,578 -

46,510,428 38,855,530
Less unamortized discount 78,823 74,177
Less current maturities 5,995,605 810,743

$ 40,436,000 $ 37,970,610

(A) Effective October 1, 2010, IGCP completed a $28,000,000 fixed rate tax-exempt revenue
bond offering (the 2010 Bonds), issued and sold by the Colorado Health Facilities Authority
(the Authority). The bonds are secured by real estate for IGCP and ISB PACE centers and
Lowry, as well as the gross revenues of IGCP and ISB.

The 2010 Bonds mature November 15, 2040. Interest on the 2010 Bonds is payable semi-
annually each May 15 and November 15 beginning November 15, 2010 at an interest rate of
4.25%.

The 2010 Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity on or after November 15, 2020,
at the option of the Authority at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of
the 2010 Bonds to be redeemed, plus accrued interest thereon to the date of redemption,
without premium.

Under the terms of the 2010 Bonds, IGCP is required to meet certain operational and
reporting requirements. As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, management believes IGCP was in
compliance with those requirements.

(B) Effective December 1, 2011, IGCP completed a $7,000,000 fixed rate tax-exempt revenue
bond offering (the 2011 Bonds), issued and sold by the Authority. The bonds are secured by
real estate for IGCP and ISB PACE centers and Lowry, as well as the gross revenues of IGCP
and ISB.

The 2011 Bonds mature November 15, 2040. Interest on the 2011 Bonds is payable semi-
annually each May 15 and November 15 beginning November 15, 2011 at an interest rate of
5%.
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The 2011 Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity on or after November 15, 2021,
at the option of the Authority at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of
the 2011 Bonds to be redeemed, plus accrued interest thereon to the date of redemption,
without premium.

Under the terms of the 2011 Bonds, IGCP is required to meet certain operational and
reporting requirements. As of June 30, 2014, management believes IGCP was in compliance
with those requirements.

The Organization has various capital leases with due dates ranging July 2014 to February
2018, at various interest rates; payable in monthly installments ranging from $995 to $6,429;
collateralized by equipment. Property and equipment include the following property under
capital leases:

2014 2013
Equipment $ 2,454,045 $ 1,005,291
Less accumulated depreciation 524,563 160,532

$ 1,929,482 $ 844,759

The Organization acquired a mortgage payable originally entered into by PWD in the amount
of $4,300,000 on December 23, 2003. The mortgage bears interest at an annual rate of
7.09%. The loan is secured by a deed of trust, security agreement, financing statement and
assignment of rents and revenues of PWD. The mortgage payable is guaranteed by IGCP.

The Organization executed a construction and convertible loan agreement with U.S. Bank on
August 20, 2013, entered into by SH1 for the construction of a 72-unit affordable housing
apartment project in the aggregate amount of $10,300,000, which consists of a construction
loan in an original principal amount not to exceed $7,750,000 and a convertible term loan in
an original principal amount not to exceed $2,550,000. As of June 30, 2014, $7,362,578 of
available principal has been drawn upon of which $2,550,000 is shown as long-term under
the convertible debt agreement and $4,812,578 is considered current as no permanent
financing has been obtained above the convertible amount.

The convertible term loan has payments of accrued interest only through August 31, 2015.
Interest rate as of June 30, 2014 was 2.32%. Principal and interest payments on the
convertible loan commence on September 1, 2015 in the amount of $16,585 monthly for a
period of 15 years. The remaining balance is due on the maturity date. SH1 has a
commitment for additional financing from an Equity Member of $9,662,379 of which
$923,998 has been collected. This additional financing will be used for construction costs
and to repay the construction loan. The loan is secured by a deed of trust to Public Trustee,
assignment of leases and rents, security agreements and fixture filing of SHI.
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Aggregate annual maturities for fiscal years ending June 30 were as follows:

Long-term
Debt
(Excluding
Capital Capital
Lease Lease

Obligations) Obligations

2015 $ 5,439,366 $ 642,115
2016 676,403 502,961
2017 713,894 339,986
2018 756,445 261,109
2019 794,543 102,934
Thereafter 36,464,184 -
$ 44,844,835 1,849,105
Less amount representing interest 183,512
Present value of future minimum
lease payments 1,665,593
Less current maturities 556,239
Noncurrent portion $ 1,109,354

The 2011 Bonds and 2010 Bonds require that IGCP maintain certain trust accounts with, and for
the benefit of, the trustee. Bond sinking funds have been established for the payment of principal
and interest on the 2011 Bonds and 2010 Bonds to make such payments when due. IGCP’s bond
sinking funds are invested in cash and money market funds.

Note 7: Retirement Plan

The Organization has a 401(k) Retirement Savings Plan (the Plan) covering eligible employees.
Effective July 1, 2011, the Plan was amended to define an eligible employee as an employee who
has provided 90 days of service regardless of hours worked. The Organization also matches 100%
of the employee contribution up to 2% and 1% of the participants’ compensation for the years
ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Effective December 1, 2013, the Organization established a 457(f) and 457(b) Deferred
Compensation Plan for key employees. For the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, the
Organization’s matching contributions were $868,109 and $399,185, respectively, for all employee
benefit plans.
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Note 8: Related-party Transactions

One member of the Organization’s Board of Directors contracts with local nursing homes, at which
certain of the Organization’s participants are placed. The Organization made payments during the
years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 of $0 and $3,872,650, respectively, to these providers for
services.

The Organization has other Board members who work for entities hired by the Organization. The
Board of Directors has implemented a conflict of interest policy to account for these relationships.

In January 2012, IGCP issued a $250,000 note payable to IHC. The note is payable $2,776
monthly, including interest at 6% and is due in January 2022. The note is secured by IHC property.
The note payable has been eliminated in the consolidated financial statements.

In August 2013, InnovAge issued a $1,500,000 promissory note to SH1. The note is due in full on
August 19, 2053, including interest at the rate of 1.6% per annum. The loan is secured by a deed of
trust to Public Trustee, assignment of leases and rents, security agreements and fixture filing of
SH1. The promissory note has been eliminated in the consolidated financial statements.

In March 2014, InnovAge issued a $729,000 promissory note to IHA. The note is payable $8,093
monthly, including interest of 6% and is due in September 2024. The note is secured by THA
property. The promissory note has been eliminated in the consolidated financial statements.

Note 9: Functional Expenses

The Organization provides health care and case management services primarily to residents within
its geographic area. Expenses related to providing these services are as follows:

2014 2013
Program services $ 148,352,787 $ 142,293,390
General and administrative 25,222,350 24,625,352

$ 173,575,137 $ 166,918,742

Note 10: General and Professional Liability

The Organization pays fixed premiums for annual professional liability insurance coverage under a
claims-made policy. Under such policy, only claims made and reported to the insurer are covered
during the policy term, regardless of when the incident giving rise to the claim occurred. The
Organization is not aware of any unasserted claims or unreported incidents which are expected to
exceed malpractice insurance coverage limits. It is reasonably possible that this estimate could
change materially in the future. The Organization records claim liabilities and expected recoveries
at the gross amounts.
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Note 11: Disclosures About Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value measurements
must maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. There is
a hierarchy of three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value:

Level 1  Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for similar assets
or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are
observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the
full term of the assets or liabilities

Level 3  Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are

significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities

Recurring Measurements

The following table presents the fair value measurements of assets and liabilities recognized in the
accompanying balance sheets measured at fair value on a recurring basis and the level within the
fair value hierarchy in which the fair value measurements fall at June 30:

Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted Prices

in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
June 30, 2014
Investment pools
Institutional Commodities, Ltd.  § 1,197,671 $ - 1,197,671 $ -
Institutional Multi-Strategy
Equity Fund, LLC 15,499,841 - 15,380,186 119,655
Institutional Multi-Strategy
Bond Fund, LLC 5,509,678 - 5,509,678 -
Fixed income funds 17,521,519 - 17,521,519 -
Money market funds 1,599,332 1,599,332 - -
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Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted Prices

in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
June 30, 2013
Investment pools
Institutional Commodities, Ltd.  § 1,388,424 $ - 3 1,388,424 $ -
Institutional Multi-Strategy
Equity Fund, LLC 12,262,174 . 11,729,324 532,850
Institutional Multi-Strategy
Bond Fund, LLC 5,198,654 - 5,198,654 -
Fixed income funds 11,077,835 - 11,077,835 -
Money market funds 1,960,586 1,960,586 - -

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies and inputs used for assets and liabilities
measured at fair value on a recurring basis and recognized in the accompanying balance sheets, as
well as the general classification of such assets and liabilities pursuant to the valuation hierarchy.
There have been no significant changes in the valuation techniques during the year ended June 30,
2014. For assets classified within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, the process used to develop
the reported fair value is described below.

Investments

Where quoted market prices are available in an active market, securities are classified within

Level 1 of the valuation hierarchy. If quoted market prices are not available, then fair values are
estimated by using quoted prices of securities with similar characteristics or independent asset
pricing services and pricing models, the inputs of which are market-based or independently sourced
market parameters, including, but not limited to, yield curves, interest rates, volatilities,
prepayments, defaults, cumulative loss projections and cash flows. Such securities are classified in
Level 2 of the valuation hierarchy. In certain cases where Level 1 or Level 2 inputs are not
available, securities are classified within Level 3 of the hierarchy. As of June 30, 2014 and 2013,
the Organization does not carry any Level 3 investments.

Investment Pools

The Organization’s investment pool consists of investments in an equity fund, whose underlying
investments include actively traded common stock equities and crossfund investments. The
Organization has classified these investments as Level 2 or Level 3. Additionally, the investment
pool consists of bond funds and commodities, whose undetlying investments include fixed income
securities and money market accounts. The Organization has classified these investments as

Level 2, given that the primary inputs are observable and can be corroborated by observable market
data. The value of certain investments, classified as Level 3 investments, is determined using net
asset value (or its equivalent) as a practical expedient.
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Level 3 Reconciliation

The following is a reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of recurring fair value
measurements recognized in the accompanying balance sheets using significant unobservable
(Level 3) inputs:

CrossFund
Investments
Balance, July 1, 2012 $ 320,993
Total realized and unrealized gains and losses
included in change in net assets 44,770
Purchases 167,087
Balance, July 1, 2013 532,850
Total realized and unrealized gains and losses
included in change in net assets 5,117
Purchases -
Transfers out of Level 3 (418,312)
Balance, June 30, 2014 $ 119,655
Total gains or losses for the period
included in change in net assets
attributable to the change in
unrealized gains or losses related
to assets and liabilities still held at
the reporting date
Year ended June 30, 2013 $ 44,770
Year ended June 30, 2014 $ 5,117

Unobservable (Level 3) Inputs

The following table presents quantitative information about unobservable inputs used in recurring
Level 3 fair value measurements.

Fair Value at Valuation Unobservable Range
June 30, 2014 Technigue Inputs {Weighted Average)
Institutional Multi-Strategy
Equity Fund, LLC $119,655 Net Asset Value Lack of Marketability Not Available
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following table presents estimated fair values of the Organization’s financial instruments and
the level within the fair value hierarchy in which the fair value measurements fall at June 30.

2014 2013
Carrying Carrying
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 39,622,915 $ 39,622,915 $ 40,661,011 $ 40,661,011
Short-term investments 8,101,206 8,101,206 1,001,923 1,001,923
Assets limited as to use
Assets limited as to use, current 1,419,562 1,419,562 727,009 727,009
Board-designated funds -
beneficial interest in
investment pool 22,207,190 22,207,190 18,849,252 18,849,252
Held by trustee 2,589,660 2,589,660 4,827,657 4,827,657
Long-term investments 12,981,289 12,981,289 11,498,127 11,498,127
Financial liabilities
Bonds payable $ 33,555,000 $ 36,389,461 $ 34,095,000 $ 35,942,768
Mortgage payable 3,927,257 3,927,257 3,985,222 3,985,222
Construction loan 7,362,578 7,362,578 - -
Capital lease obligations 1,665,593 1,665,593 775,308 775,308

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The carrying amount approximates fair value.

Notes Payable and Long-term Debt

Fair value is estimated based on the borrowing rates currently available to the Organization for

bank loans with similar terms and maturities and determined through the use of a discounted cash

flow model.
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Note 12: Significant Estimates and Concentrations

Accounting principles generally accepted in the Unites States require disclosure of certain
significant estimates and current vulnerabilities due to certain concentrations. Those matters
include the following:

Allowance for Net Participant Service Revenue Adjustments

Estimates of allowances for adjustments included in net participant service revenue are described in
Note 1.

IGCP, IGNMP and ISB have accounts receivables from Medicare and Medicaid. These amounts
often represent adjustments to the risk score discussed in Note 1, but also include amounts for
participants who are pending Medicaid eligibility or have an eligibility determination in process.
The state of Colorado has experienced significant delays in approving participants for Medicaid
status. IGCP has implemented an internal process where they review a participant’s Medicaid
eligibility and effective date. An allowance for uncollectible accounts is recorded for accounts
receivable based on IGCP’s experience with approval of the eligibility process and individual
circumstances of the account. Management believes these amounts are collectible but actual
payments may differ from what has been accrued.

Malpractice Claims

Estimates related to the accrual for medical malpractice claims are described in Note 10.

Estimated and Reported Claims

Reported and estimated claims consists of unpaid claims reported to IGCP, IGNMP and ISB and an
estimated liability for medical claims incurred on or before June 30, that have not been reported to
IGCP, IGNMP and ISB by that date. Estimated claims payable are based on historical trends and
cost projections. Due to inherent uncertainties in determining the accrual for claims incurred but
not reported, the actual payments required may be different than the liability accrued.

Litigation

In the normal course of business, the Organization is, from time to time, subject to allegations that
may or do result in litigation. The Organization evaluates such allegations by conducting
investigations to determine the validity of each potential claim. Based upon the advice of counsel,
management records an estimate of the amount of ultimate expected loss, if any, for each of these
matters. Unforeseen events could occur that would cause the estimate of ultimate loss to differ
materially in the future.

Investments

The Organization invests in various investment securities. Investment securities are exposed to
various risks such as interest rate, market and credit risks. Due to the level of risk associated with
certain investment securities, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in the values of
investment securities will occur in the near term and that such change could materially affect the
amounts reported in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.
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Consolidating Balance Sheet Information
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Senior Shared Other
PACE Housing Foundation Services Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 32,020,299 § 112,617  § 73,118 $ 5,428,706 §$ 1,988,175 § - 8 39,622,915
Short-term investiments 8,101,206 - - - - - 8,101,206
Assets limited as to use, current 742,397 - - 677,165 - - 1,419,562
Accounts receivable,
net of allowance 18,725,043 14,404 2,130 3,851 400,923 - 19,146,351
Due (to) from affiliate 20,331,049 (982,686) (58,952) (5,850,679) (13,438,732) - -
Prepaid expenses and other 405,599 15,919 105,933 1,175,493 49,887 (378,082) 1,374,749
Total current assets 80,325,593 (839,746) 122,229 1,434,536 (10,999,747) (378,082) 69,664,783
Assets Limited as to Use
Board-designated funds - beneficial
interest in investment pool 22,207,190 - - - - - 22,207,190
Held by trustee 2,589,660 - - - - - 2,589,660
24,796,850 - - - - - 24,796,850
Long-term Investments 12,981,289 - - - - - 12,981,289
Property and Equipment, at Cost
Land 6,455,360 2,129,466 - - 1,202,420 - 9,787,246
Buildings and leasehold
improvements 40,937,053 10,811,534 - - 11,814,686 - 63,563,273
Equipment and vehicles 17,398,314 90,703 20,760 - 378,398 - 17,888,175
Construction-in-progress 1,584,941 11,713,502 - - - - 13,298,443
66,375,668 24,745,205 20,760 - 13,395,504 - 104,537,137
Less accumulated depreciation 14,123,214 3,876,009 20,760 - 1,025,965 - 19,045,948
52,252,454 20,869,196 - - 12,369,539 - 85,491,189
Other Assets
Deposits and other 123,184 347,426 - 690,994 17,865 - 1,179,469
Real estate held for sale - - - - 139,858 - 139,858
Due (to) from affiliate 2,348,468 (2,145,949) - 2,229,000 - (2,431,519) -
Investment in CCH 140,823 - - - - (140,823) -
Deferred financing costs, net 1,460,714 - - - - - 1,460,714
Goodwill 4,116,524 - - - 786,650 - 4,903,174
8,189,713 (1,798,523) - 2,919,994 944,373 (2,572,342) 7,683,215
Total assets § 178545899 § 18,230,927 § 122229 § 4,354,530 & 2,314,165 8§ (2,950,424) $ 200,617,326
LEGEND:

PACE includes IGCP, IGNMP and ISB

Senior Housing includes PWD, CCH, SH1 and SH2

Shared Services includes InnovAge, Lowry and IIL

Other Subsidiaries includes LTCO, IHC, IJADP, ICS and Inland
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June 30, 2014

Senior Shared Other
PACE Housing Foundation Services Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
Liabilities and Net Assets
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 4,126,138 § 1,117,749  § 24010 §$ 378,692 $ 96,333 § - $ 5,742,922
Reported and estimated claims 7,775,365 - - 278,071 - - 8,053,436
Due to Medicaid and Medicare 7,905,987 - - - (3,657 - 7,902,330
Accrued compensation 1,564,491 1,274 15,624 1,074,725 224,294 - 2,880,408
Accrued vacation 1,554,947 1,593 26,042 639,481 78,883 - 2,300,946
Other accrued expenses . 821,927 51,366 2,714 265,349 42,400 - 1,183,756
Current portion of
long-term debt 560,000 4,862,625 - - 34,809 (18,068) 5,439,366
Current portion of capital
lease obligations 553,401 - - - 2,838 - 556,239
Deferred revenue 1,185,232 2,820 68,142 378,082 348,581 (378,082) 1,604,775
Total current liabilities 26,047,488 6,037,427 136,532 3,014,400 824,481 (396,150) 35,664,178
Capital Lease Obligations 1,109,354 - - - - - 1,109,354
Long-term Debt 32,916,178 7,927,209 - - 896,710 (2,413,451) 39,326,646
Total liabilities 60,073,020 13,964,636 136,532 3,014,400 1,721,191 (2,809,601) 76,100,178
Net Assets
Unrestricted 118,472,879 143,094 (619,506) 1,340,130 575,395 (140,823) 119,771,169
Noncontrolling interest - 4,123,197 - - - - 4,123,197
Temporarily restricted - - 605,203 - - - 605,203
Permanently restricted - - - - 17,579 - 17,579
Total net assets 118,472,879 4,266,291 (14,303) 1,340,130 592,974 (140,823) 124,517,148
Total liabilities and net assets $ 178,545,899 § 18,230,927 § 122,229 % 4,354,530 § 2,314,165 $ (2,950,424) § 200,617,326
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Senijor Shared Other
PACE Housing Foundation Services Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
Unrestricted Revenues, Gains
and Other Support
Capitation revenue
Medicaid $ 100,711,506 $ - - - - - § 100,711,506
Medicare 77,464,850 - - - - - 77,464,850
Private pay 627,272 - - - - - 627,272
Veterans Administration 567,796 - - - - - 567,796
Fee for service revenue
Medicaid - - - - 1,013,044 - 1,013,044
Private pay - - - - 2,113,354 (542,481) 1,570,873
Single Entry Point - - - - 157,894 - 157,894
Grant revenues 250,727 - - - 897,507 (448,536) 699,698
Net investment return gains 1,097,711 114 - - 1,765 - 1,099,590
Unrealized gain on beneficial
interest in investment pool 3,086,773 - - - - - 3,086,773
Other 182,909 856,897 36,033 377,953 671,468 (895,806) 1,229,454
Management fee - - - 23,752,970 - (23,752,970) -
Net assets released from restriction,
used for operations - - 464,209 - - - 464,209
Total unrestricted
revenues, gains
and other support 183,989,544 857,011 500,242 24,130,923 4,855,032 (25,639,793) 188,692,959
Expenses
Salaries and wages 30,130,767 109,257 393,115 10,591,558 3,082,876 - 44,307,573
Employee benefits 7,022,455 23,236 74,880 2,620,271 753,628 - 10,494,470
External provider costs
Inpatient 38,812,009 - - - - - 38,812,009
Qutpatient 47,321,293 - - - - - 47,321,293
Rent, facility and maintenance 3,793,424 172,655 34 1,026,483 167,396 (523,888) 4,636,104
Purchased services and contracts 5,132,873 114,191 98,134 5,240,636 391,950 (542,481) 10,435,303
Supplies and other 4,628,118 69,134 267,467 3,115,901 523,014 (371,918) 8,231,716
Depreciation and amortization 4,089,317 402,622 380 - 828,994 - 5,321,313
Nutrition 1,197,298 - - - 76,687 - 1,273,985
Interest expense 1,995,458 283,553 - 3,234 16,223 - 2,298,468
Loss on disposal of capital assets 234,088 - - - 82,084 - 316,172
Provision for uncollectible
accounts 117,328 3,082 - 98 6,223 - 126,731
Grant expense - - 448,536 - - (448,536) -
Allocations 23,102,810 - - - 650,160 (23,752,970) -
Total expenses 167,577,238 1,177,730 1,282,546 22,598,181 6,579,235 (25,639,793) 173,575,137
Operating Income (Loss) 16,412,306 (320,719) (782,304) 1,532,742 (1,724,203) - 15,117,822
Other Income (Loss)
Change in equity of CCH 26,537 - - - - (26,537) -
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenses 16,438,843 (320,719) (782,304) 1,532,742 (1,724,203) (26,537) 15,117,822

LEGEND:
PACE includes IGCP, IGNMP and ISB
Senior Housing includes PWD, CCH, SH1 and SH2
Shared Services includes InnovAge, Lowry and IIL

Other Subsidiaries includes LTCO, IHC, IJADP, ICS and Inland
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Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenses
Unrealized losses
Equity contribution

Increase (decrease) in
unrestricted net assets

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets
Contributions
Net assets released from restrictions,
used for operations

Increase in temporarily
restricted net assets

Change in Net Assets
Net Assets, Beginning of Year
Net Assets, End of Year

Total Community Options, Inc.

d/b/a InnovAge and Subsidiaries
Consolidating Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets Information (continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2014

Senior Shared Other
PACE Housing Foundation Services Subsidiaries Eliminations Total

16,438,843 (320,719) (782,304) 1,532,742 (1,724,203) (26,537) 15,117,822
(468,458) - - (142) - - (468,600)

- 923,998 - - - - 923,998
15,970,385 603,279 (782,304) 1,532,600 (1,724,203) (26,537) 15,573,220
- - 563,267 - - - 563,267
- - (464,209) - - - (464,209)

- - 99,058 - - - 99,058
15,970,385 603,279 (683,246) 1,532,600 (1,724,203) (26,537) 15,672,278
102,502,494 3,663,012 668,943 (192,470) 2,317,177 (114,286) 108,844,870
$ 118472879 § 4,266,291  § (14,303) 1,340,130 § 592,974 § (140,823) & 124,517,148
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Total Community Options, Inc.
d/b/a InnovAge and Subsidiaries
PACE
Consolidating Balance Sheet Information
June 30, 2014

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Assets limited as to use, current
Accounts receivable,

net of allowance
Due (to) from affiliate
Prepaid expenses and other

Total current assets

Assets Limited as to Use

Board-designated funds - beneficial

interest in investment pool
Held by trustee

Long-term Investments

Property and Equipment, at Cost

Land

Buildings and leasehold
improvements

Equipment and vehicles

Construction-in-progress

Less accumulated depreciation

Other Assets

Deposits and other

Due from affiliate
Investment in CCH
Deferred financing costs, net
Goodwill

Total assets

Liabilities and Net Assets
Current Liabilities

Accounts payable
Reported and estimated claims
Due to Medicaid and Medicare
Accrued compensation
Accrued vacation
Other accrued expenses
Current portion of
long-term debt
Current portion of capital
lease obligations
Deferred revenue

Total current liabilities

Capital Lease Obligations

Long-term Debt

Net

Total liabilities

Assets
Unrestricted

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

IGCP IGNMP ISB Eliminations Total
17,359,169 §$ 14,661,130  § -3 $ 32,020,299
8,101,206 - - 8,101,206
715,184 27213 - 742,397
18,093,324 509,733 121,986 18,725,043
26,582,919 (484,292) (5,767,578) 20,331,049
316,661 74,636 14,302 405,599
71,168,463 14,788,420 (5,631,290) 80,325,593
17,423,898 4,783,292 - 22,207,190
2,589,660 - - 2,589,660
20,013,558 4,783,292 - 24,796,850
12,981,289 - - 12,981,289
6,455,360 - - 6,455,360
39,168,362 1,768,691 - 40,937,053
15,518,228 709,229 1,170,857 17,398,314
1,584,941 - - 1,584,941
62,726,891 2,477,920 1,170,857 66,375,668
12,630,023 1,376,581 116,610 14,123,214
50,096,868 1,101,339 1,054,247 52,252,454
112,105 11,079 - 123,184
2,348,468 - - 2,348,468
140,823 - - 140,823
1,460,714 - - 1,460,714
4,116,524 - - 4,116,524
8,178,634 11,079 - 8,189,713
162,438,812  § 20,684,130 § (4,577,043) § $ 178,545,899
3,490,598 $ 546,727 $ 88,813 § $ 4,126,138
6,890,320 885,045 - 7,775,365
7,248,038 656,449 1,500 7,905,987
1,206,217 250,895 107,379 1,564,491
1,272,605 242,756 39,586 1,554,947
546,553 60,123 215,251 821,927
560,000 - - 560,000
528,889 - 24,512 553,401
1,185,232 - - 1,185,232
22,928,452 2,641,995 477,041 26,047,488
1,026,590 - 82,764 1,109,354
32,916,178 - - 32,916,178
56,871,220 2,641,995 559,805 60,073,020
105,567,592 18,042,135 (5,136,848) 118,472,879
105,567,592 18,042,135 (5,136,848) 118,472,879
162,438,812 § 20,684,130 § (4,577,043) $ $ 178,545,899
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Unrestricted Revenues, Gains
and Other Support
Capitation revenue
Medicaid
Medicare
Private pay
Veterans Administration
Grant revenues
Net investment return gains
Unrealized gain on beneficial
interest in investment pool
Other

Total unrestricted
revenues, gains
and other support

Expenses

Salaries and wages

Employee benefits

External provider costs
Inpatient
Outpatient

Rent, facility and maintenance

Purchased services and contracts

Supplies and other

Depreciation and amortization

Nutrition

Interest expense

Loss on disposal of capital assets

Provision for uncollectible
accounts

Allocations

Total expenses
Operating Income
Other Income

Change in interest in net assets of CCH

Excess (Deficiency) of
Revenues Over Expenses
Unrealized losses
Equity contribution

Increase (Decrease) in
Unrestricted Net Assets

Change in Net Assets
Net Assets, Beginning of Year
Net Assets, End of Year

Year Ended June 30, 2014

IGCP IGNMP ISB Eliminations Total
$ 88,751,892 § 11,859,733 99,881 §$ $ 100,711,506
64,575,785 12,843,453 45,612 77,464,850
521,422 105,850 - 627,272
567,796 - - 567,796
250,727 - - 250,727
989,823 107,888 - 1,097,711
2,428,180 658,593 - 3,086,773
171,982 10,927 - 182,909
158,257,607 25,586,444 145,493 183,989,544
23,790,755 4,726,023 1,613,989 30,130,767
5,640,756 1,063,160 318,539 7,022,455
33,090,431 5,721,578 - 38,812,009
40,146,603 7,090,139 84,551 47,321,293
2,560,791 481,072 751,561 3,793,424
3,916,811 513,917 702,145 5,132,873
3,489,805 761,728 376,585 4,628,118
3,857,486 160,578 71,253 4,089,317
948,451 242,904 5,943 1,197,298
1,991,113 271 4,074 1,995,458
231,465 2,623 - 234,088
117,328 - - 117,328
19,618,250 2,404,462 1,080,098 23,102,810
139,400,045 23,168,455 5,008,738 167,577,238
18,857,562 2,417,989 (4,863,245) 16,412,306
26,537 - - 26,537
18,884,099 2,417,989 (4,863,245) 16,438,843
(468,458) - - (468,458)
273,603 - (273,603) -
18,689,244 2,417,989 (5,136,848) 15,970,385
18,689,244 2,417,989 (5,136,848) 15,970,385
86,878,348 15,624,146 - 102,502,494
$ 105,567,592 § 18,042,135 (5,136,848) § $ 118,472,879
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Total Community Options, Inc.
d/b/a InnovAge and Subsidiaries
Senior Housing

Consolidating Balance Sheet Information
June 30, 2014

PWD CCH SH1 SH2 Eliminations Total
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 36,633 § - § 75984 § - 3 $ 112,617
Accounts receivable,
net of allowance 14,404 . - - 14,404
Due (to) from affiliate (343,232) 142,394 (155,064) (626,784) (982,686)
Prepaid expenses and other 13,147 - 2,772 - 15,919
Total current assets (279,048) 142,394 (76,308) (626,784) (839,746)
Property and Equipment, at Cost
Land 1,052,200 - 543,383 533,883 2,129,466
Buildings and leasehold
improvements 10,811,534 - - - 10,811,534
Equipment and vehicles 90,703 - - - 90,703
Construction-in-progress - - 11,571,559 141,943 11,713,502
11,954,437 - 12,114,942 675,826 24,745,205
Less accumulated depreciation 3,876,009 - - - 3,876,009
§,078,428 - 12,114,942 675,826 20,869,196
Other Assets
Deposits and other 347426 - - - 347426
Due (to) from affiliate (960,051) - (1,185,898) - (2,145,949)
(612,625) - (1,185,898) - (1,798,523)
Total assets $ 7,186,755 § 142394 § 10852736 § 49042 § $ 18,230,927

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable $ -3 1,571 1,068,995 § 47,183  § $ 1,117,749
Accrued compensation 1,274 - - - 1,274
Accrued vacation 1,593 - - - 1,593
Other accrued expenses 51,366 - - - 51,366
Current portion of
long-term debt 50,048 - 4,812,577 - 4,862,625
Deferred revenue 2,820 - - - 2,820
Total current liabilities 107,101 1,571 5,881,572 47,183 6,037,427
Long-term Debt 3,877,209 - 4,050,000 - 7,927,209
Total Habilities 3,984,310 1,571 9,931,572 47,183 13,964,636
Net Assets
Unrestricted 320 140,823 92 1,859 143,094
Noncontrolling interest 3,202,125 - 921,072 - 4,123,197
Total net assets 3,202,445 140,823 921,164 1,859 4,266,291
Total Habilities and net assets $ 7,186,755 § 142,394 $ 10,852,736  § 49,042 $ $ 18,230,927
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Total Community Options, Inc.
d/b/a InnovAge and Subsidiaries

Senior Housing

Consolidating Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets Information

Year Ended June 30, 2014
PWD CCH SH1 SH2 Eliminations Total
Unrestricted Revenues, Gains
and Other Support
Net investment return gains $ 114§ - - $ - 3§ 114
Other 836,897 - - - 856,897
Management fee - 35,000 - (35,000) -
Total unrestricted
revenues, gains
and other support 857,011 35,000 - {35,000 857,011
Expenses
Salaries and wages 109,257 - - 109,257
Employee benefits 23,236 - - - 23,236
Rent, facility and maintenance 171,861 - 794 - - 172,655
Purchased services and contracts 112,151 - 2,040 - - 114,191
Supplies and other 60,671 8,463 - - - 69,134
Depreciation and amottization 402,622 - - - 402,622
Interest expense 285,412 - - (1,859 - 283,553
Provision for uncollectible
accounts 3,082 - - - - 3,082
Allocations 35,000 - - - (35,000 -
Total expenses 1,203,292 8,463 2,834 {1,859) (35,000) 1,177,730
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenses (346,281) 26,537 (2,834) 1,859 - (320,719)
Equity contribution - - 923,998 - - 923,998
Increase (Decrease) in
Unrestricted Net Assets (346,281) 26,537 921,164 1,859 - 603,279
Change in Net Assets (346,281) 26,537 921,164 1,859 - 603,279
Net Assets, Beginning of Year 3,548,726 114,286 - - 3,663,012
Net Assets, End of Year $ 3,202445  § 140,823 921,164 1,859 § - § 4,266,291

41




Total Community Options, Inc.
d/b/a InnovAge and Subsidiaries
Shared Services

Consolidating Balance Sheet Information
June 30, 2014

InnovAge Lowry L Eliminations Total
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,570,533  § 2,565,782 § 292391 § - 3 5,428,706
Assets limited as to use, current 677,165 - - 677,165
Accounts receivable,
net of allowance - 3,851 - - 3,851
Due (to) from affiliate (5,109,779) (740,900) - - (5,850,679)
Prepaid expenses and other - 1,127,164 48,329 - 1,175,493
Total current assets (1,862,081) 2,955,897 340,720 - 1,434,536
Investment in Subsidiary 250,000 - - (250,000) -
Other Assets
Deposits and other - 189,896 501,098 - 690,994
Due (to) from affiliate 2,229,000 - - - 2,229,000
2,229,000 189,896 501,098 - 2,919,994
Total assets $ 616919 § 3,145,793  § 841818 § (250,000) $ 4,354,530
Liabilities and Net Assets
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 937 § 366,442 §$ 11,313  § - 3 378,692
Reported and estimated claims - - 278,071 - 278,071
Accrued compensation - 1,074,725 - - 1,074,725
Accrued vacation - 639,481 - - 639,481
Other accrued expenses - 265,349 - - 265,349
Deferred revenue - - 378,082 - 378,082
Total current liabilities 937 2,345,997 667,466 - 3,014,400
Net Assets
Unrestricted 615,982 799,796 174,352 (250,000) 1,340,130
Total net assets 615,982 799,796 174,352 (250,000) 1,340,130
Total liabilitics and net assets $ 616919 $ 3145793 § 841,818 $ (250,000) $ 4,354,530
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Total Community Options, Inc.
d/b/a InnovAge and Subsidiaries

Shared Services
Consolidating Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets Information

Year Ended June 30, 2014
InnovAge Lowry IIL Eliminations Total
Unrestricted Revenues, Gains
and Other Support
Other $ - 3 4780 % 373,173 - 377,953
Management fee - 23,752,970 - - 23,752,970
Total unrestricted
revenues, gains
and other support - 23,757,750 373,173 - 24,130,923
Expenses
Salaries and wages - 10,591,558 - - 10,591,558
Employee benefits - 2,273,148 347,123 - 2,620,271
Rent, facility and maintenance - 1,023,053 3,430 - 1,026,483
Purchased services and contracts - 5,144,953 95,683 - 5,240,636
Supplies and other 3,991 3,109,467 2,443 - 3,115,901
Interest expense - 3,234 - - 3,234
Provision for uncollectible
accounts - 98 - - 98
Total expenses 3,991 22,145,511 448,679 - 22,598,181
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenses (3,991) 1,612,239 (75,506) - 1,532,742
Unrealized losses - - (142) - (142)
Contributed capital - - 250,000 (250,000) -
Increase (Decrease) in
Unrestricted Net Assets (3,991) 1,612,239 174,352 (250,000) 1,532,600
Change in Net Assets (3,991) 1,612,239 174,352 (250,000) 1,532,600
Net Assets, Beginning of Year 619,973 (812,443) - - (192,470)
Net Assets, End of Year $ 615982 § 799,796  $ 174,352 (250,000) 1,340,130
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Total Community Options, Inc.
d/b/a InnovAge and Subsidiaries
Other Subsidiaries

Consolidating Balance Sheet Information
June 30, 2014

LTCO IHC 1JADP ICS fnland Eliminations Total
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 301,814 § 1,176,305  § 288,464 § 52,868 § 168,724  § - 8 1,988,175
Accounts receivable,
net of allowance - 329,413 71,510 - - - 400,923
Due from affiliate 116,943 (2,455,797 (354,626) (36,539) (10,708,713) - (13,438,732)
Prepaid expenses and other - 42,749 7,138 - - - 49,887
Total current assets 418,757 (907,330) 12,486 16,329 (10,539,989) - (10,999,747)
Property and Equipment, at Cost
Land - - 496,000 - 706,420 - 1,202,420
Buildings and leasehold
improvements - - 1,650,033 - 10,164,653 - 11,814,686
Equipment and vehicles - 243,764 130,473 - 4,161 - 378,398
- 243,764 2,276,506 - 10,875,234 - 13,395,504
Less accumulated depreciation - 62,316 330,258 - 633,391 - 1,025,965
- 181,448 1,946,248 - 10,241,843 - 12,369,539
Other Assets
Deposits and other - 3,819 14,046 - - - 17,865
Real estate held for sale - 139,858 - - - - 139,858
Goodwill - 786,650 - - - - 786,650
- 930,327 14,046 - - - 944,373
Total assets $ 418,757  $ 204,445 $ 1,972,780 § 16329 % (298,146) § - 3 2,314,165
Liabilities and Net Assets
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable 3 - $ 81,800 3 14,533 % - $ - % - % 96,333
Due to Medicaid and Medicare - - (3,657) - - - (3,657)
Accrued compensation - 198,889 25,405 - - - 224,294
Accrued vacation - 55,144 23,739 - - - 78,883
Other accrued expenses - 34,582 7,818 - - - 42,400
Current portion of
long-term debt - 34,809 - - - - 34,809
Current portion of capital
lease obligations - 2,838 - - - - 2,838
Deferred revenue 340,251 8,330 - - - - 348,581
Total current liabilities 340,251 416,392 67,838 - - - 824,481
Capital Lease Obligations - - - - B - -
Long-term Debt - 896,710 - - - - 896,710
Total liabilities 340,251 1,313,102 67,838 - - - 1,721,191
Net Assets
Unrestricted 78,506 (1,126,236) 1,904,942 16,329 (298,146) - 575,395
Permanently restricted - 17,579 - - - - 17,579
Total net assets 78,506 (1,108,657) 1,904,942 16,329 (298,146) - 592,974
Total liabilities and net assets $ 418,757 $ 204,445  § 1,972,780  § 16329 § (298,146) § - 2,314,165
LEGEND:
IHC includes IHCN & THA
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Unrestricted Revenues, Gains
and Other Support
Fee for service revenue
Medicaid
Private pay
Single Entry Point
Grant revenues
Net investment return gains
Other

Total unrestricted
revenues, gains
and other support

Expenses

Salaries and wages

Employee benefits

Rent, facility and maintenance

Purchased services and contracts

Supplies and other

Depreciation and amortization

Nutrition

Interest expense

Loss on disposal of capital assets

Provision for uncollectible
accounts

Allocations

Total expenses
Change in Net Assets
Net Assets, Beginning of Year

Total Community Options, Inc.

d/b/a InnovAge and Subsidiaries

Other Subsidiaries
Consolidating Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets Information
Year Ended June 30, 2014
LTCO IHC ADP ICS Inland Eliminations Total

1,698 & 789,984 § 221,362 § - 8 - % $ 1,013,044

- 1,628,739 484,615 - - 2,113,354
157,894 - - - - 157,894
- 585,448 312,059 - - 897,507

- 1,765 - - - 1,765

- 149,567 6,274 - 515,627 671,468
159,592 3,155,503 1,024,310 - 515,627 4,855,032
7,167 2,591,172 484,538 (6] - 3,082,876
106,173 506,654 140,801 - - 753,628
8,291 57,646 100,761 - 698 167,396
11,285 320,130 60,535 - - 391,950
23,392 383,730 46,347 - 69,545 523,014
7,420 52,507 90,319 - 678,748 828,994

- - 76,687 - - 76,687

- 16,223 - - - 16,223

- 82,084 - - - 82,084

- (7,347) 13,570 - - 6,223
2,247 547,914 99,999 - - 650,160
165,975 4,550,713 1,113,557 [¢}] 748,991 6,579,235
(6,383) (1,395,210) (89,247) 1 (233,364) (1,724,203)
84,889 286,553 1,994,189 16,328 (64,782) 2,317,177
78,506 $ (1,108,657) § 1,904,942 § 16,329 § (298,146) § $ 592,974

Net Assets, End of Year

LEGEND:
THC includes THCN & THA
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EXHIBIT G
ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

[See Attached]
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Form must be filed electronically.
Paper forms are not accepted.
This copy is a sample and cannot be submitted for filing.

ABOVE SPACE FOR OFFICE USE ONLY

Articles of Incorporation for a Profit Corporation
filed pursuant to § 7-102-101 and § 7-102-102 of the Colorado Revised Statutes (C.R.S.)

1. The domestic entity name for the corporation is: [Total Community Options, Inc.]

(Caution: The use of certain terms or abbreviations are restricted by law. Read instructions for more information.)

2. The principal office address of the corporation’s initial principal office

is Street address

(Street number and name)

(City) (State) (ZIP/Postal Code)
(Province — if applicable) (Country)
Mailing address
(leave blank if same as street address) (Street number and name or Post Office Box information)
(CTy) (State) (ZTP7Postal Code)
(Province — if applicable) (Country)

3. The registered agent name and registered agent address of the corporation’s initial registered agent are

Name
(if an individual)
(Last) (First) (Middle) (Suffix)

or

(if an entity)

(Caution: Do not provide both an individual and an entity name.)

Street address

(Street mmber and namej

CcO
{13y TS T {ZiP/PostaiCodel
Mailing address
(leave blank if same as street address) (Street number and name or Post Office Box information)
CO
(City) (State) (ZIP/Postal Code)
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(The following statement is adopted by marking the box.)

The person appointed as registered agent above has consented to being so appointed.

4. The true name and mailing address of the incorporator are

Name
(if an individual)

(Last) (First) (Middle) (Suffix)
or

(if an entity)

(Caution: Do not provide both an individual and an entity name.)

Mailing address

(Street number and name or Post Office Box information)

(City) (State) (ZIP/Postal Code)

(Province — if applicable) (Country)

(If the following statement applies, adopt the statement by marking the box and include an attachment.)

The corporation has one or more additional incorporators and the name and mailing address of each
additional incorporator are stated in an attachment.

5. The classes of shares and number of shares of each class that the corporation is authorized to issue are
as follows.

The corporation is authorized to issue __ 100 common shares that shall have unlimited
voting rights and are entitled to receive the net assets of the corporation upon dissolution.

Information regarding shares as required by section 7-106-101, C.R.S., is included in an
attachment.

6. (If the following statement applies, adopt the statement by marking the box and include an attachment.)
This document contains additional information as provided by law.

7. (Caution: Leave blank if the document does not have a delayed effective date. Stating a delayed effective date has
significant legal consequences. Read instructions before entering a date.)

(If the following statement applies, adopt the statement by entering a date and, if applicable, time using the required format.)
The delayed effective date and, if applicable, time of this document is/are

(mm/dd/yyyy hour:minute am/pm)

Notice:

Causing this document to be delivered to the Secretary of State for filing shall constitute the affirmation or
acknowledgment of each individual causing such delivery, under penalties of perjury, that the document is the
individual's act and deed, or that the individual in good faith believes the document is the act and deed of the
person on whose behalf the individual is causing the document to be delivered for filing, taken in conformity
with the requirements of part 3 of article 90 of title 7, C.R.S., the constituent documents, and the organic
statutes, and that the individual in good faith believes the facts stated in the document are true and the document
complies with the requirements of that Part, the constituent documents, and the organic statutes.

This perjury notice applies to each individual who causes this document to be delivered to the Secretary of
State, whether or not such individual is named in the document as one who has caused it to be delivered.

ARTINC_PC Page 2 of 3 Rev, 8/5/2013
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8. The true name and mailing address of the individual causing the document to be delivered for filing are

(Last) (First) (Middle) (Suffix)

(Street number and name or Post Office Box information)

(City) (State) (ZIP/Postal Code)
(Province — if applicable) (Country)

(If the following statement applies, adopt the statement by marking the box and include an attachment.}
This document contains the true name and mailing address of one or more additional
individuals causing the document to be delivered for filing.

Disclaimer:

This form/cover sheet, and any related instructions, are not intended to provide legal, business or tax advice,
and are furnished without representation or warranty. While this form/cover sheet is believed to satisfy
minimum legal requirements as of its revision date, compliance with applicable law, as the same may be
amended from time to time, remains the responsibility of the user of this form/cover sheet. Questions should
be addressed to the user’s legal, business or tax advisor(s).
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EXHIBIT H
BYLAWS

[See Attached]
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BYLAWS
OF

[TOTAL COMMUNITY OPTIONS, INC.]
(A COLORADO CORPORATION)

(hereinafter called the “Corporation”)

ARTICLE I
GENERAL

Section 1.01 General. The following paragraphs contain provisions for the regulation
and management of [Total Community Options, Inc.], a Colorado corporation.

Section 1.02 Conflict. In the event that there is a conflict between a provision of these
Bylaws and a mandatory provision of the Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation, then said
mandatory provision of the Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation shall control.

Section 1.03 Registered Office. The registered and principal office of the Corporation
shall be 8950 East Lowry Boulevard, Denver, Colorado 80230. This designation shall be
without prejudice to the power and right of the Corporation to conduct and transact any of its
affairs or business in other cities, states, territories, countries, or places.

Section 1.04 Registered Agent. The registered agent of the Corporation in the State of
Colorado shall be

Section 1.05 Change. The registered office and registered agent of the Corporation
may be changed from time to time in the manner prescribed by law without amending these
Bylaws.

ARTICLE I
MEETINGS OF STOCKHOLDERS

Section 2.01 Place of Meetings. Meetings of the stockholders for the election of
directors or for any other purpose shall be held at such time and place, either within or without
the State of Colorado as shall be designated from time to time by the Board of Directors.

Section 2.02 Annual Meetings. The Annual Meetings of Stockholders for the election
of directors shall be held on such date and at such time as shall be designated from time to time
by the Board of Directors. Any other proper business may be transacted at the Annual Meetings
of Stockholders.

Section 2.03 Special Meetings. Unless otherwise required by law or by the articles of
incorporation of the Corporation, as amended and restated from time to time (the “Articles of
Incorporation”), Special Meetings of Stockholders, for any purpose or purposes, may be called
by either (a) the Chairman, if there be one, or (b) the President, (c) any Vice President, if there be
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one, (d) the Secretary or (e) any Assistant Secretary, if there be one, and shall be called by any
such officer at the request in writing of (i) the Board of Directors, (ii) a committee of the Board
of Directors that has been duly designated by the Board of Directors and whose powers and
authority include the power to call such meetings or (iii) stockholders owning a majority of the
capital stock of the Corporation issued and outstanding and entitled to vote. Such request shall
state the purpose or purposes of the proposed meeting. At a Special Meeting of Stockholders,
only such business shall be conducted as shall be specified in the notice of meeting (or any
supplement thereto).

Section 2.04 Notice. Whenever stockholders are required or permitted to take any
action at a meeting, a written notice of the meeting shall be given which shall state the place,
date and hour of the meeting, and, in the case of a special meeting, the purpose or purposes for
which the meeting is called. Unless otherwise required by law, the written notice of any meeting
shall be given not less than ten (10) nor more than sixty (60) days before the date of the meeting
to each stockholder entitled to vote at such meeting.

Section 2.05 Adjournments. Any meeting of the stockholders may be adjourned from
time to time to reconvene at the same or some other place, and notice need not be given of any
such adjourned meeting if the time and place thereof are announced at the meeting at which the
adjournment is taken. At the adjourned meeting, the Corporation may transact any business
which might have been transacted at the original meeting. If the adjournment is for more than
thirty (30) days, or if after the adjournment a new record date is fixed for the adjourned meeting,
notice of the adjourned meeting shall be given to each stockholder of record entitled to vote at
the meeting.

Section 2.06 Quorum. Unless otherwise required by law or the Articles of
Incorporation, the holders of a majority of the capital stock issued and outstanding and entitled to
vote thereat, present in person or represented by proxy, shall constitute a quorum at all meetings
of the stockholders for the transaction of business. A quorum, once established, shall not be
broken by the withdrawal of enough votes to Jeave less than a quorum. If, however, such
quorum shall not be present or represented at any meeting of the stockholders, the stockholders
entitled to vote thereat, present in person or represented by proxy, shall have power to adjourn
the meeting from time to time, in the manner provided in Section 2.05, until a quorum shall be
present or represented.

Section 2.07 Voting. Unless otherwise required by law, the Articles of Incorporation
or these Bylaws, any question brought before any meeting of stockholders, other than the
election of directors, shall be decided by the vote of the holders of a majority of the total number
of votes of the capital stock represented and entitled to vote thereat, voting as a single class.
Unless otherwise provided in the Certificate of Incorporation, and subject to Section 6.05 hereof,
each stockholder represented at a meeting of stockholders shall be entitled to cast one vote for
each share of the capital stock entitled to vote thereat held by such stockholder. Such votes may
be cast in person or by proxy but no proxy shall be voted on or after three years from its date,
unless such proxy provides for a longer period. The Board of Directors, in its discretion, or the
officer of the Corporation presiding at a meeting of stockholders, in such officer’s discretion,
may require that any votes cast at such meeting shall be cast by written ballot.
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Section 2.08 Consent of Stockholders in Lieu of Meeting. Unless otherwise provided
in the Articles of Incorporation, any action required or permitted to be taken at any Annual or
Special Meeting of Stockholders of the Corporation, may be taken without a meeting, without
prior notice and without a vote, if a consent or consents in writing, setting forth the action so
taken, shall be signed by the holders of outstanding stock having not less than the minimum
number of votes that would be necessary to authorize or take such action at a meeting at which
all shares entitled to vote thereon were present and voted and shall be delivered to the
Corporation by delivery to its registered office in the State of Colorado, its principal place of
business, or an officer or agent of the corporation having custody of the book in which
proceedings of meetings of stockholders are recorded. Delivery made to the Corporation’s
registered office shall be by hand or by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested.
Every written consent shall bear the date of signature of each stockholder who signs the consent
and no written consent shall be effective to take the corporate action referred to therein unless,
within sixty (60) days of the earliest dated consent delivered in the manner required by this
Section 2.08 to the Corporation, written consents signed by a sufficient number of holders to take
action are delivered to the Corporation by delivery to its registered office in the State of
Colorado, its principal place of business, or an officer or agent of the Corporation having custody
of the book in which proceedings of meetings of stockholders are recorded. Prompt notice of the
taking of the corporate action without a meeting by less than unanimous written consent shall be
given to those stockholders who have not consented in writing and who, if the action had been
taken at a meeting, would have been entitled to notice of the meeting if the record date for such
meeting had been the date that written consents signed by a sufficient number of holders to take
the action were delivered to the Corporation as provided above in this Section 2.08.

Section 2.09 List of Stockholders Entitled to Vote. The officer of the Corporation
who has charge of the stock ledger of the Corporation shall prepare and make, at least ten (10)
days before every meeting of stockholders, a complete list of the stockholders entitled to vote at
the meeting, arranged in alphabetical order, and showing the address of each stockholder and the
number of shares registered in the name of each stockholder. Such list shall be open to the
examination of any stockholder, for any purpose germane to the meeting, during ordinary
business hours, for a period of at least ten (10) days prior to the meeting either at a place within
the city where the meeting is to be held, which place shall be specified in the notice of the
meeting, or, if not so specified, at the place where the meeting is to be held. The list shall also be
produced and kept at the time and place of the meeting during the whole time thereof, and may
be inspected by any stockholder of the Corporation who is present.

Section 2.10 Stock Ledger. The stock ledger of the Corporation shall be the only
evidence as to who are the stockholders entitled to examine the stock ledger, the list required by
0 or the books of the Corporation, or to vote in person or by proxy at any meeting of
stockholders.

Section 2.11 Conduct of Meetings. The Board of Directors of the Corporation may
adopt by resolution such rules and regulations for the conduct of the meeting of the stockholders
as it shall deem appropriate. Except to the extent inconsistent with such rules and regulations as
adopted by the Board of Directors, the chairman of any meeting of the stockholders shall have
the right and authority to prescribe such rules, regulations and procedures and to do all such acts
as, in the judgment of such chairman, are appropriate for the proper conduct of the meeting.
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Such rules, regulations or procedures, whether adopted by the Board of Directors or prescribed
by the chairman of the meeting, may include, without limitation, the following: (a) the
establishment of an agenda or order of business for the meeting; (b) the determination of when
the polls shall open and close for any given matter to be voted on at the meeting; (c) rules and
procedures for maintaining order at the meeting and the safety of those present; (d) limitations on
attendance at or participation in the meeting to stockholders of record of the corporation, their
duly authorized and constituted proxies or such other persons as the chairman of the meeting
shall determine; (e) restrictions on entry to the meeting after the time fixed for the
commencement thereof: and (f) limitations on the time allotted to questions or comments by
participants.

ARTICLE I
OFFICERS

Section 3.01 General. The officers of the Corporation shall be chosen by the Board of
Directors and shall be a President, Treasurer and Secretary. The Board of Directors, in its
discretion, also may choose a Chairman of the Board of Directors (who must be a director) and
one or more Vice Presidents, Assistant Secretaries, Assistant Treasurers and other officers. Any
number of offices may be held by the same person, unless otherwise prohibited by law or the of
Incorporation. The officers of the Corporation need not be stockholders of the Corporation nor,
except in the case of the Chairman of the Board of Directors, need such officers be directors of
the Corporation.

Section 3.02 Election, Term of Office and Qualifications. The Board of Directors, at
its first meeting held after each Annual Meeting of Stockholders (or action by written consent of
stockholders in lieu of the Annual Meeting of Stockholders), shall elect the officers of the
Corporation who shall hold their offices for such terms and shall exercise such powers and
perform such duties as shall be determined from time to time by the Board of Directors; and all
officers of the Corporation shall hold office until their successors are chosen and qualified, or
until their earlier death, resignation or removal.

Section 3.03 Removal. Any officer of agent elected or appointed by the Board of
Directors may be removed by the Board of Directors whenever in its judgment the best interests
of the Corporation would be served thereby, but such removal shall be without prejudice to the
contract rights, if any, of the person so removed. Such removal shall be by vote of a majority of
the whole Board of Directors at a regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors called for
this purpose.

Section 3.04 Voting Securities Owned by the Corporation. Powers of attorney,
proxies, waivers of notice of meeting, consents and other instruments relating to securities
owned by the Corporation may be executed in the name of and on behalf of the Corporation by
the President or any Vice President or any other officer authorized to do so by the Board of
Directors and any such officer may, in the name of and on behalf of the Corporation, take all
such action as any such officer may deem advisable to vote in person or by proxy at any meeting
of security holders of any corporation in which the Corporation may own securities and at any
such meeting shall possess and may exercise any and all rights and power incident to the
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ownership of such securities and which, as the owner thereof, the Corporation might have
exercised and possessed if present. The Board of Directors may, by resolution, from time to time
confer like powers upon any other person or persons.

Section 3.05 Resignations. Any officer may resign at any time by giving written
notice to the Board of Directors or to the President or Secretary of the Corporation. Any such
resignation shall take effect at the time specified therein; and, unless otherwise specified therein,
the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

Section 3.06 Chairman of the Board of Directors. The Chairman of the Board of
Directors, if there be one, shall preside at all meetings of the stockholders and of the Board of
Directors. The Chairman of the Board of Directors shall also perform such other duties and may
exercise such other powers as may from time to time be assigned by these Bylaws or by the
Board of Directors.

Section 3.07 President. The President shall, subject to the control of the Board of
Directors, have general supervision of the business of the Corporation and shall see that all
orders and resolutions of the Board of Directors are carried into effect. The President shall
execute all bonds, mortgages, contracts and other instruments of the Corporation requiring a seal,
under the seal of the Corporation, except where required or permitted by law to be otherwise
signed and executed and except that the other officers of the Corporation may sign and execute
documents when so authorized by these Bylaws, the Board of Directors or the President. In the
absence or disability of the Chairman of the Board of Directors, or if there be none, the President
shall preside at all meetings of the stockholders and the Board of Directors. If the Board of
Directors shall designate, the President shall be the Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation.
The President shall also perform such other duties and may exercise such other powers as may
from time to time be assigned to such officer by these Bylaws or by the Board of Directors.

Section 3.08 Vice President. At the request of the President or in the President’s
absence or in the event of the President’s inability or refusal to act (and if there be no Chairman
of the Board of Directors), the Vice President, or the Vice Presidents if there is more than one (in
the order designated by the Board of Directors), shall perform the duties of the President, and
when so acting, shall have all the powers of and be subject to all the restrictions upon the
President. Each Vice President shall perform such other duties and have such other powers as
the Board of Directors from time to time may prescribe. If there be no Chairman of the Board of
Directors and no Vice President, the Board of Directors shall designate the officer of the
Corporation who, in the absence of the President or in the event of the inability or refusal of the
President to act, shall perform the duties of the President, and when so acting, shall have all the
powers of and be subject to all the restrictions upon the President.

Section 3.09 Secretary. The Secretary shall attend all meetings of the Board of
Directors and all meetings of stockholders and record all the proceedings there at in a book or
books to be kept for that purpose; the Secretary shall also perform like duties for committees of
the Board of Directors when required. The Secretary shall give, or cause to be given, notice of
all meetings of the stockholders and special meetings of the Board of Directors, and shall
perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors, the Chairman of the
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Board of Directors or the President, under whose supervision the Secretary shall be. If the
Secretary shall be unable or shall refuse to cause to be given notice of all meetings of the
stockholders and special meetings of the Board of Directors, and if there be no Assistant
Secretary, then cither the Board of Directors or the President may choose another officer to cause
such notice to be given. The Secretary shall have custody of the seal of the Corporation and the
Secretary or any Assistant Secretary, if there be one, shall have authority to affix the same to any
instrument requiring it and when so affixed, it may be attested by the signature of the Secretary
or by the signature of any such Assistant Secretary. The Board of Directors may give general
authority to any other officer to affix the seal of the Corporation and to attest to the affixing by
such officer’s signature. The Secretary shall see that all books, reports, statements, certificates
and other documents and records required by law to be kept or filed are properly kept or filed, as
the case may be. In the Treasurer’s absence or in the event of the Treasurer’s inability or refusal
to act (and if there be no Assistant Treasurer), the Secretary shall perform the duties of the
Treasurer, and when so acting, shall have all the powers of and be subject to all the restrictions
upon the Treasurer.

Section 3.10 Treasurer. The Treasurer shall have the custody of the corporate funds
and securities and shall keep full and accurate accounts of receipts and disbursements in books
belonging to the Corporation and shall deposit all moneys and other valuable effects in the name
and to the credit of the Corporation in such depositories as may be designated by the Board of
Directors. The Treasurer shall disburse the funds of the Corporation as may be ordered by the
Board of Directors, taking proper vouchers for such disbursements, and shall render to the
President and the Board of Directors, at its regular meetings, or when the Board of Directors so
requires, an account of all transactions as Treasurer and of the financial condition of the
Corporation. If required by the Board of Directors, the Treasurer shall give the Corporation a
bond in such sum and with such surety or sureties as shall be satisfactory to the Board of
Directors for the faithful performance of the duties of the office of the Treasurer and for the
restoration to the Corporation, in case of the Treasurer’s death, resignation, retirement or
removal from office, of all books, papers, vouchers, money and other property of whatever kind
in the Treasurer’s possession or under the Treasurer’s control belonging to the Corporation.

Section 3.11 Assistant Secretaries. Assistant Secretaries, if there be any, shall
perform such duties and have such powers as from time to time may be assigned to them by the
Board of Directors, the President, any Vice President, if there be one, or the Secretary, and in the
absence of the Secretary or in the event of the Secretary’s disability or refusal to act, shall
perform the duties of the Secretary, and when so acting, shall have all the powers of and be
subject to all the restrictions upon the Secretary.

Section 3.12  Assistant Treasurers. Assistant Treasurers, if there be any, shall perform
such duties and have such powers as from time to time may be assigned to them by the Board of
Directors, the President, any Vice President, if there be one, or the Treasurer, and in the absence
of the Treasurer or in the event of the Treasurer’s disability or refusal to act, shall perform the
duties of the Treasurer, and when so acting, shall have all the powers of and be subject to all the
restrictions upon the Treasurer. If required by the Board of Directors, an Assistant Treasurer
shall give the Corporation a bond in such sum and with such surety or sureties as shall be
satisfactory to the Board of Directors for the faithful performance of the duties of the office of
Assistant Treasurer and for the restoration to the Corporation, in case of the Assistant Treasurer’s
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death, resignation, retirement or removal from office, of all books, papers, vouchers, money and
other property of whatever kind in the Assistant Treasurer’s possession or under the Assistant
Treasurer’s control belonging to the Corporation.

Section 3.13 Other Officers. Such other officers as the Board of Directors may choose
shall perform such duties and have such powers as from time to time may be assigned to them by
the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors may delegate to any other officer of the
Corporation the power to choose such other officers and to prescribe their respective duties and
powers.

ARTICLE 1V
DIRECTORS

Section 4.01 Number and Election of Directors. Except as otherwise required by the
Articles of Incorporation, the Board of Directors shall consist of not less than one (1) member.
Except as provided in Section 4.02, directors shall be clected by a plurality of the votes cast at
the Annual Meetings of Stockholders and each director so elected shall hold office until the next
Annual Meeting of Stockholders and until such director’s successor is duly elected and qualified,
or until such director’s earlier death, resignation or removal. Any director may resign at any
time upon written notice to the Corporation. Directors need not be stockholders.

Section 4.02 Vacancies. Unless otherwise required by law or the Articles of
Incorporation, vacancies arising through death, resignation, removal, an increase in the number
of directors or otherwise may be filled only by a majority of the directors then in office, though
less than a quorum, or by a sole remaining director, and the directors so chosen shall hold office
until the next annual election and until their successors are duly elected and qualified, or until
their earlier death, resignation or removal.

Section 4.03 Duties and Powers. The business and affairs of the Corporation shall be
managed by or under the direction of the Board of Directors which may exercise all such powers
of the Corporation and do all such lawful acts and things as are not by statute or by the Articles
of Incorporation or by these Bylaws required to be exercised or done by the stockholders.

Section 4.04 Meetings. The Board of Directors may hold meetings, both regular and
special, either within or without the State of Colorado. Regular meetings of the Board of
Directors may be held without notice at such time and at such place as may from time to time be
determined by the Board of Directors. Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called
by the Chairman, if there be one, the President, or by any director. Notice thereof stating the
place, date and hour of the meeting shall be given to each director either by mail not less than ten
(10) days before the date of the meeting or by telephone or electronic transmission on seven (7
days’ notice.

Section 4.05 Quorum. Except as otherwise required by law or the Articles of
Incorporation, at all meetings of the Board of Directors, a majority of the entire Board of
Directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business and the act of a majority of the
directors present at any meeting at which there is a quorum shall be the act of the Board of
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Directors. If a quorum shall not be present at any meeting of the Board of Directors, the
directors present thereat may adjourn the meeting from time to time, without notice other than
announcement at the meeting of the time and place of the adjourned meeting, until a quorum
shall be present.

Section 4.06 Actions by Written Consent. Unless otherwise provided in the Articles
of Incorporation, or these Bylaws, any action required or permitted to be taken at any meeting of
the Board of Directors or of any committee thereof may be taken without a meeting, if all the
members of the Board of Directors or committee, as the case may be, consent thereto in writing,
and the writing or writings are filed with the minutes of proceedings of the Board of Directors or
committee.

Section 4.07 Meetings by Means of Conference Telephone. Unless otherwise
provided in the Articles of Incorporation, members of the Board of Directors of the Corporation,
or any committee thereof, may participate in a meeting of the Board of Directors or such
committee by means of a conference telephone or similar communications equipment by means
of which all persons participating in the meeting can hear each other, and participation in a
meeting pursuant to this Section 4.07 shall constitute presence in person at such meeting.

Section 4.08 Committees. The Board of Directors may designate one or more
committees, each committee to consist of one or more of the directors of the Corporation. The
Board of Directors may designate one or more directors as alternate members of any committee,
who may replace any absent or disqualified member at any meeting of any such committee. In
the absence or disqualification of a member of a committee, and in the absence of a designation
by the Board of Directors of an alternate member to replace the absent or disqualified member,
the member or members thereof present at any meeting and not disqualified from voting,
whether or not such member or members constitute a quorum, may unanimously appoint another
member of the Board of Directors to act at the meeting in the place of any absent or disqualified
member. Any committee, to the extent permitted by law and provided in the resolution
establishing such committee, shall have and may exercise all the powers and authority of the
Board of Directors in the management of the business and affairs of the Corporation, and may
authorize the seal of the Corporation to be affixed to all papers which may require it. Each
committee shall keep regular minutes and report to the Board of Directors when required.

Section 4.09 Compensation. The directors may be paid their expenses, if any, of
attendance at each meeting of the Board of Directors and may be paid a fixed sum for attendance
at each meeting of the Board of Directors or a stated salary as director, payable in cash or
securities. No such payment shall preclude any director from serving the Corporation in any
other capacity and receiving compensation therefor. Members of special or standing committees
may be allowed like compensation for attending committee meetings.

Section 4.10 Interested Directors. No contract or transaction between the Corporation
and one or more of its directors or officers, or between the Corporation and any other
corporation, partnership, association, or other organization in which one or more of its directors
or officers are directors or officers or have a financial interest, shall be void or voidable solely
for this reason, or solely because the director or officer is present at or participates in the meeting
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of the Board of Directors or committee thereof which authorizes the contract or transaction, or
solely because the director or officer’s vote is counted for such purpose if (a) the material facts
as to the director or officer’s relationship or interest and as to the contract or transaction are
disclosed or are known to the Board of Directors or the committee, and the Board of Directors or
committee in good faith authorizes the contract or transaction by the affirmative votes of a
majority of the disinterested directors, even though the disinterested directors be less than a
quorum; or (b) the material facts as to the director or officer’s relationship or interest and as to
the contract or transaction are disclosed or are known to the stockholders entitled to vote thereon,
and the contract or transaction is specifically approved in good faith by vote of the stockholders;
or (c) the contract or transaction is fair as to the Corporation as of the time it is authorized,
approved or ratified by the Board of Directors, a committee thereof or the stockholders.
Common or interested directors may be counted in determining the presence of a quorum at a
meeting of the Board of Directors or of a committee which authorizes the contract or transaction.

Section 4.11 Ratification. Any transaction, questioned in any lawsuit on the ground of
lack of authority, defective or irregular execution, adverse interest of director, officer or
stockholder, non-disclosure, miscomputation or the application of improper principles or
practices of accounting may be ratified before or after judgment, by the Board of Directors or by
the stockholders, and if so ratified shall have the same force and effect as if the questioned
transaction had been originally duly authorized. Such ratification shall be binding upon the
Corporation and its stockholders and shall constitute a bar to any claim or execution of any
judgment in respect of such questioned transaction.

ARTICLE V
BOOKS AND RECORDS

Section 5.01 Minutes. The Corporation shall keep either within or without the State of
Colorado, complete books and records of account and shall keep minutes of the proceedings of
its stock holders and the Board of Directors.

Section 5.02 Stockholder Record. The Corporation shall keep at its registered office
or principal place of business, a record of its stockholders, giving the names and addresses of all
of the stockholders and the number and class of shares held by each.

Section 5.03 Access to Records. The books, records of account, financial statements
and other documents of the corporation shall be available to such persons who have been
designated by law as having a right thereto, and said books, records of account, financial
statements and documents shall be made available to such persons in the manner and in
accordance with the procedures established by law.

ARTICLE VI
STOCK

Section 6.01 Form of Certificates. Every holder of stock in the Corporation shall be
entitled to have a certificate signed, in the name of the Corporation (a) by the Chairman of the
Board of Directors, the President or a Vice President and (b) by the Treasurer or an Assistant
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Treasurer, or the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary of the Corporation, certifying the number of
shares owned by such stockholder in the Corporation.

Section 6.02 Signatures. Any or all of the signatures on a certificate may be by
electronic transmission. In case any officer, transfer agent or registrar who has signed or whose
signature has been placed upon a certificate by electronic transmission shall have ceased to be
such officer, transfer agent or registrar before such certificate is issued, it may be issued by the
Corporation with the same effect as if such person were such officer, transfer agent or registrar at
the date of issue.

Section 6.03 Lost Certificates. The Board of Directors may direct a new certificate to
be issued in place of any certificate theretofore issued by the Corporation alleged to have been
lost, stolen or destroyed, upon the making of an affidavit of that fact by the person claiming the
certificate of stock to be lost, stolen or destroyed. When authorizing such issue of a new
certificate, the Board of Directors may, in its discretion and as a condition precedent to the
issuance thereof, require the owner of such lost, stolen or destroyed certificate, or the owner’s
legal representative, to advertise the same in such manner as the Board of Directors shall require
and/or to give the Corporation a bond in such sum as it may direct as indemnity against any
claim that may be made against the Corporation with respect to the certificate alleged to have
been lost, stolen or destroyed or the issuance of such new certificate.

Section 6.04 Transfers. Stock of the Corporation shall be transferable in the manner
prescribed by law and in these Bylaws. Transfers of stock shall be made on the books of the
Corporation only by the person named in the certificate or by such person’s attorney lawfully
constituted in writing and upon the surrender of the certificate therefor, which shall be cancelled
before a new certificate shall be issued. No transfer of stock shall be valid as against the
Corporation for any purpose until it shall have been entered in the stock records of the
Corporation by an entry showing from and to whom transferred.

Section 6.05 Record Date.

(a) In order that the Corporation may determine the stockholders
entitled to notice of or to vote at any meeting of stockholders or any adjournment thereof, the
Board of Directors may fix a record date, which record date shall not precede the date upon
which the resolution fixing the record date is adopted by the Board of Directors, and which
record date shall not be more than sixty (60) nor less than ten (10) days before the date of such
meeting. If no record date is fixed by the Board of Directors, the record date for determining
stockholders entitled to notice of or to vote at a meeting of stockholders shall be at the close of
business on the day next preceding the day on which notice is given, or, if notice is waived, at
the close of business on the day next preceding the day on which the meeting is held. A
determination of stockholders of record entitled to notice of or to vote at a meeting of
stockholders shall apply to any adjournment of the meeting; providing, however, that the Board
of Directors may fix a new record date for the adjourned meeting.

(b) In order that the Corporation may determine the stockholders
entitled to consent to corporate action in writing without a meeting, the Board of Directors may
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fix a record date, which record date shall not precede the date upon which the resolution fixing
the record date is adopted by the Board of Directors, and which record date shall not be more
than ten (10) days after the date upon which the resolution fixing the record date is adopted by
the Board of Directors. If no record date has been fixed by the Board of Directors, the record
date for determining stockholders entitled to consent to corporate action in writing without a
meeting, when no prior action by the Board of Directors is required by law, shall be the first date
on which a signed written consent setting forth the action taken or proposed to be taken is
delivered to the Corporation by delivery to its registered office in this State, its principal place of
business, or an officer or agent of the Corporation having custody of the book in which
proceedings of meetings of stockholders are recorded. Delivery made to a corporation’s
registered office shall be by hand or by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested. If
no record date has been fixed by the Board of Directors and prior action by the Board of
Directors is required by law, the record date for determining stockholders entitled to consent to
corporate action in writing without a meeting shall be at the close of business on the day on
which the Board of Directors adopts the resolutions taking such prior action.

() In order that the Corporation may determine the stockholders
entitled to receive payment of any dividend or other distribution or allotment of any rights or the
stockholders entitled to exercise any rights in respect of any change, conversion or exchange of
stock, or for the purpose of any other lawful action, the Board of Directors may fix a record date,
which record date shall not precede the date upon which the resolution fixing the record date is
adopted, and which record date shall be not more than sixty (60) days prior to such action. If no
record date is fixed, the record date for determining stockholders for any such purpose shall be at
the close of business on the day on which the Board of Directors adopts the resolution relating
thereto.

Section 6.06 Record Owners. The Corporation shall be entitled to recognize the
exclusive right of a person registered on its books as the owner of shares to receive dividends,
and to vote as such owner, and to hold liable for calls and assessments a person registered on its
books as the owner of shares, and shall not be bound to recognize any equitable or other claim to
or interest in such share or shares on the part of any other person, whether or not it shall have
express or other notice thereof, except as otherwise required by law.

Section 6.07 Fractional Shares. The Corporation may, but shall not be required to,
issue certificates for fractions of a share where necessary to effect authorized transactions, or the
Corporation may pay in cash the fair value of fractions of a share as of the time when those
entitled to receive such fractions are determined, or it may issue scrip in registered or bearer
form over the manual signature or signature by electronic transmission of an officer of the
Corporation or of its agent, exchangeable as therein provided for full shares, but such scrip shall
not entitle the holder to any rights of a stockholder except as therein provided.

Section 6.08 Additional Rules. The Board of Directors shall have power and authority
to make all such rules and regulations as it may deem expedient concerning the issue, transfer
and registration of certificates representing shares of the Corporation.

ARTICLE VII
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NOTICES

Section 7.01 Notices. Whenever written notice is required by law, the Articles of
Incorporation or these Bylaws, to be given to any director, member of a committee or
stockholder, such notice may be given by mail or overnight courier, addressed to such director,
member of a committee or stockholder, at such person’s address as it appears on the records of
the Corporation, with postage thereon prepaid. If notice is given by United States mail, it shall
be deemed to be given at the time when the same shall be deposited in the United States mail. If
notice is given by overnight express courier, such notice shall be deemed effective on the first
business day after such notice is dispatched. Written notice may also be given personally, by
telephone or by electronic transmission. If notice is given personally or by telephone, such
notice shall be deemed effective when given. If notice is given by electronic transmission, such
notice shall be deemed to be effective when electronically transmitted.

Section 7.02 Waivers of Notice. Whenever any notice is required by law, the Articles
of Incorporation or these Bylaws, to be given to any director, member of a committee or
stockholder, a waiver thereof in writing, signed, by the person or persons entitled to said notice,
whether before or after the time stated therein, shall be deemed equivalent thereto. Attendance
of a person at a meeting, present in person or represented by proxy, shall constitute a waiver of
notice of such meeting, except where the person attends the meeting for the express purpose of
objecting at the beginning of the meeting to the transaction of any business because the meeting
is not lawfully called or convened.

ARTICLE VIII
GENERAL PROVISIONS

Section 8.01 Dividends. Dividends upon the capital stock of the Corporation, subject
to the requirements of law and the provisions of the Articles of Incorporation, if any, may be
declared by the Board of Directors at any regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors
and may be paid in cash, in property, or in shares of the Corporation’s capital stock. Before
payment of any dividend, there may be set aside out of any funds of the Corporation available for
dividends such sum or sums as the Board of Directors from time to time, in its absolute
discretion, deems proper as a reserve or reserves to meet contingencies, or for equalizing
dividends, or for repairing or maintaining any property of the Corporation, or for any proper
purpose, and the Board of Directors may modify or abolish any such reserve.

Section 8.02 Disbursements. All checks or demands for money and notes of the
Corporation shall be signed by such officer or officers or such other person or persons as the
Board of Directors may from time to time designate.

Section 8.03 Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Corporation shall be fixed by
resolution of the Board of Directors.

Section 8.04 Corporate Seal. The corporate seal, if any, shall have inscribed thereon
the name of the Corporation, the year of its organization and the words “Corporate Seal”. The
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seal may be used by causing it or an electronic transmission thereof to be impressed or affixed or
reproduced or otherwise.

ARTICLE IX
INDEMNIFICATION

Section 9.01 Power to Indemnify in Actions, Suits or Proceedings other than Those
by or in the Right of the Corporation. Subject to Section 9.03, the Corporation shall
indemnify any person who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened,
pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or
investigative (other than an action by or in the right of the Corporation) by reason of the fact that
such person is or was a director or officer of the Corporation, or is or was a director or officer of
the Corporation serving at the request of the Corporation as a director or officer, employee or
agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, employee benefit plan or other
enterprise, against expenses (including attorneys’ fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in
settlement actually and reasonably incurred by such person in connection with such action, suit
or proceeding if such person acted in good faith and in a manner such person reasonably believed
to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the Corporation, and, with respect to any criminal
action or proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe such person’s conduct was unlawful.
The termination of any action, suit or proceeding by judgment, order, settlement, conviction, or
upon a plea of nolo contendere or its equivalent, shall not, of itself, create a presumption that the
person did not act in good faith and in a manner which such person reasonably believed to be in
or not opposed to the best interests of the Corporation, and, with respect to any criminal action or
proceeding, had reasonable cause to believe that such person’s conduct was unlawful.

Section 9.02 Power to Indemnify in Actions, Suits or Proceedings by or in the
Right of the Corporation. Subject to Section 9.03, the Corporation shall indemnify any person
who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed
action or suit by or in the right of the Corporation to procure a judgment in its favor by reason of
the fact that such person is or was a director or officer of the Corporation, or is or was a director
or officer of the Corporation serving at the request of the Corporation as a director, officer,
employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, employee benefit plan
or other enterprise against expenses (including attorneys’ fees) actually and reasonably incurred
by such person in connection with the defense or settlement of such action or suit if such person
acted in good faith and in a manner such person reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to
the best interests of the Corporation; except that no indemnification shall be made in respect of
any claim, issue or matter as to which such person shall have been adjudged to be liable to the
Corporation unless and only to the extent that the court in which such action or suit was brought
shall determine upon application that, despite the adjudication of liability but in view of all the
circumstances of the case, such person is fairly and reasonably entitled to indemnity for such
expenses which a court shall deem proper.

Section 9.03 Authorization of Indemnification. Any indemnification under this
Article IX (unless ordered by a court) shall be made by the Corporation only as authorized in the
specific case upon a determination that indemnification of the director or officer is proper in the
circumstances because such person has met the applicable standard of conduct set forth in
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Section 9.01 or Section 9.02, as the case may be. Such determination shall be made (a) by a
majority vote of the directors who are not parties to such action, suit or proceeding, even though
less than a quorum, or (b) if there are no such directors, or if such directors so direct, by
independent legal counsel in a written opinion or (c) by the stockholders. To the extent,
however, that a director or officer of the Corporation has been successful on the merits or
otherwise in defense of any action, suit or proceeding described above, or in defense of any
claim, issue or matter therein, such person shall be indemnified against expenses (including
attorneys’ fees) actually and reasonably incurred by such person in connection therewith, without
the necessity of authorization in the specific case.

Section 9.04 Good Faith Defined. For purposes of any determination under Section
9.03, a person shall be deemed to have acted in good faith and in a manner such person
reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the Corporation, or, with
respect to any criminal action or proceeding, to have had no reasonable cause to believe such
person’s conduct was unlawful, if such person’s action is based on the records or books of
account of the Corporation or another enterprise, or on information supplied to such person by
the officers of the Corporation or another enterprise in the course of their duties, or on the advice
of legal counsel for the Corporation or another enterprise or on information or records given or
reports made to the Corporation or another enterprise by an independent certified public
accountant or by an appraiser or other expert selected with reasonable care by the Corporation or
another enterprise. The term “another enterprise” as used in this Section 9.04 shall mean any
other corporation or any partnership, joint venture, trust, employee benefit plan or other
enterprise of which such person is or was serving at the request of the Corporation as a director,
officer, employee or agent. The provisions of this Section 9.04 shall not be deemed to be
exclusive or to limit in any way the circumstances in which a person may be deemed to have met
the applicable standard of conduct set forth in Section 9.01 or Section 9.02, as the case may be.

Section 9.05 Indemnification by a Court. Notwithstanding any contrary
determination in the specific case under Section 9.03, and notwithstanding the absence of any
determination thereunder, any director or officer may apply to a court for indemnification to the
extent otherwise permissible under Section 9.01 and Section 9.02. The basis of such
indemnification by a court shall be a determination by such court that indemnification of the
director or officer is proper in the circumstances because such person has met the applicable
standards of conduct set forth in Section 9.01 or Section 9.02, as the case may be. Neither a
contrary determination in the specific case under Section 9.03 nor the absence of any
determination thereunder shall be a defense to such application or create a presumption that the
director or officer secking indemnification has not met any applicable standard of conduct.
Notice of any application for indemnification pursuant to this Section 9.05 shall be given to the
Corporation promptly upon the filing of such application. If successful, in whole or in part, the
director or officer seeking indemnification shall also be entitled to be paid the expense of
prosecuting such application.

Section 9.06 Expenses Payable in Advance. Expenses incurred by a director or
officer in defending any civil, criminal, administrative or investigative action, suit or proceeding
shall be paid by the Corporation in advance of the final disposition of such action, suit or
proceeding upon receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of such director or officer to repay
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such amount if it shall ultimately be determined that such person is not entitled to be indemnified
by the Corporation as authorized in this Article IX.

Section 9.07 Nonexclusivity of Indemnification and Advancement of Expenses.
The indemnification and advancement of expenses provided by or granted pursuant to this
Article IX shall not be deemed exclusive of any other rights to which those seeking
indemnification or advancement of expenses may be entitled under the Articles of Incorporation,
any Bylaw, agreement, vote of stockholders or disinterested directors or otherwise, both as to
action in such person’s official capacity and as to action in another capacity while holding such
office, it being the policy of the Corporation that indemnification of the persons specified in
Section 9.01 and Section 9.02 shall be made to the fullest extent permitted by law. The
provisions of this Article IX shall not be deemed to preclude the indemnification of any person
who is not specified in Section 9.01 or Section 9.02 but whom the Corporation has the power or
obligation to indemnify under the provisions of the law, or otherwise.

Section 9.08 Insurance. The Corporation may purchase and maintain insurance on
behalf of any person who is or was a director or officer of the Corporation, or is or was a director
or officer of the Corporation serving at the request of the Corporation as a director, officer,
employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, employee benefit plan
or other enterprise against any liability asserted against such person and incurred by such person
in any such capacity, or arising out of such person’s status as such, whether or not the
Corporation would have the power or the obligation to indemnify such person against such
liability under the provisions of this Article IX.

Section 9.09 Certain Definitions. For purposes of this Article IX, references to “the
Corporation” shall include, in addition to the resulting corporation, any constituent corporation
(including any constituent of a constituent) absorbed in a consolidation or merger which, if its
separate existence had continued, would have had power and authority to indemnify its directors
or officers, so that any person who is or was a director or officer of such constituent corporation,
or is or was a director or officer of such constituent corporation serving at the request of such
constituent corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation,
partnership, joint venture, trust, employee benefit plan or other enterprise, shall stand in the same
position under the provisions of this Article IX, with respect to the resulting or surviving
corporation as such person would have with respect to such constituent corporation if its separate
existence had continued. For purposes of this Article IX, references to “fines” shall include any
excise taxes assessed on a person with respect to an employee benefit plan; and references to
“serving at the request of the Corporation” shall include any service as a director, officer,
employee or agent of the Corporation which imposes duties on, or involves services by, such
director or officer with respect to an employee benefit plan, its participants or beneficiaries; and
a person who acted in good faith and in a manner such person reasonably believed to be in the
interest of the participants and beneficiaries of an employee benefit plan shall be deemed to have
acted in a manner “not opposed to the best interests of the Corporation” as referred to in this
Article IX,

Section 9.10 Survival of Indemnification and Advancement of Expenses. The
indemnification and advancement of expenses provided by, or granted pursuant to, this Article
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IX shall, unless otherwise provided when authorized or ratified, continue as to a person who has
ceased to be a director or officer and shall inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors and
administrators of such a person.

Section 9.11 Limitation on Indemnification. Notwithstanding anything contained in
this Article IX to the contrary, except for proceedings to enforce rights to indemnification (which
shall be governed by Section 9.05 hereof), the Corporation shall not be obligated to indemnify
any director or officer in connection with a proceeding (or part thereof) initiated by such person
unless such proceeding (or part thereof) was authorized or consented to by the Board of
Directors of the Corporation.

Section 9.12 Indemnification of Employees and Agents. The Corporation may, to the
extent authorized from time to time by the Board of Directors, provide rights to indemnification
and to the advancement of expenses to employees and agents of the Corporation similar to those
conferred in this Article IX to directors and officers of the Corporation.

Section 9.13 Other Indemnification. The Corporation’s obligation, if any, to
indemnify any person who was or is serving at its request as a director, officer, employee or
agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, employee benefit plan or other
enterprise shall be reduced by any amount such person may collect as indemnification from such
other corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, employee benefit plan or other enterprise.

ARTICLE X
AMENDMENTS

Section 10.01 Amendments. These Bylaws or any of them may be altered, amended or
repealed, in whole or in part, or new Bylaws may be adopted by the stockholders or by the Board
of Directors. All such amendments must be approved by either the holders of a majority of the
outstanding capital stock entitled to vote thereon (by vote at a meeting or by written consent
without a meeting) or by a majority of the entire Board of Directors then in office thereon (by
vote at a meeting or by unanimous written consent without a meeting).

Section 10.02 Entire Board of Directors. As used in this Article X and in these Bylaws
generally, the term “entire Board of Directors” means the total number of directors which the
Corporation would have if there were no vacancies.
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ADOPTED BY THE SOLE MEMBER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS this ___
day of

DIRECTOR:

[Insert Director’s Signature]
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